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Schedule of Principal Properties

HEILE 3 DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
AR BRLIE ik
# LT HEREmH R BRI
HHAR iR HHETRE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion ~ Completion Date inthe Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(¥ik) (¥ik) (¥ik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
R EET)HHERLR o0 31120014 9.56% 10495 13014 - HSCP
Toschna Villa University City,Shapingba District,Chongging PRC
RER EETDHEEIER 65% 3092017 %.56% 102,368 441,04 415811 RSICP
University Town Univessity City, Shapingba District,Chongging PRC
TLE BETIHHRANE 5% 30112017 4957% 9,307 414265 24691 RISICP
Bamboo Grove Dazhuzhen Beibu New District, Chongging PRC
¥24 ELa 3% 1512018 10000% - 582,707 250339 RsicP
Beibei New City Xiemazhen, Beibei District, Chongging PRC
MR ERTTRER KA 10% 1501 100.00% - AL 824418 RISICP
Electric Park Xiyong, Shapingba District,Chongging PRC
Faiie ERTILLERRS 0% 31122016 91.30% 8 54,158 181,928 RISIO/CP
Chunsen Land Chenjiaguan, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC
Hivgs ERTRHET 60 31122016 91.30% 19,100 172424 8183 RSICP
Crystal Magic Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging PRC
B BETITLEATG 0% 1112016 93.48% 56,192 286,190 - RISICP
Mopan Shan Dashiba, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC
L 0% 300612018 100.00% - - 313,671 RsicP
Guanyin Bridge Red River,Chongging PRC
FHLIR ERTIRERRR 5% 300612019 8.08% - 508,786 1964016 wsicp
Lijia Lijiazhen, Beibei District, Chongging PRC
[EGE Chongging Subtotal 412,753 2830238 4,452,697
R: fEE NENGES 0 WAE CP: {FHY;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

e K7 B
THY L HiEREmH BEmH AR Euk
HHAR A HEELEE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project  Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(FiK) (BiK) (FiK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
&Rl AR RE 601 s 9417% - 373897 - RISICP
Jingyang Project Wuhou District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC
Gilve RAT R EE 60 3022018 9L30% 10078 S21,745 28774 Rsicp
Time Paradise Walk Xibuyuanqu, Gaoxin District, Chengdu, Sichuan
Province PRC
B RATHEBRRE - B Bl 0% 3104 9L30% 3,666 180,633 0 Risicp

Chengdu Flamenco Spain ~ Shuangbaicun & Yilicun, Pitongzhen, Pitong
County, Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC

ABEEH R R B 0% 2082018 9.48% VAN 7% 29540 Rsicp
Jade Town Datiancun, Qingchengshanzhen, Dujiangyan,

Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC

ks eEAd SNl 97% 28202014 92.75% 7,565 13657 - Rsce
North Paradise Walk Wukuaishizhen, Jinniu District, Chengdu,

Sichuan Province PRC
JiEaL5 3 AT R BRI A B 1 5 65% 30161018 720% UIB 21958 146072 RISICP
Century Peak View No.1 Tianfu Road Central, Gaoxin Districe,

Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC

] AT EREAEN i5% 1120017 91.43% 15954 104,145 208252 RsicP
Mou Ma Heaven Baiyuncun, Huayuanzhen, Xinjin County,

Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC

R Chengda Subtoral 249168 1,548,768 602,638
HRAR FAmEMER RS 100% 18/122013 9130% 59 - - RISICP
Azure Chianti Liyuanzhen, Tongzhou District, Beijing PRC
il HATIERE Rl 0% 15102014 91.30% - W47 - RsCP
Niu lan Shan Niulanshanzhen, Shunyi District, Beijing PRC
KREE YATRRERH 0% 10102015 9130% - 388,159 - RS(CP
Daxing Huangcun, Daging District, Beijing PRC
(i LEmHBE 0% 3082014 91.30% 10882 20053 - RISI0ICP
Changying ChangyingXi‘ang, Chaoyang District, Beijing PRC
R: i€ NENES 0: MAE CP: {FHiIY

Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

KA ARy B
L R R BElETT
HHAR iR HEELEE Bxpected  Group'sIncerest  Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(Bik) (Fik) (FiK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
SR () BEU L i 0% 3051205 9130% - 110960 - RISICP
Sunhe Sunhe, Chaoyang District, Beijing PRC
vl YATETEIE 0% 31120016 3104 - - 276963 RISICP
Shahe Project Shahe town,Changping District,Beijing PRC
A FATIERER DAL 0% 3112018 9130% - - 161,806 RsicP
Hou Sha Yu Baixinzhuang, Houshayuzhen, Shunyi District,
Beijing PRC
Lt Beijing Subtotal 11480 78,643 88771
RhEAC RS A PR A 601 38 0% 11772020 9130% 8784 563821 6,349,087 RISICP
Yangma Island No.601 Binhai Road East, Mouping
District,Yantai, Shandong Province, PRC
REEBAA WRBE AR BRI 0% 31120018 100.00% - - 696,147 RsicP
Yangma Island B Plot Binhai Road East, Mouping District, Yantai,
Shandong Province, PRC
Baht Yantai Subtotal 8,784 563821 7,045,234
REI LRMIMTERT SRR 100% 101 91.30% 3,618 - - RISICP
Long Xing Lu Meijiabin Road, Songjiang University City,
Shanghai PRC
gt LB RER A 3 100% 311012013 9.56% 63,298 - - RISICP
Bai Yin Lu Project Baiyin Road & Hezuo Road, Jiading Districe,
Shanghai PRC
e LETEWA 0% 3062015 9130% - 103,929 - RISICP
Shanghai Fairy Castle Qingpu New City, Shanghai PRC
LS LEtFRELES 0% 311015 9L30% - 1394 - RsicP
Qingpu Project Zhaoxiang zhen, Qingpu District, Shanghai PRC
LR LT R 10% 300612017 93.48% - 111,782 15,302 RISI0ICP
Hong Qiao CBD Project  Shenchang Road, Minghang District, Shanghai PRC
X LEHELERHE 0% 1772018 100.00% - - 09,627 RisoCe
North Paradise Walk Gucunzhen, Baoshan District, Shanghai PRC
L Shanghai Subtotal 98906 261,656 34929
R fEE NS o MAE CP: fFHily
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

B Lk B
VLT TR R BElETT
HHAR A BHELRE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project  Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(¥ik) (593 (¥ik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
Eh- 2N E W& 7S A 5 60% 1102014 91.30% - 86,45 - Rsicp
Xian Fairy Castle 11 Qujiang Road, Qujiang New District, Xi'an,
Shanxi Province PRC
BRAR W& 7 < S 40g 3091018 9130% 37,094 48580 803,102 Rsicp
Xi'an Chianti Chanhe Road West, Xi‘an, Shanxi Province PRC
Elmoco Ik WEATETEMER A% 0% 100% 1912013 %1% 5991 - - RSP
Dasing Project No.20 Xinghuo Road, Lianhu District, Xi'an,
Shansi Province PRC
B W B T RGBT 0% 25082014 9417% - 182,586 - RsiCP
Crystal Town Middle Section of Yongquan Road West,
Daxing New District, Xian,
Shansi Province PRC
ik K% AR 60% 1112014 9L30% - 155,460 - e
Waft Yard Weiyang District, Xi'an, Shanxi Province PRC
e BERRRBAES 0% 142016 9L30% - - 181,630 Rsicp
Hantian Project Shenzhou Five road Xi'an City,Shansi Province PRC
TR% (R W& 7Sk A XA TG 0% RPN 9L30% - - 58,537 Rsicp
Chang'an Wonder Furong Road West, Qujiang New District,

Xi'an, Shanxi Province PRC

gt Kian Subrotl 3085 910,163 1,045,269
HHER IES BT AR ARG LK E RN 15% 30112019 91.30% - 130,086 178,151 RISICP
Dongjiu Yicheng Road, Yixing, Wusi, Jiangsu Province,

PRC
RN Yixing Subtotal - 130,086 178,151
KD I BT REAMERER 0% 1122017 9130% 38212 - 84323 RISICP
Taike Yuan II Zhenze Road, Taikeyuan, Wauxi, Jiangsu Province,

PRC
hRENE HEGES THIlEE A 35% 31112018 91.30% 6,097 99,607 184493 RISICP
Xihu Road Xihu Road Central, Xishan District, Wi,

Jangsu Province, PRC

R: fEE S M 0 MWAE CP: {FHY
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

KEMR BRLIE B
VLT il e fE AR Euk
HHAR iR BHEIRE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(¥ik) (¥ik) (¥ik)
(Sqm) (Sqm)
LI AR ST s L A S0 3018 9L30% 54514 34945 94573 wscp
Quite tale Xilu Road, Yangshanzhen, Huishan District, Wux,
Jiangsu Province, PRC
BERR ITEEATIHIE R 3% 10162016 9L30% - 165721 1375 RSP
Xidong Xishan District East, Wi, Jiangsu Province, PRC
it Wi Subrocl 98823 30273 376,664
Bl THEENTRERAES = F% 100% 121122013 93.48% 25,789 - - RISICP
Qinglong Project Sanin Road, Tianning District, Changzhou,

Jiangsu Province, PRC

Bl ThEFATREE SR =i 0% 12/12/2016 96.85¢% 26858 201,631 - RISICP
inglong Project I1 Sanxin Road, Tianning District, Changzhou,
glong Froj 5 g
Jiangsu Province, PRC

A HESERTE R 0% 31122017 97.38% 439 370,51 397,604 RSP
Hongzhuang Project Qinye Road South, Zhonglou District,
Changzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
b THAFNTRERRE 08
Dongjing 120 Project Dongjing 120 Road, Tianning District, 80% 11212017 98.50% 59,283 95,857 120,037 RISICP
Changzhou, Jiangsu Province PRC
n=H TheFNTREERS 50% 1122016 100.00% 841 - 17894 RsicP
Dongjing 120 Project I Dongjing 120 Road, Tianning District,
Changzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
G Changzhou Subtoal 154747 667,639 525,53
HHER G EN TR BRI 1% 11112019 100.00% - 238850 136,665 RISI0/CP
Chunlen Project Shishan Sereet, Gaoxin District, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, PRC
Bt Suzhou Subtote - 38850 136,665
R: i€ NENGES 0 WAE CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

B Lk B
VLT TR R BElETT
HHAR A BHELRE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project  Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(¥ik) (593 (¥ik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
ERL-# EER R ERRG 0% 12013 98:49% 18484 9,530 - Rsicp
Huishan Project Shiyuan Street, Shenbei New District, Shenyang,
Liaoning Province PRC
ERL-H EEERETILRERES S0 91016 98:49% 20021 19,531 46057 Rsicp
Huishan Project II Shiyuan Strect, Shenbei New District, Shenyang,
Liaoning Province PRC
% ESELIRERER 0% 55% 1812017 9.15% 73,080 - 1741056 Risicp
Daoyi Project No:A6 Pufeng Road, Shenbei New District,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province PRC

LEVERL BRI ARG 0% 20% 1182017 96.15% - 74470 300309 RISICP
Daoyi Project I No:46 Pufeng Road, Shenbei New District,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province PRC

feT# BELRHTANEE LN 60 311012015 9L30% - 119,757 80,690 RISICP
Tiexi Zhonggong Stree, Tiexi District, Shengyang,

Lisoning Province PRC
L HEEETRERERL 80% 119/2016 91.30% 3637 3820 - RisiCP
Ceramics City Ceramics City North, Dadong District, Shengyeng,

Liaoning Province PRC
JEEONE HELEETRTERAERAT_H 10% 31102017 100.00% - 258,636 157,32 RISICP
Changbai [sland Changbai sland, Heping District, Shenyeng,

Liaoning Province PRC
Bt Shenyang Subtota 115,22 940,146 2740058
A IRAEETRBEE H 0% 0% 30122009 95.20% 1332 5959 77401 RISICP
Baisha Project No.10 Shuangyuan Road, Chengyang Districe,

Qingdao, Shandong Province PRC

ATEHS WREHETREES T 55% 30102017 100.00% 71380 11389 66,861 RiSICP
Baisha Project F Plot Shuangyuan Road, Chengyang District,
Qingdao, Shandong Province PRC

R: fEE S M 0 MWAE CP: {FHY
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

KEMR BRLIE B
VLT il e fE AR Euk
HHAR iR BHEIRE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(¥ik) (¥ik) (¥ik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
Bk A EETHEEN - EERH 0% RPN 10000% 5,658 179,09 - wscp
Shankeda Project Kedayihaoxian, Qingdao, Shandong Province PRC
foft WS E TR B A AL 3% 3042018 91.30% 85% 112,59 180,048 Rsicp
Zhongcun Zhongcun, Chengyang District, Qingdao,
Shandong Province PRC
LA UREELTREREHE T RARRH I5% 3092019 9130% - 13610 265,440 RScP
Anlecun Xiazhuang Street, Chengyang Districe,

Qingdao, Shandong Province PRC

FENT Qingdzo Subtoral 98,954 768,682 389,750
R L AT R B 60 155312016 100.00% 36,30 166,863 {173 Rsicp
Xiasha Project Shangsha Road North, EDZ, Hangzhou,

Zhejiang Province PRC
il HLE T At B 75% 30122014 9L30% 13,486 190420 - wsicp
Chaoshan Project Zhanghecun, Tanggizhen, Yuhang Districe,

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province PRC

fif AR S0 30122016 91.30% 1,602 149,961 91426 Rsicp
Kegiao Project Kegiao Zhen Shaoxin, Zhejiang Province PRC

I R ANLE LU S0 311204 %.65% - 301,799 - Rsicp
Binjiang Project Olympic Sports Center, Binjiang District,

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province PRC

TH HTARMTIEET & 0% 10/6/2016 91.30% - 151,19 121,143 RISICP
Dingiao Project Dinggiao, Jianggan District, Hangzhou,

Zhejiang Province PRC
Bt Hangzhou Subtotal 51218 960,772 260,304
fisesd ZHATEMLIBRERREH 0% 102016 9L30% - - 827,741 Rsicp
Fairy Lake Zhangyingeun, Lujuzhen, Jiangchuan County,

Yuxi, Yunnan Province PRC

TR Yuxi Subtotal - - 827,741
R: fEE NENGES 0 WAE CP: {FHY;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

B Lk B
VLT TR R BElETT
HHAR A BHELRE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project  Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(¥ik) (593 (¥ik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
FoRIEH SHERAm R 6% 31512005 91.30% - 10,254 164,101 Rsicp
Minda Project Jiaochang Road, Kunming, Yunnan Province PRC
Bt Kunming Subtotal - 10,254 164,101
it EER R EREE 0% 3052016 B48% - 31 - Rsicp
East Port CBD Donggang District, Dalian, Lizoning Province PRC
filE FEARET IR R % 3011012015 91.30% - 12001 51662 RISICP
Wuchaying Honggi Street, Ganjingzi District, Dalian,
Lisoning Province PRC
RGN 2 BEERUmREKREHE 0% 308 i840% - - 669,724 Rsicp
Longhe II Xiaonancun, Shuishiying Street, Dalian,
Liaoning Province PRC
KE Dalian Subtotal - 343313 721,386
iy CHRE TR 54 3042017 91.30% 561 - 361 e
Chianti Longshan Zhen, Cixi, Ningbo, Zhejiang Province,
PRC
Eir AT REAR L o3 0% 3092016 100.00% 65,691 298,09 182,069 Rsicp
Rose & Gingko Coast No.68 Chunxiaozhongqi Road Beilun District,
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province PRC
B Ningbo Subtotal 139,122 298,096 453430
En BREERIT BN 30% 1112016 B36% - 470503 114,763 e
Jimei Guankou Guankou Zhen, Jimei District, Xiamen,
Fujian Province PRC
BNt Xiamen Subtotal - 470503 114,763
I RS 15% 52018 91.30% - 264165 1237208 Rsicp
Jinjiang Chidian, Jinjiang, Quanzhou, Fujian Province PRC
G Quanzhou Subrotal - 264,169 1,237,208
R: fEE NS 0: WAE CP: {FHY
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

BRHE KEMR BRLIE B
ALHA L R R AR Euk
HHAR iR BHEIRE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(¥ik) (¥ik) (¥ik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
Gl WhE R 0% 3018 9L30% - 207,785 96879 RSICP
Gushan Project Gushan, Wangcheng District, Changsha,
Hunan Province PRC
Rt Changsha Subtotal - 207,78 936,79
[ikad HRHREERRE 0% 312017 91.30% - - 35471 RSICP
Xikezhan Project Huaiyin District Road,

Ji'nan Qingyuan City Shandong Province PRC

it Ji'nan Subtotal - - 3547
EAmitToTAL 1482262 12,443,853 BA,64
R: i€ NENGES 0 WAE CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

BEYE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HRER ) ERLIE B
fEEaniE] ik TR R R BElETT
HHAR B HHELRE Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(FiK) (Fik) (FiK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BELRKE BETTLELA GG s 100% R 9L30% 146,262 - - S
North Patadise Walk No.6 & No.§ Beichengtianjie, Jiangbei District, In operation
Chongging PRC
ERENN EETRLER L SR O 100% EfE 9L30% 2413 - - S
Fairy Castle Yusongyizhilu, Longshan Street, Yubei District, In operation
Chongging PRC
ERREA ERTAMHE A 108 100% ERE 9L30% 41,554 - - S
Crystal Palace No.162 Xinnan Road, Renhezhen, Beibuxingu, In operation
Chongging PRC
EEMARY ERT LA BRI 485 100% R 9130% 111654 - - S
West Paradise Walk No.48 Zhujiang Road, Yangjiaping, Jiulongpo District, In operation
Chongging PRC
EEvocoRNE  EEMLMHEAMSTAR 6% 100% S 9130% 29,104 - - S
MOCO Center No.168 Xinnan Road, Renhezhen, Beibusingu, In operation
Chongging PRC
[ VR ERTHEIT 80% 3112016 9L30% 284 254392 118,079 S

Time Paradise Walk Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging PRC

BRURKE EETHEERER 100% EfE 9.56% 76 - 132,591 S
University Town Uninversity City, Shapingba District, Chongging PRC In operation
ERRRENE ERTILRRAR 100% R 9130% 54618 - 9,40 S
Chunsen Starry Street Chenjiaguan, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC In operation
HEREENE EETILLEAAR 0% L2016 95.48% - - 175444 §

Yuanzhu Starry Street Dashiba, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC

ERFILAR ERTAREEES 0% 31018 8.08% - - 36015 $
1deal City Lijiazhen, Beibei District, Chongging PRC
Rf=T% A IR B 100% LR 93488 3043 - - S
Three Thousand Castles  Section 2,Erhuan Road East Chengdu, In operation
Sichuan Province PRC
R: fEE NENGES 0: WAE CP: {FHY
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

KEMR BRLIE B
VLT il e fE AR Euk
HHAR iR HEELEE Bxpected  Group'sIncerest  Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Pjoject Location Stage of Completion Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
Bk Bk (k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
RIS Wl RS BT 10% R 90.75% 25,536 - - $
North Paradise Walk Wukuaishi, Jinniu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province In operation
PRC
B Mg AT R 10% 3022018 91.30% - 6,145 28,94 §
Time Paradise Walk Xibuyuanqu, Gaoxin District, Chengdu,
Sichuan Province PRC
HEEHRE Mg AR RE 0% 31015 9417% - - 19,48 )

Jinnan Paradise Walk Wuhou District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC

TRBHERS ARTiEREm 100% Ef% 89.95% 6320 - - S
Sumnmer Palace Xiyuan, Haidian District, Beijing PRC In operation

Paradise Walk
1 RiRE LR 80% 301812014 91.30% - 280,767 - $

Changying Paradise Walk  Changyingsiang, Chaoyang District, Beijing PRC

B LIV HRTARERH 0% 101102015 9L30% - - 191,570 §
Time Paradise Walk Huangcun, Daging District, Beijing PRC

LB LEEERR 100% LT 9B48% 1925 - - S
Sunshine City Shengyin Road, Jiading District, Shanghai PRC completed
L LR RARSH 0% 3062017 9B48% - - 275,407 )

Honggiao Paradise Walk ~ Shenchang Road, Minghang District, Shenghai PRC

HtExE LETHIERHA 0% 1772018 100.00% - - 138,652 S
North Paradise Walk Gucunzhen, Baoshan District, Shanghai PRC

BEEMNOCOENE  KEARLHENEL N 0% 954 28091014 9417% - 61,320 - S
Daxing Patadise Walk ~ No.20 Xinghuo Road, Lianhu District,
Xian, Shanxi Province PRC

EhEE HE S T NIE TR S 0% 31122018 9130% - - 127,069 $
Blue lake Jinghui Road East, Kejiyuan, Tathu, Wusi,
Jiangsu Province PRC
EAE ThEESTHLESE 0% 31120018 9130% - - 107,714 $
Wusi Splendor Xihu Road Central, Xishan District, Wuxi,
Jiangsu Province PRC
R: i€ NENGES 0 WAE CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park

4F # Annual Report 2013




ERYERER R

Schedule of Principal Properties

HHAR HH BAELRE

Pjoject Location Stage of Completion

BRER
BBALAH
Expected

Completion Date

BRI

HEREmH

Group’s Interest Completed GFA
in the Project  Remaining Unsold
(k)

(Sqm)

B
R
GFA Under
Development
(593
(Sqm)

BElETT
GFA Under
Planning
(¥ik)
(Sqm)

EMEL TheFATREERE 0% 1112017 100.00% - - 174328
Dongjing 120 Project I Dongjing 120 Road, Tianning District,

Changzhou, Jiangsu Province PRC
Bl ThEFHTARES 0% 31122016 97.38% - 154490 -
Dragon City Paradise Qinye Road, Zhonglou District, Changzhou,

Walk Jiangsu Province PRC

RGHIVR R R 0% 155312016 10000% - 181,659 0445
Xiasha Mall Shangsha Road North, EDZ, Hangzhou,

Zhejiang Province, PRC
i TRHBMTRRERL G 0% 11209 10000% - - 269736
Chunlan Shishan Street, Gaoxin District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, PRC

Al Toul 947,667 995,73 2,688,432
R % NS 0: WAE CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Chairman’s Statement

I am pleased to present to the shareholders the business review and outlook of
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), for the year ended December 31, 2013.

RESULTS

In 2013, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB48.12 billion, representing
a 20% growth over the same period last year. Revenue was RMB41.51 billion,
representing an increase of 49% YoY, of which rental income from investment
properties amounted to around RMBG630 million, representing an increase of
31.3%. Profit attributable to shareholders was RMB8.04 billion. Excluding
minority interest and revaluation gains, core profit attributable to shareholders
was RMBG6.21 billion. Core net profit margin attributable to shareholders was
15%.

REVIEW OF 2013

The PRC real estate industry saw steady growth in 2013, as strong core demand
drove up both volume and prices in major cities. With a more concentrated
focus in first- and second-tier cities, our Group surpassed our annual sales target
and achieved sales of RMB48.1 billion. The 17 projects that our Group acquired
in 2012 were all launched for pre-sales in 2013, and achieved decent results.
Our Chongging and Beijing subsidiary companies each contributed RMB8-10
billion in sales. Sales of the Hangzhou and Chengdu subsidiary companies rose
to RMB6-8 billion levels. Each of our city subsidiary companies contributed
approximately RMB3 billion on average to the Group’s annual sales, and we
will continue to nurture more high quality strategic locations to create a more

balanced geographic exposure across the country.

A strong housing market has in turn led to more buoyant land market, causing
land prices to surge sharply throughout the year. By replenishing our landbank
during the relatively less competitive first and fourth quarters, the Group has
acquired 15 new parcels of land at reasonable costs, and under 13% average
premium paid relative to auction reserve prices. Land acquired was mainly
located in the suburbs of first-tier cities like Hangzhou, Shanghai and Beijing,
and city core districts of second-tier cities. During the period, the Group also
successfully acquired in Changsha, Kunming, Suzhou and Jinan; four new
strategic cities with robust economies and deep potentials in real estate markets.
To date, the Group has expanded its footprint to 21 cities in five major regions,
and shifted from our previous strategy of concentrating on large-scale suburban
projects to a broader and deeper market penetration. We strongly believe that by
rationalizing our landbank mix and maintaining discipline in land cost control,

we have established a better foundation for long-term healthy and sustainable

4F # Annual Report 2013
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Chairman’s Statement
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Since our IPO 5 years ago, the Group has built an enviable reputation in the
credit and equity markets alike and the experience gained will further enhance
the Group's ability to control its capital financing cost. In January 2013,
the Group has successfully capitalized on a window of opportunity in the
international capital market and issued a 10-year long term bond. The Group
also raised a HK$7.7 billion of syndicated loan in July 2013. Even when faced
with increasing challenges in the domestic capital market during the later half
of the year, the Group was still able to obtain development loans at benchmark
interest rates. With financing cost at only 6.58%, we have maintained our

leading position as a private sector property developer on this front.

The Group has successfully maintained stable growth in a fiercely competitive
commercial real estate market given our regional advantage and reputation.
Chengdu North Paradise Walk, which commenced operation at the end of
December 2013, marked the Group’s first large scale shopping mall project
outside of Chongqing, and has fast become the most popular large scale
shopping mall in Chengdu North. Furthermore, Beijing Changying Paradise
Walk, which is scheduled to commence operation in 2014, had successfully

attracted 600 potential tenants during its first tenant promotion activity.

As the second member from The China property industry to formally join the
United Nations Global Compact, a global corporate citizenship organization,
the Group is truly committed to be a good corporate citizen. In addition to
providing New Year Gifts worth RMB5 million to support the poor for five
consecutive years, Longfor has also launched a poverty support program to
help rural population to break the cycle of poverty through the development of
tourism model villages. For instance, through reforestation, agricultural wastes
management at source and rainwater diversion, the Group has successfully
created a 9.5 kilometers eco-logical corridor at Fuxian Lake in Yunnan, gaining
positive recognition from local residents, industry professionals and the

Government.
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Chairman’s Statement

OUTLOOK FOR 2014

Amid liquidity concerns abroad and the slower pace of economic growth in
China, we are taking a more cautious view on the property market in 2014
and believe there will be divergent performances for each regional market and
among different companies in the industry. We do expect to see more market

volatility and changing demand and supply dynamics in the future.

In 2014, the Group's key operating focus will be inventory clearance and cost
control. The organizational restructuring of the Group is largely completed,
which we believe has strengthened our sales execution, cost rationalization and
investment management capabilities. For the coming 6-12 month period, we
will strive to reduce the level of unsold inventory, thereby gradually improving
our sale through rate. We will also aim to enhance the Group«s return profile
through refreshing our residential product lines, and in particular improve the

cost control of our core demand focused apartment product.

In terms of capital management, the Group will continue to adhere to a
balanced approach and capitalize on timing the market to undertake high
quality investments. This is complemented by our proprietary customer value
research program, which provides us a more thorough understanding of our
customers’ needs and preferences, which in turn serves as a guide towards more
precise product positioning, and ultimately translates to enhanced profitability
for the Group. The Group will be taking on a more open attitude towards
cooperation and joint venture opportunities to expand investment potentials,

which creates another flexible and efficient means to manage our assets.

Beijing Changying Paradise Walk is scheduled to be launched at the end of
2014, this will be Longfor’s first full venture into the commercial property
market in first-tier cities and will mark a new era in the Group's strategic
expansion in commercial properties across the country. A series of prime
properties located in major transportation hubs in first-tier cities will be
launched in due course. These properties include Hangzhou Time Paradise
Walk (Xiasha District), Beijing Time Paradise Walk (Daxing District)
and Shanghai Hongqiao Paradise Walk. Faced with the challenges of rapid
e-commerce development, we are taking the initiative to create value for our
physical retail shops through active interaction with the customers online. Our
asset positioning in prime locations in core cities today remains as the key to

stable and sustainable income growth in the future.
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Longfor has been in the property business for 20 years. We believe the path to
sustainable growth in this competitive and cyclical business is not necessarily
foresight, or unique resources, but the appreciation of market cycles. We will
strive to deliver high quality growth in the future, not merely fixated on scale
expansion and will not be deterred from industry volatility. The property
development business in China continues to offer much scope for growth, as we
believe large scale people movement will lead to more divergent growth among
geographic regions and industry participants. This represents a risk for sure, but

also opportunities.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Wu Yajun

Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

YR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

TER-CAE S REBYEEREREERLA In 2013, revenue from property development business of the Group was
RWs 40221800 » MEFIER 49.3% © 203 RMB40.22 billion, representing an increase of 49.3% over last year. The Group
MRS AR 5 4,403,376 Tk (Fhd 272,594 T delivered 4,403,376 square meters of property in GFA terms, of which 272,594
FARBAERFE) ZF— 24 YEERE square meters were contributed from joint ventures. Gross profit margin of
BHEEMER27.0%  BEREAFEFE > L overall property development business decreased slightly to 27.0% in 2013 as
FERCE N EERE - F AT EE compared with that of last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
BERE NEBR THENEEE - =4 realization of the projects sold between the second half of 2011 and 2012 under
BRI ER B 9,738 78, Tk o the market fluctuation environment. Recognized average selling price was
RMB9Y,738 per square meter in 2013.

et PN
Chengdu Jinnan Paradise Walk

N

=1 0
TR <

HRAUE R R R
Chongging North Paradise Walk Chongqing West Paradise Walk
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Management Discussion an

F— o DE DA EEIEANFEEREEE Table 1: Breakdown of property development revenue by projects of the Group
A in 2013
* IR EFBLE * After deducting sales tax
i BRE A ST B
City Revenue Total GFA
TR R N R
2013 2012 2013 2012
NRWTFTT ARHTT FIrK RS
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 Sqgm Sqgm
LR R K Jem 5,191,518 188,151
Beijing Changying Paradise Walk  Beijing
B B 1L HLM 2,716,612 1,364,258 192,639 77,312
Hangzhou Rose & Gingko Town Hangzhou
HREE HE 2,490,340 1,944,486 329,683 251,584
Chongqing Hometown Chongqing
E T EL 2,474,805 830,463 361,290 72,851
Chongqing Toschna Villa Chonggqing
SR I UK JHHS 1,986,851 200,244
Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Chengdu
ERRRKXE EL 1,950,548 1,931,512 140,610 135,273
Chonggqing Time Paradise Walk Chongqing
HEU2 EL 1,789,499 2,160,977 272,319 327,085
Chongqing U2 Chongqing
ALK JHHS 1,704,542 1,234,370 198,397 117,947
Chengdu North Paradise Walk Chengdu
7Y % 7 e B RS 1,691,272 225,485
Xi'an Chianti Xi'an
GRuL 27 M 1,664,293 2,163,631 273,852 196,413
Changzhou Sunshine City Changzhou
U HE 1,559,976 1,598,207 156,500 100,957
Qingdao Rose & Gingko Coast Qingdao
WM M 1,244,751 119,853
Changzhou Dongjing 120 Project ~ Changzhou
B 7 e 7 HUM 1,151,607 118,830
Hangzhou Chianti Riverside Hangzhou
HE & H R ais) 1,099,855 73,150
Yantai Banyan Bay Yantai
Ny 1 i 999,709 66,822
Shanghai Azure Chianti Shanghai
JRHRE LR JAD 784,494 102,484
Chengdu Peace Hill County Chengdu
JEAR 3 A W K JEHS 767,971 889,462 154,177 144,972
Chengdu Flamenco Spain Chengdu

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi Hb & A B 2 ]
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Ningbo Rose & Gingko Coast
Hatlc] 87

Shanghai Sunshine City

754 MOCO

Xi'an MOCO

N TR

Changzhou Hongzhuang Project
U 4 B2

Hangzhou Shaoxing Hometown
BT

Qingdao F Plot

Lt L

Shanghai Long Xing Lu
LR

Chongqing Peace Hill County
EERE S

Shenyang Chianti

Gl

Qingdao Original

M NLEE

Wuxi Nineth Villa
HERERWT

Chongqing Chunsen Land
B

Qingdao Peace Hill County
JE R A

Beijing Azure Chianti

a2 i

Shanghai Rose and Ginkgo Villa
e AR i

Beijing Chianti Riverside

b3 Rl

Wuxi Rose & Gingko Villa II
e AR

Beijing Time Paradise Walk

i
City

43
Ningbo
i
Shanghai
(LS
Xi'an
HM
Changzhou
B
Hangzhou
HE
Qingdao
L
Shanghai
HE
Chonggqing
1]
Shenyang
HE
Qingdao
35
Wuxi
BB
Chongqing
HE
Qingdao
e
Beijing
L
Shanghai
(2
Beijing
35
Wuxi
e
Beijing

BEH
Revenue
—E =
2013
ARWFT T
RMB’000

752,412

742,759

691,484

683,456

626,271

609,995

593,531

384,120

368,417

338,760

291,539

275,518

272,956

244,399

221,957

221,727

217,665

211,958

R4
2012
ARHFT T
RMB’000

892,510

1,042,252

73,838

66,507

1,174,257

2,381,192

140,996

2,879,190

531,988

A ST A

Total GFA
“F-ZH
2013
FHK
Sqm

92,658

58,335

104,145

57,374

37,832

67,833

36,671

62,794

83,002

19,314

34,650

37,229

26,588

13,748

10,336

17,735

23,044

7,789

4F # Annual Report 2013

e S
2012
Pk
Sqm

65,550

66,227

19,341

8,024

118,507

113,979

6,170

229,264

58,252
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City Revenue Total GFA
—E-EE B St —E = —FR T
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR T ARHF T Pk Pk
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 Sqgm Sqm
8 4 S L i1 208,796 26,046
Shenyang Rose and Ginkgo Villa Shenyang
Jes A s Jent 189,716 303,992 2,561 8,635
Beijing Summer Palace Splendor Beijing
AR E 31 155,665 24,044
Ningbo Chianti Ningbo
Bl RS ) 121,808 14,619
Wuxi Peace Hill County Wuxi
JUAREAR R JSAS 91,314 464,308 10,407 44,601
Chengdu Bridge County Chengdu
7% AR IR % 83,574 1,255,309 10,280 168,243
Xi'an Fairy Castle Xi'an
ST L 37 56,611 949,776 7,783 101,035
Wuxi Rose and Ginkgo Villa Wuxi
JEHCRTT S Jem 44,793 91,505 9,788 24,822
Beijing Elegance Loft Beijing
HERL £ 44,423 7,021
Chongqing Sunshine Riverside Chongqing
e i1 39,564 2,690
Shenyang Fairy Castle Shenyang
TR/ BE T I JIHS 24,234 78,973 1,359 4,016
Chengdu Jade Town Chengdu
HAts 145,789 502,170 48,621 50,971
Others
Mgt 40,223,854 26,946,129 4,130,782 2,512,031
Total

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi Hb & A B 2 ]




W B % o A

Management Discussion and Analysis

CERCE S AEE SR EEE AR 481.2 The Group achieved contract sales of RMB48.12 billion (including RMB2.4
BT (BB A&EMERHEH AR 240 billion from joint ventures) in 2013, representing an increase of 20% as
fEI0) o W R R 209 o B A S AR compared to last year. The Group sold 4,261,199 square meters in total GFA,
4,261,199 F Ik - BEER R 2.0% o HEHME representing an increase of 2.0% over last year. Average selling price of GFA
ANRH11,29350 > W EFHR17.6% ° 19 - sold was RMB11,293 per square meter, representing an increase of 17.6% as
B - R=M - e R R A R S compared to last year. Contracted sales from regions of western China, Pan
S B N R 196,918 ~ 13544870 ~ 114.818 Bohai Rim, Yangtze River Delta, southern China and central China were
JC 26.0ROCH LT » ARSI A RS E  RMB19.69 billion, RMB13.54 billion, RMB11.48 billion, RMB2.60 billion
W 40.9 % > 28.1% ~ 23.9 % > 5.4% F1.7% ° and RMBO0.81 billion respectively, accounting for 40.9%, 28.1%, 23.9%, 5.4%

and 1.7% of the contracted sales of the Group, respectively.

F L DE AR [ A A Table 2:  Details of contracted sales of the Group in 2013

* TR B F B L * Before deducting sales tax

JHH i EERE A ST A

Project City Contracted sales Total GFA
AR BE# T Ik

RMB mn Sqm

B TLA HM 3,898 181,675

Hangzhou Chunjiang Land Hangzhou

m R K Jex 2,400 79,558

Beijing Changying Paradise Walk Beijing

AL R A Jex 2,389 93,466

Beijing Time Paradise Walk Beijing

A PN JACHR 2,282 204,706

Chengdu Jinnan Paradise Walk Chengdu

5% L KM 2,000 198,315

Xiamen Island in the City Xiamen

HER R HE 1,827 87,113

Chongqing Time Paradise Walk Chongqing

HEU2 HE 1,783 291,676

Chongqing U2 Chonggqing

HERE G 1,769 175,971

Chongqing Hometown Chonggqing

B MLHTR HE 1,613 145,994

Chongqing Ideal City Chongqing

AL B R ) Jent 1,599 35,922

Beijing Sunhe Beijing

BT ELR HE 1,562 162,481

Chongqing Bamboo Grove Chonggqing

U B L LM 1,548 93,401

Hangzhou Rose & Gingko Town Hangzhou

Aesthe 2l Jem 1,050 60,249

Beijing Hill of Good Hope Beijing
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Project

HELEEA

Chongqing Hilltop’s Garden
[y e

Xi'an Chianti

BRI

Changzhou Sunshine City
JRARIRF K A

Chengdu Time Paradise Walk
B

Hangzhou Ke Qiao
48 3 hde

Ningbo Rose & Gingko Coast
JRHR T 4T U6 55t

Chengdu Century Peak View
R WM R

Changsha Wang Cheng
JEHR 3 A X

Chengdu Flamenco Spain

G T

Chongqing Toschna Villa

PG %A BE

Xi'an Waft Yard

A ALIR K A

Chengdu North Paradise Walk
P 6 e 16

Yantai Banyan Bay
&I

Qingdao Original

it SR

Shanghai Fairy Castle
BT

Shenyang Hua Qian Shu
I K D

Dalian Dong Gang

T Py Sk

Shenyang Fairy Castle
EFEERT

Xiamen Jinjiang
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HE
Chongqing
(LA
Xi'an
HM
Changzhou
JHHR
Chengdu
AL
Shaoxing
B
Ningbo
JHHR
Chengdu
30)
Changsha
JAD
Chengdu
HE
Chongqing
(LA
Xi'an
JAD
Chengdu
ais)
Yantai
HE
Qingdao
L
Shanghai
1]
Shenyang
PN
Dalian
12
Shenyang
& 7

Xiamen

B
Contracted sales

AR T
RMB mn

987

986

937

935

866

837

836

813

809

735

725

714

703

676

661

657

634

629

601

s g
Total GFA
TR
Sqm

105,033

129,838

135,563

101,088

87,174

89,701

77,112

86,301

133,300

122,187

50,007

72,995

50,614

65,551

32,291

73,332

28,266

75,116

61,084
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Project

N R

Changzhou Hongzhuang Project
B

Qingdao Peace Hill County

HEEER

Yixing Hilltop’s Garden

BB

Qingdao Rose & Gingko Coast

B4 A

Hangzhou Ding Qiao

e AR

Wuxi Fragrance Chianti

JRAR LR

Chengdu Peace Hill County

VG %7K BB

Xi'an Crystal Town

KA

Dalian Rose & Gingko Hill

B A B

Hangzhou Chianti Riverside

Lt L

Shanghai Long Xing Lu

7% MOCO HI

Xi'an MOCO

L iR R

Shanghai Azure Chianti (Bai Yin Lu)

BB

Qingdao An Le

R

Qingdao F Plot

R

Chongging La Defense

AR

Beijing Chianti Riverside

{5 5 % ONE

Shenyang Tangning ONE

L BEAN I

Beijing Summer Palace Splendor

i &

City Contracted sales

AR Wi # T
RMB mn

WM 561

Changzhou

HE 510

Qingdao

HE 482

Yixing

HE 476

Qingdao

HLM 457

Hangzhou

i) 421

Wuxi

JHHR 412

Chengdu

1% 404

Xi'an

K 372

Dalian

HLM 361

Hangzhou

L 332

Shanghai

573 272

Xi'an

L 267

Shanghai

HE 264

Qingdao

HE 255

Qingdao

B 242

Chonggqing

(2 214

Beijing

12 206

Shenyang

e 201

Beijing

s yiap
Total GFA
TR
Sqm

75,865
54,333
39,800
58,024
29,328
40,342
50,937
44,038
20,701
46,598
13,273
38,065
16,914
24,006
34,590
35,048
16,466
26,169

2,560
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JHH i R A T
Project City Contracted sales Total GFA
AR HT Pk
RMB mn Sqm
B K A Ak 2 178 19,708
Kunming Crystal Sunshine City Kunming
S A i) 160 17,254
Wuxi Rose & Gingko Villa II Wuxi
(RS K 146 9,619
Xi'an Starry Street Xi'an
R R B 133 18,571
Chongqing Chunsen Land Chonggqing
B ARG S B 129 20,002
Ningbo Chianti Ningbo
HoAt 207 121,908
Others
48,123 4,261,199

SHF-EET AT R ARECERE
REEFW SRS ERB AR 75800 W
Ty S04 81 J5 K > Jy AR SR TR AR S S A TR

TR BE B A -

As of December 31, 2013, the Group had RMB57.5 billion (derived from 5.04
million square meters) sold but unrecognized contracted sales which formed a

solid basis for the Group's future growth in revenue.

A B AL
Yantai Banyan Bay

E il
Chongqing Toschna Villa
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SN BE Tk
Chengdu Jade Town
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EEED R O EMERS - k=T —=4F
TZA=Zt—H AEHEMERGTREL
763,349 F J7 K (4 B 48 7 58 1 1 /5 921,977
FHK) R R 97.6% o ERBA
Re7Et MEERBENAEIRAANR
Mot BEFE LT 31.53% - Hp» K>
Bl ZI &M e 580.7% ~ 15.3%
M4.0% > HAEWAMNIERRD I 534.5%
19.7% 118.8% °

= DR SR E B S AT
* JIREERLE

REmR
GFA
BRI K Chongging North Paradise Walk 120,778
EX Jip SR Chongging West Paradise Walk 76,031
EERAKE S Chongging Time Paradise Walk 160,343
Phase
FAR ALK B Chengdu North Paradise Walk 215,536
PR Paradise Walk Subtotal 572,688
B Chongqing Crystal Castle 17,648
W =T4 Chengdu Three Thousand Mall 38,043
BREERENY Chongging Starry Street 54,618
TREEEIN Chongging Fairy Castle 29,413
T ERELE Beijing Starty Street 6,320
BEUH Chongging University City 15,515
ity Others
BBE NG Starry Street Subtotal 161,557
EEMOCO Chongging MOCO 29,104
REE Nt MOCO Subtotal 29,104
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group maintains a prudent property investment strategy. Currently, all
investment properties of the Group are shopping malls under three major
product series, namely Paradise Walk series, which are metropolitan shopping
malls, Starry Street series, which are community shopping malls, and MOCO,
which are mid to high-end household and lifestyle shopping centers. As of
December 31, 2013, the Group has investment properties of 763,349 square
meters (921,977 square meters in GFA with parking space included) which
have commenced operation with an occupancy rate of 97.6%. Total rent reached
about RMB670 million. Rental income, net of sales tax, was about RMB630
million, representing an increase of 31.3% as compared with last year. The series
of Paradise Walk, Starry Street and MOCO accounted for 80.7%, 15.3% and
4.0% of the total rental respectively, and recorded increases of 34.5%, 19.7%
and 18.8% respectively.

Table 3: Breakdown of rental income of the Group in 2013

* After deducting sales tax
St “F-T

2013 2012
ik N
k%
GIETIUN il R HAmA fhiless HAH®  Change of
Rental FA Occupancy Rental AR Occupancy rental
income % of Rental rate income % of Rental rate income

ARFTx AR #TFx
RMB 000 RMB 000

308,557 48.6% 100.0% 271,296 56.1% 99.5% 13.7%
108,907 17.2% 99.6% 108,628 22.5% 99.5% 0.3%
94,073 14.8% 92.2% 773 0.2% 94.7%  12,069.9%
329 0.1% 74.8% N/A N/A N/A N/A
511,866 80.7% 98.5% 380,697 78.8% 99.3% 34.5%
20,156 3.2% 90.6% 16,534 3.4% 100.0% 21.9%
21,100 3.3% 83.4% 22,955 4.7% 96.8% -8.1%
22,678 3.6% 93.0% 11,416 2.4% 91.8% 98.7%
11,064 1.7% 100.0% 10,830 2.2% 100.0% 2.2%
11,537 1.8% 97.9% 10,633 2.2% 88.6% 8.5%
4,518 0.7% 93.9% 792 0.2% 87.7% 470.5%
6,135 1.0% N/A 8,022 1.7% N/A -23.5%
97,188 15.3% 92.3% 81,182 16.8% 95.5% 19.7%
25,545 4.0% 100.0% 21,494 4.4% 97.3% 18.8%
25,545 4.0% 100.0% 21,494 4.4% 97.3% 18.8%

CHERH A% Total for projects that had 763,349

commenced operation

634,599 100.0% 97.6% 483,373 100.0% 98.8% 31.3%
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AEBARMERAENNSGHoM > Rtk
R 76,5 BT Ik o o RERIITERE
A 721K BOE R 4.4 EFI0K -
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The Group has 6 shopping malls under construction with a total GFA of about
765,000 square meters. The total areas under construction of Paradise Walk
series and Starry Street series are about 721,000 square meters and 44,000

square meters respectively.

Table 4: Breakdown of investment properties under construction of the Group

VUE Va8 in 2014 t0 2016

T T B 3 IR ]

Estimated
Commencement ) 2 SR A
of Operation Planned GFA
SN
Sqm
TR R 0 1 [ Chongqing Time Paradise Walk Phase II Section I 2014 156,888
JE At R K Beijing Changying Paradise Walk 2014 224,165
L LEEAWNG Hangzhou Time Paradise Walk 2015 148,831
AR IR KA 1 0 Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Phase I 2014 63,145
N REIR R A Changzhou Longcheng 2016 128,033
KA /et Paradise Walk Subtotal 721,062
RS EREAUN Si) Xi'an Longfor Starry Street (Daxing Store) 2014 44,263
BPLE /NG Starry Street Subtotal 44,263
E#EHE A5 Project under construction in total 765,325

|

MR EYREELR T ARE %
SRS BRI AR 25 98

o

# ] Pl

SR BRGERER  EERRY
FL T~ BRON ~ I e 5 T A0 T o 1 S
FNBAGENT n ftf » 42 18— M B AT BOBH S A A
(7] 19 B HELY LL B R 25 AR R 0.08% %.2.25% o
(W] IR 94 2] I A 0 B 5 SR 1 A A5 A i
WERE > MG HE— 25 AT 88 B AR
S5 BR S A A ) B 6 BRI B LL X AR R
0.13% % 1.84% °
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Attributable to the construction and commencement of operation of new
investment properties, the valuation gain of investment properties of the Group
amounted to RMB2.59 billion in 2013.

COST CONTROL

During 2013, in order to support its business development, the Group
established management teams and recruited key personnel for newly-entered
cities, such as Changsha, Kunming, Suzhou and Jinan, the portion of the
Group's general and administrative expenses to the total contract sales increased
by 0.08% to 2.25% as compared with last year. With the sales team focusing
on the effectiveness and preciseness of the sales strategy and their further efforts
committed to the routine control of the efficiency of marketing costs, the
portion of sales expenses to the total contract sales only increased by 0.13% to

1.84% as compared with last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

Contribution of joint ventures (JVs) during 2013 mainly came from the Group’s
49.6%-owned Bamboo Grove Project in Chongging and 72.0%-owned Century
Peak View Project in Chengdu. These two projects delivered 272,594 square
meters. The attributable profit after tax of the Group in JVs was RMB320

million.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expenses comprised of PRC enterprise income tax and land
appreciation tax. The enterprise income tax and the land appreciation tax of the
Group in 2013 were RMB2.84 billion and RMB1.74 billion, respectively. The

total income tax expenses for the period amounted to RMB4.58 billion.

PROFITABILITY

The core net profit margin of the Group (the ratio of profit attributable to
equity shareholders excluding minority interest and revaluation gain to revenue)
decreased from last year’s 19.4% to 15.0%, which was mainly attributable to

the fall in gross profit margin in the market fluctuation period.

LAND BANK REPLENISHMENT
As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s total land bank was 39.49 million square

meters or 35.76 million square meters on an attributable basis. The average unit
land cost was RMB2,050 per square meter, accounting for 18.2% of unit price
of current contracted sales. In terms of regional breakdown, land bank in Pan
Bohai Rim, western China, Yangtze River Delta, southern China and central
China accounted for 39.5%, 34.8%, 17.5%, 5.3% and 2.9% of the total land

bank, respectively.

In 2013, the Group has acquired new land bank with total GFA of 5.59
million square meters, 31.0%, 26.3%, 22.2% and 20.5% of which are located
in western China, Yangtze River Delta, Pan Bohai Rim, and central China

respectively. The average acquisition unit cost was RMB3,120 per square meter.

In 2013, the Group acquired presence in four cities successively, namely
Changsha, Kunming, Suzhou and Jinan, which increased the number of cities
covered by the Group from 17 at the end of last year to 21. The Group also
strategically penetrated into central China region. At the same time, moving the
investment focus closer to city cores and controlling the project size laid a well
foundation for improving the turnover cycle of the Group's properties available

for sale.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group successfully acquired

a land parcel at Yinzhou Investment and Venture Centre at Ningbo with an
expected gross floor area of approximately 61,000 square meter, a land parcel
at the cultural and sports centre in Hangzhou with an expected gross floor area
of approximately 411,000 square meter, a land parcel at Xiju in Beijing with
an expected gross floor area of approximately 220,000 square meter (100,000
square meter in attributable expected gross floor area), a land parcel at Jinyang
in Chengdu with an expected gross floor area of approximately 85,000 square
meter and a land parcel at Simatai in Beijing with an expected gross floor area
of approximately 220,000 square meter (121,000 square meter in attributable

expected gross floor area).
The geographic spread of the land bank of the Group was as follows:

Table 5: Breakdown of land bank of the Group

o [ 4] A ST Fii i Lol T R S B Fifi e sl
Region City Total GFA % of Total Attributable GFA % of Total
Fok Frrok
Sqm Sqm
v e [ Jex 1,639,752 4.2% 1,330,200 3.7%
PanBohaiRim Beijing
i3] 3,680,204 9.3% 3,543,394 9.9%
Shenyang
5 1,358,432 3.4% 1,283,911 3.6%
Qingdao
A 7,609,056 19.3% 6,947,068 19.4%
Yantai
gk} 345,471 0.9% 315,415 0.9%
Jinan
K 1,064,699 2.7% 689,626 1.9%
Dalian
it 15,697,614 39.8% 14,109,614 39.5%
Subtotal
e f 5 =3l 1,144,664 2.9% 1,045,078 2.9%
Central China Changsha
it 1,144,664 2.9% 1,045,078 2.9%
Subtotal
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Hi [ W A S T FirAds Ee HE 25 2 S T B FirAds Ee 1
Region City Total GFA % of Total Attributable GFA % of Total
Tk Tk
Sqm Sqm
[ G 4 [ R 8,308,496 21.0% 7,342,521 20.5%
Western China Chonggqing
T 2,761,894 7.0% 2,387,381 6.7%
Chengdu
W% 1,955,433 5.0% 1,790,550 5.0%
Xi'an
Ei% 827,741 2.1% 755,728 2.1%
Yuxi
233l 174,354 0.4% 159,186 0.4%
Kunming
/et 14,027,918 35.5% 12,435,366 34.8%
Subtotal
AL =AMt 5 i 910,644 2.3% 871,362 2.4%
YangtzeRiverDelta Shanghai
g 921,720 2.3% 841,530 2.4%
Wuxi
M 1,521,992 3.9% 1,488,467 4.2%
Changzhou
HE 308,237 0.8% 281,420 0.8%
Yixing
B 1,231,792 3.1% 1,178,358 3.3%
Hangzhou
AREL 241,387 0.6% 220,387 0.6%
Shaoxing
B 751,526 1.9% 727,918 2.0%
Ningbo
M 645,250 1.6% 645,250 1.8%
Suzhou
/It 6,532,548 16.5% 6,254,692 17.5%
Subtotal
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Ho ] A ST A J A B 4l HE 25 2 S B F A L Al
Region City Total GFA % of Total Attributable GFA % of Total
F Ik T Ik
Sqm Sqm
e o b [ [ 585,266 1.5% 546,404 1.5%
Southern China Xiamen
SR 1,501,373 3.8% 1,370,754 3.8%
Quanzhou
/NG 2,086,639 5.3% 1,917,158 5.3%
Subtotal
s 39,489,383 100.0% 35,761,908 100.0%
Total
LB

Shenyang Rose & Gingko Villa

iRt iRl KR L
Shanghai Long Xing Lu Dalian Rose & Gingko Villa
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Table 6: Breakdown of Land acquisition in 2013

| @@ﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ Ik
en té&usslon and Analys1s S 4

FEAHE RS
ol HH AW i Attributable A I A ST
Region Project City Interest Site Area Total GFA
% Frrok Tk
% Sgm Sqm
TR nEE N 91.30% 196,000 171,663
Pan Bohai Rim Wuchaying Dalian
RAE 1] 100.00% 117,009 414,875
Changbai Island ~ Shenyang
e e 91.30% 136,298 345,471
West Passenger Jinan
Terminal
0] Jex 31.04% 136,680 311,295
Shahe Beijing
it 585,987 1,243,304
Subtotal
e o i [ Al R 91.30% 306,955 520,373
Central China Gushan Changsha
A= R 91.30% 343,857 624,291
Gushan Phase 2 Changsha
Wit 650,812 1,144,664
Subtotal
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Wl JHH AR i Attributable A T A R
Region Project City Interest Site Area Total GFA
% FIrk Pk
% Sqm Sqm
B G A [ R =E 100.00% 234,024 1,066,762
Western China Weidianyuan Chonggqing
BlE =E 100.00% 60,359 313,671
Guanyingiao Chongging
LIPS RS 91.30% 46,998 181,630
Aviation City Xi'an
5N 29 91.30% 34,300 174,355
Minda Kunming
/Wit 375,681 1,736,418
Subtotal
VL= o [ THE L 91.30% 99,300 272,872
Yangtze River Delta Dinggiao Hangzhou
ES e L 91.30% 36,857 105,929
Fairy Castle Shanghai
Bty i 100.00% 81,637 402,491
Liuhang Shanghai
i L 91.30% 12,911 42,136
Qingpu Shanghai
B HEM 100.00% 114,193 645,251
Chunlan Suzhou
/it 344,898 1,468,679
Subtotal
At 1,957,378 5,593,065
Total

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi Hb & A B 2 ]




A B AR DL

REF—ZF+ A=+ —H AEENEGS
R/ AR 377.0M800 - AEEFRER(A
T AR PR LURE 22 080 2 57.9% > TEFBE A A
R 146.8 87T » AL B {5 M #7453 BB+ (2
ML) KoBal (B) » ERELTRE -

A S SRR 62.4% LA N REESHE > B4
37.6% LASNERHE -

REMESERHNR 15980 & H T
RN T 4.39% %2 9.5% (BT B 2 ) 7
B BB E ST BA RS E o B E IR
BALABEHIIL R —E——F - H=1—
Hi35.8% L2 42.1% R _F— =4+
AZ+—H  AREE T2 8 A 5 AR F %
6.58% 5 I B HAER M 41 F R I 2 465 -
AR TS A SRR L £ 45.89% »

i SN L R P A N R
TR > A A R S O S A A O IS e A
Ao R AREEAES IR
IsEFETI0FEMES > RHAET75% M
BT — AR A BT 7 AR A O 2 1 R R
6.875% Rk o —F—Z4FELH > AEBE3
FARTTZ AT SR ok > 1815 63.85 SR S 1.65
B4 QLRI 76,720 s M) () 4 47 0 v i
RS BRI R 2 Hibor+3.10% e

W B % o A

Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s consolidated borrowings amounted
to RMB37.70 billion. The net debt to equity ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group was 57.9%. Cash in hand reached RMB14.68 billion. The
credit rating of the Group was BB+ by Standard & Poor and Bal by Moodys,

with the outlook maintained as “stable”.

Approximately 62.4% of the Group’s total borrowings were denominated in

RMB, while 37.6% were denominated in foreign currencies.

Approximately RMB15.9 billion of the Group’s consolidated borrowings
were quoted at fixed rates ranging from 4.3% per annum to 9.5% per annum
depending on the tenors of the loans, and the rest were quoted at floating rates.
Ratio of fixed interest debt to total debt increased from 35.8% at December
31, 2012 to 42.1%. As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s average cost of
borrowing was 6.58% per annum. The average term of loan was extended from

4.1 years to 4.6 years. The ratio of unsecured debt to total debt was 45.8%.

In 2013, the Group successfully completed two financing transactions in
the international capital market, which effectively extended the term of
indebtedness of the Group and reduced the cost of financing. In January 2013,
the Group successfully issued 10-year bonds of US$500 million at a nominal
interest rate of 6.75%. The interest rate was lower than the 7-year bond issued
in October 2012 at a nominal interest rate of 6.875%. In July 2013, the Group
entered into a lending agreement with a syndicate of 13 banks, and obtained
4-year transferrable fixed term loan financing of HK$6,385 million and US$165
million in a total of approximately HK$7,672 million at an interest rate of
Hibor plus 3.10%.

Eatlie oo
Ningbo Rose & Gingko Coast
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EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As of December 31, 2013, the Group had 12,012 full-time employees in China
and Hong Kong. 3,099 of these employees worked in the property development
division, 337 in the property investment division, and 8,576 in the property
management division. Average age of our employees is 31.3 years old. In the
property development and investment divisions, approximately 85.0% of the
employees have bachelor degrees and 13.3% of the employees have master

degrees or above.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, work
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total compensation of
the employees consisted of base salary, cash bonus and share-based rewards.
Cash bonus is a major part of senior employees’ cash compensation. The gross
amount of such bonus is determined from, amongst other things, the ranking of
the Group’s budget fulfillment ratio and loyalties of customers, which is then
assessed and allocated to individual subsidiaries according to the results of a

balanced scorecard and profitability.

PROSPECTS

During 2014, the real estate market in China will maintain its steady
conditions. However, the development within the industry will become more
diverse. In view of a sustainable growth in future, the Group will persist in
further broadening the framework on regional basis, developing close to urban
area, controlling over scale, and considering commercial feasibility in basic
strategies. This will improve the turnover rate of saleable resources at a high
level. The Group will continue to pro-actively drive our sales by maintaining
launch momentum of our saleable resources and strengthening the disposal
of unsold inventory. In the meantime, the Group will further consolidate and
develop cost control measures, so that gross profit margin can achieve sound

growth in future.

The Group now has 61 key projects for sale, among which 12 are brand new
projects and 28 will launch new phases and new products in 2014. The products
of the Group will cater for different groups of customers, including first-time
home buyers, upgraders and business operators, while the proportion of different
product types will be adjusted in response to market changes, thus enabling the
Group to grasp the demand and opportunities in the complicated and volatile

market.

The Group (including joint ventures) has completed the construction of about
5,620,000 square meters of properties in 2013. In 2014, the Group plans to
complete construction of approximately 7,000,000 square meters of properties,
most of which will be completed in the second half of the year. The construction

and sales of projects maintain smooth progress.
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For investment properties, the construction of Hangzhou Time Paradise
Walk, Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Phase I and Changzhou Longcheng
Paradise Walk had began during the year. Chengdu North Paradise Walk has
commenced operation by the end of this year. Beijing Time Paradise Walk,
Shanghai Honggqiao Paradise Walk and Chengdu Jinnan Paradise Walk are
expected to begin construction in the coming year. Chongqing Time Paradise
Walk Phase II Section I, Beijing Changying Paradise Walk and Chengdu Time
Paradise Walk Phase I are expected to complete and commence operation in
2014. These projects lay a solid foundation for the future growth in rental

income from investment properties of the Group.

Amid the ever-changing market environment, the Group will reasonably plan
and arrange investment and operating expenses in accordance with its cash
inflow, in order to persistently implement a prudent cost control strategy in
respect of financial management. Whilst ensuring a sound financial position and
healthy debt ratio for the Company, external cooperation will also be enhanced.
It is expected that the Company can further capitalize on more opportunities in

the market and achieve a win-win situation.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere appreciation
to all of our employees for their diligence and all of our shareholders for their

support over the past year.

¥
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Wu Yajun, aged 49, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on December 21, 2007, and is the Chairman of the Board of the
Group. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and Investment
Committee of the Company. Madam Wu joined the Group since its inception
in 1994. She graduated from Northwestern Polytechnical University (/5 b
T % K %) majoring in navigation engineering and obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering in 1984. Madam Wu serves as a representative of the
National Peoples’ Congress (4B A RALE K &), a member of the Standing
Committee of the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce (% B T. %
W), vice-chairperson of the Federation of Industry & Commerce of Chongqing
Municipality (E B T T. 7 H) and of the Real Estate Branch Chamber of
the Chongqing General Chamber of Commerce (EE B 117 42 7 & [5 Hb 7€ 7
). Madam Wu has extensive experience in property development, property

investment and property management.

Mr. Shao Mingxiao, aged 47, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and a member of the Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. Shao joined
the Group in 2006. He graduated from Renmin University of China (¥
N B K ) and obtained a Master’s degree in Economics in 1992. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Shao served as the deputy general manager of Hangyu
Economic Development Company (i 583 #% & A PR /A 7)), a subsidiary of
Beijing Capital Group (L5 E #SAIZELE), and Beijing Xinlian Xiechuang
Real Estate Development Limited (jlﬂ o WJ E” = b PR AR A )
respectively. Mr. Shao was also the general manager of Beijing Zhongjing
Yiyuan Real Estate Development Limited (3% i 5t 250 7 b 2 B 85 FR A

7)) and the director of the real estate development division of Beijing Hualian

Group (It HEHAE ).

Mr. Zhou Dekang, aged 46, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Vice President of the Group and the
General Manager of the R&D and Cost Department and a member of the
Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in
2005. He graduated from the Architecture Institute of Chongqing Jianzhu
University (H B SR K25 LA L) and obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in Architecture in 1989. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou served as the
head of the construction division of the Chongqing City Planning and Design
Research Institute (FE BT B 5EFHATFE BE 2L AT ) and a director in charge
of design at Chengdu Bo Rui Real Estate Development Limited ( BER 855
HER AR ).
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Mr. Qin Lihong, aged 40, was appointed as executive director of the Company
on September 8, 2009, and is the Chief Marketing Officer of the Group. Mr.
Qin joined the Group in 2008. He graduated from the School of International
Studies of Peking University (4t 5 K £ B B B 1R £ Bt) and obtained a
Master’s degree in Law in 1999 and obtained a Master’s degree in Public
Policy (MPP) from John Fitzgerald Kennedy School of Government, Harvard
University in 2001. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qin worked in the
marketing department of Procter & Gamble (Guangzhou) Limited (E%J”%f{g
A BRZ2 A ), Roland Berger Strategy Consultants and Anhui Chery Automobile
Sales and Service Company (‘ZHIZ HiniXHEH & A FR/AF]). Mr. Qin resigned
as the director of the Group on 10 April 2014.

Mr. Feng Jinyi, aged 42, was appointed as executive director of the Company
on June 3, 2011, and is the Vice President of the Group and the General
Manager of Operation and Investment Development Department and a member
of the Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. Feng joined the Group in
2008. He graduated from Changsha Communication College ({% ¥ 2 # £
Bi) (currently known as Changsha University of Science & Technology (& ¥
T RE)) and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1994. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Feng worked for No. 3 Aviation Engineering Design
Institute Co., Ltd. (PACEE = B LRE DR Be A BR A 7l ), Shanghai
Kangqiao Bandao (Group) Co., Ltd. (k 5 G %(ﬂ% B A R Al and
Zhejiang Jubao Real Estate Co., Led. (WITLRAE B A WA #).

Mr. Wei Huaning, aged 36, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
and a member of the Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. Wei joined
the Group in 2006 and has served as the General Manager of the Ministry of
Finance, the Head of the Strategic Management Centre and the Operational
Management Centre of the Group. Mr. Wei graduated from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics ( | Bf &8 K& ) majoring in accounting
and obtained a Doctoral degree in 2005. Prior to joining the Group, he has
previously worked as a researcher at Center for Strategy and Execution of

Cheung Kong Research Institute in Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIV DIRECTORS
Mr. Frederick Peter CHURCHOUSE, aged 64, was appointed as independent

non-executive director and member of the Audit Committee of the Company
on November 1, 2009. He has been involved in Asian securities and property
investment markets for more than 30 years. Currently, he is a private investor
including having his own private family office company, Portwood Co. Ltd. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Hysan Development Company
Limited (a company listed on the SEHK) and a board member of Macquarie
Retail Asset Management Limited. He is also the publisher and author of “Asia

Hard Assets Report”.

In 2004, Mr. Churchouse set up an Asian investment fund under LIM Advisors.
He acted as a director of LIM Advisors and as Responsible Officer until the
end of 2009. Prior to this, Mr. Churchouse worked at Morgan Stanley as a
managing director and advisory director from early 1988. He acted in a variety
of roles including head of regional research, regional strategist and head of
regional property research. Mr. Churchouse gained a Bachelor of Arts degree
and a Master of Social Sciences degree from the University of Waikato in New
Zealand.

Mr. CHAN Chi On, Derek, aged 50, was appointed as independent non-
executive director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on November 1, 2009. Mr. Chan is
Chairman of Halcyon Capital Limited and Halcyon Securities Limited, which is
engaged in corporate finance and securities business in Hong Kong respectively.
Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree
in Social Sciences (majoring in Economics) and from the Hong Kong University
of Science & Technology with a Master degree in Business Administration. He
worked for The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and has been Executive
Director of Haitong International Securities Group Limited (formerly Taifook
Securities Group Limited) and head of its corporate finance division for 16 years
until end of 2012. He is an independent non-executive director of Yuexiu REIT
Asset Management Limited (manager of Yuexiu REIT, which is listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong) and China Conch Venture Holdings Limited.
He is also an adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chan possesses over 20 years of

experience in the financial services industry.
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Mr. Xiang Bing, aged 51, was appointed as independent non-executive
director, member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company on November 1, 2009. He obtained a Doctoral degree in
Accounting from the University of Alberta in Canada. Mr. Xiang is currently
the founding dean and professor of the Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. Mr. Xiang is an independent non-executive director of Dan Form
Holdings Company Limited, HC International, Inc., Enerchina Holdings
Limited, Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited, China Dongxiang (Group) Co.,
Ltd., Peak Sport Products Co., Limited and Guangzhou Automobile Group Co.,
Ltd., all of which are listed on the SEHK. Mr. Xiang is an independent non-
executive director of Perfect World Co., Ltd. and E-House (China) Holdings
Limited, both of which are listed in the U.S.. Mr. Xiang is an independent
non-executive director of Yunnan Baiyao Group Co., Ltd and Shanxi Qinchuan
Machinery Development Co., Ltd., both of which are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. In the past 3 years, Mr. Xiang was an independent director of
Little Sheep Group Limited, a company listed on the SEHK and an independent
director of LDK Solar Co., Ltd., a company listed in the U.S..

Mr. Zeng Ming, aged 43, was appointed as independent non-executive director
of the Company on June 3, 2011. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Zeng is currently the chief strategy officer
of Alibaba Group. Mr. Zeng obtained his Ph.D in International Business and
Strategy from University of Illinois at Urbana-Champain, USA in 1998 and a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Fudan University (& H K £ ) in
1991. Mr. Zeng was the professor of Strategy at Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business, Beijing China and a faculty member at INSEAD, France.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wei Jian, aged 39, is the general manager of the Commercial Properties
Operating Department of the Group and a member of the Investment
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wei joined the Group in 2008. He graduated
from Tianjin University (X 7 K £%) and obtained a Master’s degree in
Management Science and Engineering in 2000. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Wei worked for Procter & Gamble (Guangzhou) Lted. (ENEBERA A,
Roland Berger Strategy Consultants and Tiens Group ( K Hi4E M ).

Mr. Yuan Chun, aged 39, was appointed as the General Manager of the
Branding and Marketing Department of the Group on 1 January 2014. Mr.
Yuan joined the Group in 2010 and has served as the General Manager of
Hangzhou Longfor. He graduated from the Tongji University ([f] 7 K &)
and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Heating and Ventilating in 1996. Prior to

joining the Group, Mr. Yuan worked for China Overseas Land & Investment

Led (RIS RA R ).

Mr. Zhou Hongbin, aged 44, is the general manager of the Properties
Management Department of the Group. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in 1999.
He graduated from China University of Mining and Technology ("' [ % 3£
K %) majoring in Financial Accounting and obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in Management in 1992. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou worked for
Chongqing Design & Research Institute of the Ministry of Coal Industry (1K

TR E BRI TR ).

Mr. Li Chaojiang, aged 45, is the general manager of the Human Resources
Department of the Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in 2011. He graduated from
Yangzhou Teachers College (%51 M Bt ) majoring in Chinese Language &
Literature and obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Li worked for P & G (China) Co., Ltd. (B FRHARAFD,
Ericsson (China) Communications Co. Ltd. ("E"j%( H )@%ﬁ R/
and Zovie Real Estate Group Co, Led. ( * B &G 55 b 28 45 B A FRA F] ).

Mr. Wang Yajun, aged 42, is the general manager of the Strategic
Development Department of the Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2012.
He graduated from Arizona State University in U.S. and obtained a Master’s
degree in Business Administration (MBA) in 2001. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang worked for Beijing Environmental Resources Management Co., Ltd.
(AL R G R AE /A A ), United Technologies Corporation, DOW Chemical
Company and Mckinsey Consultancy Company.
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Mr. Cui Hengzhong, aged 46, is the general manager in charge of the Group's
Chongqing business operations. Mr. Cui joined the Group in 2007. He
graduated from Beijing University of Technology (At T3 K5 ) majoring in
Structural Engineering and obtained a Master’s degree in Engineering in 1997.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cui worked for Jiangsu Urban Construction
Engineering Company (VL # & Y T £ 2 TF2 48 /4 7)), Building Research
Institute of the Ministry of Metallurgical Industry (7 4 # £ 5 1F 7% 42 Br )
and Beijing Wanda Real Estate Development Co., Led. (bt B I b B g
HIRZH).

Mr. Song Hailin, aged 41, is the general manager in charge of the Group's
Beijing business operations. Mr. Song joined the Group in 2011. Mr. Song
graduated from the Department of Architectural Design and Theory of Tsinghua
University in 2001 and obtained a Doctoral degree in Engineering. Mr. Song
was a visiting scholar for Urban and Regional Studies (SPURS) of Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (MIT) in the United States from 2009 to 2011. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Song was the president of the Architectural Design and
Research Institute of Tsinghua University (E ¥R B REZFI AP and
during such office, he acted as the temporary Deputy District Chief of Fushan

District of Yantai in Shandong Province.

Mr. Li Jun, aged 41, is the general manager in charge of the Group’s Shenyang
business operations. Mr. Li joined the Group in 2006. Mr. Li graduated
from Beijing University of Technology (b 51 T. 3 K ) majoring in civil
engineering and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1996. He then
obtained a master’s degree with a special major in national economics from the
Central University of Finance and Economics (I EF 8K ). Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Li worked for Beijing Beichen Innovation Hi-tech Development
Limited (At 5 bR AT = B 8 R A BR A ) ), Markgold International
Housing Land Consulting (Beijing) Co., Led. (255 4 15 [ b 28 5 #) (IL 70)
A B 72 7)) and Beichen Property Development Company (1t Ji [ 2 B %
NHE).

Mr. Zeng Li, aged 47, is the general manager in charge of the Group's Xi'an
business operations. Mr. Zeng joined the Group in 2001. He graduated from
Zhengzhou Grain College (5 J1 fit & 22 B ) (currencly known as Zhengzhou
Institute of Technology (¥ M T. #2 £ B¢)) majoring in Industrial and Civil
buildings with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1988. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Zeng worked for Chongqing Grain Storage and Transportation
Company at its preparatory office ( L BEF T He £ i A 7] i B E) and
Chonggqing Jiliang Real Estate Development Co., Led. (Z2 B [ 75 Hi 7 B 4%
AT,

4F # Annual Report 2013




HERFEMRE @A%ﬁaﬁﬁ’ N,
Blographles of Directors and Seﬂim'

FALKE: > BUE 395 MARENTBERN
R ZIRAERFF/EMARER > &
SRR LR ERFEERE - UG TR
BB R oF R AEREREERE >
5 TR LA o ARG - ZEE8E
TR T 1 (6 ) PO A PR W) 2R e
A

BE RS BUE4AL > 2R B S E TS
MR o BRI & — A MAAR R -

HEAR - NN FERERE R TR
(BREBEEERE) TREHE G TEEL
BT o MOAASE BT > B 5 AR i —
S~ R E A R R o

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi Hb & A B 2 ]

Mr. Peng Jiang, aged 39, is the general manager in charge of the Group’s
Qingdao business operations. Mr. Peng joined the Group in 2008. Mr. Peng
graduated from the Tongji University (] 7§ K &
degree in Engineering in 1997, and graduated from Tsinghua University (1 %

) and obtained a Bachelor’s

&) and obtained a Master degree in Engineering in 2001. Prior to joining to
Group, Mr. Peng worked for China Resources Land (Beijing) Limited (3£ &
b (A6 ) B A B2 7)) and Taikang Real Estate Investment Co. (7% b Bl
W),

Mr. Tong Jianliang, aged 41, is the general manager in charge of the Group's
Ningbo business operations. Mr. Tong joined the Group in 2011. He Graduated
from Chongging Construction Engineering College (EE B & 58 T 2 &2 i)
(currently known as Chongqing Jianzhu University( FEREHERE)) majoring
in industrial and civil buildings and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering
in 1995. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tong worked for China Construction
First Building (Group) Corporation Limited (1 # — i) and China Overseas
Property Group Co., Led. (Ff b SE B A FRA 7] ).
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Longfor
Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the property development, property investment and property

management businesses in China.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the year by
principal activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the

Group on page 87.

DIVIDEND
The Board proposed the payment of a finial dividend of RMB0.228 per share

for the year ended 31 December 2013 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 3 June 2014. The proposed final
dividend will be paid on or about 17 June 2014 after approval by shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”).

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in Hong Kong
dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars will be converted from
RMB at the average middle rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars as announced by
the People’s Bank of China for the period from 21 May 2014 to 23 May 2014.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 19 May
2014 to Friday, 23 May 2014, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine the
identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting to be held on Friday, 23 May 2014, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 16 May 2014.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 30 May
2014 to Tuesday, 3 June 2014 (both days inclusive) during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 29 May 2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year is set out in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2013, the distributable reserve of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB5,774,724,000.
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Report of the Directors

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
RMB16.914 million (2012: approximately RMB19.02 million).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 252 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue attributable to the largest
customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.47% of the total revenue
in the year and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 1%

of the Group's revenue in the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, purchases attributable to the largest
supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 1.7% of the total purchases
in the year and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 7%

of the Group's purchases in the year.

So far as the Board of the Company is aware, neither the Directors, their
associates nor any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest

in these major customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in note

31 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Wu Yajun (Chairman)

Mr. Shao Mingxiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhou Dekang

Mzr. Feng Jinyi

Mr. Wei Huaning

Mr. Qin Lihong Mo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek

Mzr. Xiang Bing

Mzr. Zeng Ming

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Feng Jinyi,
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek and Mr. Xiang Bing shall retire from office and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a period of three years. None of the directors of the Company
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

Wk s FOUSEAER SE - ENA A REAR AT EE M ERRERE -

Note 1:  Mr. Qin Lihong resigned as an executive director and a member of the Investment Committee of the Company on 10 April 2014.

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi Hb & A B 2 ]
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the directors and those of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in

note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2013, none of the directors of the Company are considered
to be in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted for the year ended 31 December 2013.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the year were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any
such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no arrangement to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is
a party that would enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS AND THE DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into the non-competition deed dated 1 November
2009 with the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Charm Talent
International Limited (“Charm Talent”), Junson Development International
Limited (previously known as Precious Full International Limited) (“Junson
Development”), Silver Sea Assets Limited (“Silver Sea”), Silverland Assets
Limited (“Silverland”), Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”) and Mr. Cai Kui
(“Mr. Cai”) pursuant to which Madam Wu, Charm Talent and Silver Sea
have jointly and severally undertaken, and Mr. Cai, Junson Development and
Silverland have jointly and severally undertaken, not to compete with the
Group. Each of Madam Wu, Mr. Cai, Charm Talent, Junson Development,
Silver Sea and Silverland has also undertaken with the Company to procure that
any investment or commercial opportunity relating to any property business or
investment or management in the People’s Republic of China that they or any
of their respective affiliates identify or propose or that is offered or presented to
them by a third party, be first referred to the Company in accordance with the

terms of the non-competition deed.

On 29 January 2013, Mr. Cai notified the Company that he intended to
participate in the development and investment of a project site in Chengdu
for his personal investment purposes (the “New Opportunity”). In accordance
with the terms of the Non-competition Deed, Mr. Cai has provided necessary
information on the New Opportunity, including without limitation, details
and nature of the project site, its geographical location and amount of proposed
investment to the independent board committee of the Company consisting
of all the independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent Board
Committee”). A meeting of the Independent Board Committee was held on 5
February 2013. Having taken into account, among other things, the Company’s
current investment strategy, the nature of the project, the development and
architectural constraints of the project site, growth and earning potentials of the
New Opportunity, the independent non-executive Directors have unanimously
resolved that it is in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders to decline

the New Opportunity.

In March 2014, the Company has received an annual declaration from each of
the controlling shareholders of the Company and the Directors in respect of
their respective compliance with the non-competition undertakings as at 31
December 2013. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
said declaration and are of the view that each of the controlling shareholders
of the Company and the Directors has complied with their respective non-

competition undertakings during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 26th April 2010, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to which a
4-year term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HK$2.15 billion (the
“Facility”) was made available to the Company on the terms and conditions

stated therein.

On 5th April 2012, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to which a 3-year
term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HK$2.125 billion and
USD39.23 million (the “Facility”) was made available to the Company on the

terms and conditions stated therein.

On 10th July 2013, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to which a 4-year
term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HK$6.385 billion and
USD165 million (the “Facility”) was made available to the Company on the

terms and conditions stated therein.

On 14th March 2014, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to
which a 5-year term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HK$1.95
billion and USD125 million (the “Facility”) was made available to the Company

on the terms and conditions stated therein.

It is provided in the Facility Agreements, among other things, that an event of
default will occur if the controlling shareholders of the Company (namely, the
Wu Family Trust, the Cai Family Trust, Charm Talent International Limited
and Junson Development International Limited) cease to collectively maintain
(directly or indirectly) not less than 51% of the entire beneficial shareholding
interest in the Company. If an event of default under the Facility Agreements
occurs, the lending bank or the agent acting for the lending banks may, and
shall if so directed by two-thirds of the lending banks, terminate the Facility
or declare that all or part of the loans made under the Facility together with
accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the Facility

Agreements be immediately due and payable.

Other than as disclosed above, there are no other events which are required to be

disclosed by the Company under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain directors and their close
family members, and companies controlled by certain Directors and/or their
close family members entered into transactions with the Group which are
disclosed in note 40 “Related party transactions” to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

Save that certain sales of properties to key management and shareholders
constituted de minimis connected transactions of the Company which were
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), the other related party transactions which were carried out
by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2013, did not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as

the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme and the Post-IPO Option Scheme which were adopted on 30 November
2007 and 1 November 2009 respectively.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) available for grant
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2013 was
308,400,000 shares which represented approximately 5.67% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 21 March 2014.



R

= W ;
 Report of the Directors
:"{: ":' | B | | 1 ’.:'
(a) W UK PR B i e i (@ Pre-IPO Option Scheme

A B EBRAN T U A B R G M T
B BEREETRREEAA KR
PAf SRR EHAR -

AR FARAE W VA B 5 A T
AT R 1 Y S A R I A T

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Option Scheme to recognise the
contribution of certain of its senior management personnel and to retain

such senior management personnel.

The Company granted options to subscribe shares under the Pre-IPO
Option Scheme with the following details:

(1 #HH (1)  Directors
“F= “F-2
frtifim o et ot o
(¥7c) WA HATTHE
4 it ik Exercise Outstanding at Outstanding at
Name Capacity Date of Grant Price (HKS) 1Jan2013 31 December 2013
S FiZaAdE)  CRELE 294 5,588,000 5,588,000
Zhou Dekang Beneficiary of A=t
atrust (Noce 1) 30 November 2007
Sk EREEAMEE)  ZEFRLE 294 1,000,000
Feng Jiayi Beneficiary of t=A=1A
atrust (Note 1) 30 November 2007
(22 FEziAdE)  CRELE 294 600000 600,000
Wei Huaning Beneficiary of t=A=18
atrust (Nore /) 30 November 2007
2 fR’H (2)  Employees
AR
“ESRE O RRIERA i s
frifte —~H~H Numberof — +ZHZ1—H
(87) WAL Share Option AL
i2 b g Exercise Outstanding at exercised Outstanding at
Name Capacity Date of Grant Price (HKS$) 1Jan 2013 during the year 31 December 2013
Witz
(Note 2)
JilblER [FREXEAMR ) —EELE 294 12,741,000 11,841,000 900,000
Other employees Beneficiary of t=A=1H
atrust (Note 1) 30 November 2007
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Note 1:  Such number of pre-IPO options granted pursuant to a Pre-IPO Option
Scheme adopted by the Company on 30 November 2007 are currently
held by Long Faith subject to the terms of the Long Faith Trust. The
Long Faith Trust is a discretionary trust of which HSBC (HK) Trustee
is the trustee and the relevant directors and employees are discretionary

objects.

Note 2:  The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the date

on which the option were exercised was HK$13.63.

No further options can be granted under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme.

The terms of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme are similar to those of the Post-

IPO Option Scheme (see below) except in respect of the following:

o there is no provision limiting the maximum number of options
that might be granted to any individual grantee under the Pre-IPO
Option Scheme;

. the provisions on the granting of options to connected persons (as

defined in the Listing Rules) were not included;

o the Pre-IPO Option Scheme does not contain provisions relating
to the “refreshing” of the 10% limit or the seeking of separate
approval for granting options beyond the 10% limit as anticipated
in Note 1 of Rule 17.03(3) of the Listing Rules, or the restrictions
on the number of Shares issued or to be issued under options in any
12 month period to any participant of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme
not exceeding 1% of the Shares in issue as anticipated in the note
to Rule 17.03(4) of the Listing Rules.

Post-IPO Option Scheme

On 23 December 2009, 17 January 2011 and 28 September 2011, the
Company granted options to subscribe for a total of 10,600,000 Shares,
46,000,000 Shares and 150,000,000 Shares under the Post-IPO Option
Scheme to certain directors and employees of the Company, with the

following details:
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(1 #H (1)  Directors
TS
Number of Share Option
ZRSE O MRERTER Rk
fri s —~J—H WRESE SRS
(1) WA Number of Share WAL
(2 b iR Exercise Outstandingat ~ Option exercised Outstanding at
Name Capacity Date of Grant Price (HKS) 1Jan 2013 during the year 31 December 2013
(it2)
(Note 2)
il FHBEAA “F——-f1tA 12528 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
Shao Mingxiao Beneficial Owner 17 January 2011
“F—ERAAZTAR 8.8 30,000,000 - 30,000,000
28 September 2011
el i 4k 2O “F—E-A LA 12528 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Zhou Dekang Beneficial Owner 17 January 2011
“REAAZHAR 8.8 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
28 September 2011
EIR-F-ME  BEEAA “EENE 8.44 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
MA+HEHT) Beneficial Owner TZAZT=H
Qin Lihong (Resigned on 23 December 2009
10 Apel 2014 “F—E-f R 12528 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
17 January 2011
“F—ERAAZTAR 8.8 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
28 September 2011
59 4k 2O “RENE 8.44 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Feng Jinyi Beneficial Owner ToRZAEA
23 December 2009
“F—E-A LA 12528 800,000 - 800,000
17 January 2011
“REAAZHAR 8.8 8,000,000 - 8,000,000
28 September 2011
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Number of Share Option
SRR RRERTHES “FCk
it —~A—H RESE  ACAZTH
(#7) WA Number of Share WAL
12 b RihnH Exercise Outstandingat  Option exercised Outstanding at
Name Capacity Date of Grant Price (HKS) 1 Jan 2013 during the year 31 December 2013
(Wit2)
(Note 2)
BEE gt 2 ON “F—k 12528 2,600,000 - 2,600,000
Wei Huaning Beneficial Owner ~~ — L H
17 January 2011
Tk 8.28 8,000,000 - 8,000,000
A= AR
28 September 2011
AR Tk 12528 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Interests of spouse ~— — 1 L
17 January 2011
Tk 8.28 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
A= AR
28 September 2011
T HHRBAA “ZENE 844 150,000 - 150,000
Frederick Peter Beneficial Owner ~ TZHT=H
Churchouse 23 December 2009
Rk 8.28 400,000 - 400,000
A= AR
28 September 2011
F73 HHHAA “RENE 8.44 200,000 - 200000
Chan Chi On, Beneficial Owner ~ +-AZF=H
Derek 23 December 2009
"Rk 8.28 400,000 - 400,000
AZHAR
28 September 2011
Tk FABAA “RENE 8.44 200000 150,000 50,000
Xiang Bing Beneficial Owner ~~ + A= +=H
23 December 2009
“F——k 8.28 400,000 - 400,000
AAZTAR
28 September 2011
g ERlHA SF—E 8.8 400,000 - 400,000
Zeng Ming Beneficial Owner ~ JUIZTAH
28 September 2011
q Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE ] #8 2& A B 2 #]
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2 1RE (2)  Employees
T PR e
Number of Share Option
CERSE S RARERGTRER e S
Tt —H—H ERESE A= R
(¥72) WATTE  Number of Share AR
%4 B Exercise Outstanding at ~ Option exercised Outstanding at
Name Capacity Price (HK$) 1 Jan 2013 during the year 31 December 2013
(Wit 1) (Wit2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
“ERNAE EREAA 8.44 6,000,000 — 6,000,000
+ZAZ+=H Beneficial Owner
23 December 2009
“F—f B A 12,528 35,085,500 490,000 34,595,500
—A+tH Beneficial Owner
17 January 2011
5 -k ZUN 8.28 92,400,000 276,000 92,124,000
JLAZ+A\H Beneficial Owner
28 September 2011
FfF&E - Note:
1 B = E2ENEFH =R 1 As for the share option granted on 23 December 2009, the closing price
P B RE 5 4 R R — of the shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the
F I % 7 78 g 22 i 2 e T B date on which the options were granted was HK$8.26. The options are

exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 23rd December 2010, 2011,
2012, 2013 to 22nd December 2019.

826 7T o WA ] — % — %
Mo SRR TR T
CE-CZEF AT EHES
= NEFZAZ AN
TPt BT {H 259 o

M= ——F—-A Tt LHEN
I IHE B IROHE T — H A
317 7 WS T A T 2 T AE 2 12,88
T o BEIHE AT =B — AR
SRR DR DF
—HE—HATLAE_ZE-—4F
e Rt A SR v t )
1ifli259% -

As for the share option granted on 17 January 2011, the closing price of the
shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the date on
which the options were granted was HK$12.88. The options are exercisable
in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 17¢th January 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 to
16th January 2021.
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As for the share option granted on 28 September 2011, the closing price
of the shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was HK$8.17. The exercisable
period for 10,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Shao Mingxiao is from
28th September 2017 to 27th September 2021. The remaining options are
exercisable in 4 tranches from 28 September 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 to
27th September 2021, the exercisable percentage is 10%, 30%, 30% and
30% respectively.

2 The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the date

on which the option were exercised was HK$13.42.

A summary of the principal terms of the Post-TIPO Option Scheme (the

“Sehcme”) is set out as follow:

@

(i)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Participants (defined
in paragraph (ii) below) who have been granted Options under the
Scheme to subscribe for Shares with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage Participants
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and the
Shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a

whole.

Who may join

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at their discretion,
invite any directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and employees
of any member of the Group and any advisers, consultants,
distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
service providers of any member of the Group who the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute

to the Group (the “Participants”) to participate in the Scheme.
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme

Initially the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the Scheme or any
other option schemes adopted by the Company shall not exceed
10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue on the date of which
trading of the Shares commences on the Stock Exchange and any
Shares which may be allotted and issued by the Company under
the over-allotment option. The lapsed share options are excluded

when calculating the 10% limit.

The total number of Shares available for issue upon exercise of the
Options which may be granted pursuant to the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%

of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Options granted and to be granted pursuant to
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to each Participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant of the Options shall not exceed 1% of the total

number of Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of the Options

The period within which the Options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period must

expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant.

Payment on acceptance of Option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant to the Company on

acceptance of the Option offered as consideration for the grant.
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(vii)

(viii)

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per Share under the Scheme is a price
determined by the Board and notified to each Participant and shall
be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date

of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain valid until 31 October 2019 after which
no further Options will be granted but in respect of all Options
which remain exercisable on such date, the provisions of the

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Company adopted two Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes on 30 November

2007 and 31 July 2009 respectively. Their principal terms are substantially the

same and are summarized below.

Objective

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes to recognise

the contribution of certain of its employees, especially those whom

the Company considered had contributed to the early development

and growth of the Group, and to align their interests with those of the

shareholders of the Company.
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Implementation

For the implementation of the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes, the
Fit All Trust was established on June 11, 2008 for the benefit of
selected employees of the Group. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme adopted on 30 November 2007, the Company issued a total of
64,014,000 Shares to Fit All Investments Limited (“Fit All”), a special
purpose vehicle incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by HSBC
(HK) Trustee acting as the trustee of the Fit All Trust, on June 11,
2008. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme adopted on 31 July
2009, Charm Talent and Junson Development transferred to Fit All a
total of 30,000,000 Shares. A total of 94,014,000 Shares (the “Awarded
Shares”) were granted to selected employees of the Group (the “Selected

Employees”).

Vesting of the Awarded Shares

The Selected Employees are not entitled to exercise or enjoy the rights
to the Awarded Shares pending the vesting of the Awarded Shares in

accordance with the applicable vesting period.

In general, vesting period is either four or five years during which the
Awarded Shares granted to any particular Selected Employee will vest on

each anniversary of the first vesting date in equal portions.

Prior to vesting, the Selected Employees are not entitled to the rights to
and interests in the Awarded Shares, including voting and distribution

rights.
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B 2% 9k 5% DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

L Y ET Y YN-PL £ Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
WZFE—-=ZHF+A=+—H s FEHEHELELN As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
A R AT BON B R A 2 ) B H AT o AR B 2 Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
(F 8 S 75 MO B e o) ([ 38 5 T A B A6k i) 1) its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
XV IR HEA HARIE RS 5 SO B 158 352 1k Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register which were required to
BB B EiC A g e > SRR B be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
T NHEF AT 8 J5 28 5 WY R it < [ ([ 4 s <7 and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
RI 1) 28 50 G A N m) S A8 i 2 ety ~ B B Ak Ay by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

FAGRERE 2 HERR T
G)  FiFEARA RS (58 (i)  Interest in the Company (long position)
WHE AARAF RS
Jie4 Z RS WA 2 e
Bt/ WEREE W H Interest in  Approximate %
ERE Capacity/Nature Number of underlying  of interest in
Name of director of interest ordinary shares shares  the Company
S RREGERURA (7 1) 2,343,736,600 - 43.071%
Wu Yajun Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
TR e ERAH N 9,220,000 31,600,000 0.750%
Shao Mingxiao Beneficial Owner (Wit 4)
(Note 4)
JA A e INC/IE) 8,088,000 0.149%
Zhou Dekang Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
=% TN 3,912,000 5,200,000 0.167%
Beneficial Owner (Hit4)
(Note 4)
RAWRZF—EMA T HEHE) EiH A 3,400,000 10,000,000 0.246%
Qin Lihong (Resigned on 10 April 2014) Beneficial Owner (it 4)
(Note 4)

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi Hb & A B 2 ]




EREA

Name of director

LS
Feng Jinyi

ftew
Wei Huaning

HEE
Frederick Peter

Churchouse

BE

Chan Chi On, Derek

Xlang Bing

g

Zeng Ming

St/ M EE
Capacity/Nature

of interest

fEREZ A (Mt 2)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2)
(G INL I EY
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
- ¥i3 2N

Beneficial Owner

Rtz A M2 3)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
gt TN

Beneficial Owner

i et 4

Interests of Spouse

HifEHA

Beneficial Owner

Ha A A

Beneficial Owner

HafEA A

Beneficial Owner

A A

Beneficial Owner

HEFHRA

5 Rgport of the Dn'ectors»E :\
oy - 3 % o~ &
SR 2, 302 L SN Y
R AL R
ety his:  BERIE MG
LEREA Interest in Approximate %
Number of underlying  of interest in
ordinary shares shares  the Company
250,000 0.005%
8,088,000 0.149%
1,750,000 9,800,000 0.212%
(it 4)
(Note 4)
8,088,000 0.149%
413,000 10,600,000 0.202%
(Wit 4)
(Note 4)
428,500 3,000,000 0.063%
(Wzts)  (Wztdks)
(Note 5)  (Note 4 and 5)
50,000 550,000 0.011%
(it 4)
(Note 4)
600,000 0.011%
(it 4)
(Note 4)
50,000 450,000 0.009%
(Hfit4)
(Note 4)
400,000 0.007%
(Wit 4)
(Note 4)
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Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

These 2,343,736,600 Shares are held by Charm Talent International Limited

(“Charm Talent”) as registered holder. The entire issued share capital of Charm

Talent is wholly-owned by Silver Sea Asset Limited (“Silver Sea”), the entire
issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited (‘HSBC International Trustee”) as the trustee of the Wu Family
Trust. The Wu Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Wu Yajun
(“Madam Wu”) as settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee
on 11 June 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Wu Family Trust include certain

family members of Madam Wu.

Such number of Shares are held on trust by Fit All. The entire issued share
capital of Fit All is wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee (HK) Limited (“HSBC (HK)
Trustee”) as the trustee of the Fit All Trust. The Fit All Trust was set up on 11
June 2008 with HSBC (HK) Trustee acting as the trustee thereof. The beneficiary
objects of the Fit All Trust are certain selected employees and directors of the
Group as participants of the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes adopted by the
Company.

Such number of pre-IPO options granted pursuant to a Pre-IPO Option Scheme
adopted by the Company on 30 November 2007 are currently held by Long Faith
Management Limited (“Long Faith”) subject to the terms of the Long Faith Trust.
The Long Faith Trust is a discretionary trust of which HSBC (HK) Trustee is the

trustee and the relevant director is one of the discretionary objects.

The relevant director was granted options to subscribe for such number of shares

under the Post-IPO Option Scheme.

Mdm. ZHANG Yan, the spouse of Mr. WEI Huaning, has personal interest of
428,500 shares. Under the Post-IPO Option Scheme, she was granted 1,000,000
options on 17 January 2011 at an exercise price of HK$12.528 per share and
2,000,000 options on 28 September 2011 at an exercise price of HK$8.28 per
share. Mr. WEI Huaning is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid interests of
Mdm. ZHANG Yan by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.
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Jofe R A A i A O P M () (ii)  Interest in an associated corporation of the Company (long position)
Al AF M P A 2
WEAE 2 b
B,/ Approximate %
TGt i 1 42 7 L B MAEHEHA of interest in
HREH Name of the associated Capacity/Nature Number of class the associated
Name of Director corporation of interest of securities corporation
ST B 34 A PR ) ZYEEMAER 20,010,000 BB 8.7%
Wu Yajun Chongqing Longhu Interest of 20,010,000 shares
Development Co., Ltd. controlled
corporation

PR ESCHT R &SN > B % — =4
A=t+—H - BEEE RN LR T
BN B A2 v SCHAT o] 4 B 2 1 A
ARE R I B BRI 352 ML R A
I EAE B A BT > BURBRIEE
ST R ZECRN AR O ) BB S B 2 ety A
il e 1 AR M A 2 RE R SR o BRAS Y
ARZEFFLFEL A =TH A ZFE
JUAE— 1 — F 20 3R A0 2 B o
S R ot ) o 0 B B AR T
aE > W R 2 LR BRI 18 B
o AR A A R M A ) BOHAE (T A
T 2 L M 2 SR > O 0 RAT (AT T
AR o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
recorded in the register which were required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Other than the Pre-
IPO Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Option Scheme of the Company
adopted on 30 November 2007 and 1 November 2009 respectively, none
of Directors or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had been
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations, or had exercised any such

right.
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RoF-ZEF A= H o BRAARES
o EZATEN B A2 N LR A BB BAR B
FBE A7 B A AR S 2 S R 15 336 R AR
Al E BRI E R > ATE R (R AL
A BRISA) T {E 5% A b2 SR AN°F

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of persons, other than the directors or
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company representing 5% or more of the nominal value of shares comprised in
the relevant share capital of the Company as recorded in the register kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

AT SR (4 47)

Bk 4

Name of shareholder

A
Cai Kui

Junson Development
International Limited

(“Junson Development”)

Silverland Assets Limited
(“Silverland”)

HSBC International
Trustee Limited
(“HSBC International Trustee”)

Charm Talent International
Limited (“Charm Talent”)

Silver Sea Assets Limited
(“Silver Sea”)
Jumbomax Investments Limited

Woo Kwong Ching, Peter

Pao Pui Yung, Bessic

Interest in the Company (long position)

A2y vl R 25
BEAE 2L

=2l L3y HERMHE  Approximate %
Capacity/Nature Number of of interest
of interest ordinary shares in the Company
EHEME AN (i 1) 1,559,394,400 28.657%
Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
BRLHEA N (7L 2) 3,100,000 0.057%
Registered owner (Note 2)
R N (FE 1) 1,559,394,400 28.657%
Registered owner (Note 1)
ST E  EA (FE 1) 1,559,394,400 28.657%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
SN (M1~ 2% 4) 3,903,195,000 71.730%
Trustee (Notes 1, 2 and 4)
BREA N (M7t 3) 2,343,736,600 43.071%
Registered owner (Note 3)
ZPEE B 2 RS (M 3) 2,343,736,600 43.071%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
ZYENE B RS (M s) 325,721,000 5.986%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 5)
REN B 2 AR (WAt s) 325,721,000 5.986%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 5)
Fic 8 2 fE 4 (Bt s ) 325,721,000 5.986%

Interest of spouse (Note 5)
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L R%5E1,559,394,400 LR R Junson Development LA 5

FOREA A SRR o Junson Development 23
C BT AR 1 Silverland 2 & HEA > 1 Silverland
2 EEATRA I B HSBC Incernational Trustee
DEREEGECHZ AT D RERAE - 5K
REEGEFERR ZFEF/EAA+— 1l
Je AR By sk r A B N X HSBC Incernational
Trustee {55 5% 56 AR OL 19— JH R HERS 5E - #¢
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B S0 MR BHBHRA 3,100,000 BB

%5 2,343,736,600 B3 1H Charm Talenc A%
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TTIE A H Silver Sea 2 EHEA » T Silver Sea 2
B #8417 B A Il HSBC International Trustee LA
SRFREEHZREA S R EHR - HRE
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Ty L N2 B4 N K HSBC International Trustee
fERZRENR LI —H 2R T - SRIRKR
FRMZEHROHALLHE TRBEME -
MRS I8 R BRI VIR R B (RIK
KI5 FE AN ) BB A Charm Talenc BT £f
2,343,736,600 BB 63 A R4 -

. MR¥EHSBC International Trustee $&5¢ M HGHTHE t

% » HSBC International Trustee Bh 32 56 A &
WA 15 SR AT 64,000 BB B - W% %45
TS S R KR A FE RS IR KR SE M M 56 =
Y

%% 325,721,000 B Jumbomax Investments

Limiced 78 48 1€~ 2 [] 2 ¥ WG 2 =1 09 7% 4
fii © Woo Kwong Ching SeAE A Z RS Y
HE 35 8 7% % 325,721,000 B B 05 v HE A7 4 2%
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Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:
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These 1,559,394,400 Shares are held by Junson Development as registered holder. The
entire issued share capital of Junson Development is wholly-owned by Silverland, the
entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee as the trustee of the Cai Family Trust. The Cai Family Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Cai as settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee
on 11 June 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Cai Family Trust include certain family
members of Mr. Cai. Mr. Cai as founder of the Cai Family Trust is taken to be interested
in the 1,559,394,400 Shares held by Junson Development pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Cai Kui is beneficially interested in 3,100,000 Shares.

These 2,343,736,600 Shares are held by Charm Talent as registered holder. The entire
issued share capital of Charm Talent is wholly-owned by Silver Sea, the entire issued share
capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of
the Wu Family Trust. The Wu Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Wu
as settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on 11 June 2008. The
beneficiary objects of the Wu Family Trust include certain family members of Madam
Wu. Madam Wu as founder of the Wu Family Trust are each taken to be interested in
these 2,343,736,600 Shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

According to the latest disclosure of interests filing submitted by HSBC International
Trustee, these 64,000 shares are held by HSBC International Trustee as trustee of several other

trusts which are independent third parties of Wu Family Trust and Cai Family Trust.

These 325,721,000 shares represent the corporate interest of Jumbomax Investments
Limited through a number of its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Mr. Woo Kwong Ching,
Peter is interested in these 325,721,000 through the interest of corporation controlled
by him while Ms. Pao Pui Yung, Bessie is interested in these 325,721,000 through the

interest of spouse.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had not redeemed, and
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the

Shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholder.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rules 8.08(1)(a) and (b) of the Listing Rules require there to be an open market
in the securities for which listing is sought and for a sufficient public float of an
issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that (i) at least
25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public; and (ii) where an issuer has more than one class of securities apart from
the class of securities for which listing is sought, the total securities of the issuer
held by the public (on all regulated market(s) including the Stock Exchange) at
the time of listing must be at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital.
However, the class of securities for which listing is sought must not be less than
15% of the issuer’s total issued share capital, and must have an expected market

capitalization at the time of listing of not less than HK$10,000 million.



AR O 1) B2 BT R R o SR BT T AT (0 T
28 BT AT B TR R4 8.08(1)(d) R Y A 17 HE
DA A7 2 AL IAG I 2 AR B 2 B 159 (B
AR R R AT ) AR A LR E
BEAT I AR 12 4 L (5 A A A A R
FOAMATAE) o R A RE AT AT R b T IR
{19 78 3 77 8 48 10,000,000,000 5 7T FF A7 5
6 2 T 2 T 5 A B B 4 B B 4 AT 9 T Rl T
BEBIRA R & T ZEEAE -
AT 0 A 1 5 AR 2 D A 3 IR B R o
BRI G 4 AR B AR &
AR P RERR A A R & o AN AR
CEZNET-ATIUH LR mEEE
10,000,000,000 # JT °

AR —ERNET—A T H
AT > W XA 3£150,000,000 A B4y > 1
AR ) 58 T B A I AR S R R IR A A
22.33% o HEJAAA T A B E R Jonk 2
A AR B R AN R MR LT
L RUKR 8 9 2 R i i IR

A Y i

A 2GR A MBIR MBS o BB &5t
AT A% o 1 % IO i PR S0 47K 2l S 1
By o BREBROT B AT AAT AR A mUAZ B Y Rk

%o

REkEHEG

HE W AT R A )

L

T

HE o “E—WFE=A=1—H

=R

Report of the Directors

The Group had applied to the Stock Exchange to request the Stock Exchange to
exercise, and the Stock Exchange exercised its discretion under Rule 8.08(1)(d)
of the Listing Rules to accept a lower public float percentage of the Company
of 15% (assuming the over-allotment option is not exercised) or such higher
percentage of the issued share capital as would be held by the public in the
event that the whole or a part of the over-allotment option is exercised (which
discretion may be exercised in respect of issuers with an expected market
capitalization at the time of listing of over HK$10,000 million) on the basis
that the Stock Exchange was satisfied that the number of the Shares concerned
and the extent of their distribution would enable the market to operate properly
with the lower percentage, and on the condition that the Company would make
appropriate disclosure of the lower prescribed percentage of public float in
the Prospectus and confirm sufficiency of public float in the successive annual
reports after listing. At the time of the listing of the Company on 19 November
2009, the market capitalization exceeded HK$10,000 million.

The over-allotment option was fully exercised on 24 November 2009 in respect
of an aggregate of 150,000,000 shares and accordingly the lower public float
percentage of the Company accepted by the Stock Exchange is approximately
22.33%. Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained the amount of public float

as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by Messts.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution for the reappointment of Messts.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s auditor is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Wu Yajun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March, 2014

4F # Annual Report 2013
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate governance report
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of
corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve

its corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the year, the Company had adopted, applied and complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) except the following deviations:

During the year, the Company has not established Nomination Committee as
required by the provision A.5 of the Code. Madam Wu Yajun, Chairman of
the Board, is responsible for the nomination and appointment of directors. In
accordance with the Company’s corporate strategy, Madam Wu will review
and discuss with other Board members the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board from time to
time and identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors and make
recommendations to the board on the nomination for directorship. The Board
is of view that Chairman responsible for the nomination directorship is more

effective than the establishment of Nomination Committee at current period.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Madam Wu Yajun serves as the Chairman of the Board whereas Mr. Shao
Mingxiao, an executive director, serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Board currently comprises five executive Directors (including
Madam Wu) and four independent non-executive Directors and therefore has
a fairly strong independence element in its composition. The Chairman of the
Board should be responsible for the management of the Board while the Chief
Executive Officer for the day-to-day management of business. The division of

responsibilities should be set out in writing as below:
Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board:

1. To provide leadership for the Board; to ensure that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities; to ensure that good

corporate governance practices and procedures are established.

2. To attend annual general meeting and ensure that issues raised by
shareholders are answered by the chairman of the Board committees, or

the appropriate alternate on the meeting.

3. To lead the formulation of corporate strategies, mid-to-long term plans of

development, annual budget and significant organizational and structural

adjustments.
4. To lead the formulation of an investment and financing decision system.
5. To provide leadership in respect of corporate risk and crisis management.
6. To lead the recruitment and appointment of senior management

and Board members of the Company; to participate under the
recommendation of the remuneration committee in decision making
in respect of remuneration and bonuses of, and share option incentive
schemes for, senior management and directors, and other material changes

and reforms in human resources management system and remuneration

system.
7. To participate inauguration of key projects.
8. To provide leadership in respect of corporate culture.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer:

1. To provide leadership in the daily corporate operation, the execution of

corporate strategies and achieving the objectives of plans.

2. To establish and continuously improve the management system and

management team.

3. To lead the corporate team and continue to retain and train management
talents.
THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, including five executive Directors
namely Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhou Dekang, Mr. Feng
Jinyi and Mr. Wei Huaning and four independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Xiang
Bing and Mr. Zeng Ming.

On 10 April 2014, Mr. Qin Lihong resigned as an executive Director of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
overseeing the Group's business, strategic decisions and performances, as well
as performing the corporate governance duties, including: (a) developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and () reviewing
the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report). During the year, the
Board has reviewed the Code of Conduct of the Group, assessed the internal
control measures of the Group, assessed the training needs of the Directors and
senior management and arranged relevant trainings accordingly, and reviewed

the status of compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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The Board has delegated the management the day-to-day management and
administrative functions as they think fit and provides guidance of the rights
of management. The Board will review the relevant delegation from time to
time to ensure that clear guidance and rights have been provided and the proper
reporting procedures have been complied. In addition, the Board has also
established various Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the investment committee (the “Investment Committee”) (together, the
“Board Committees”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles

in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, business, family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.

All of the independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years. None of them holds any other offices in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries except that each of them has been granted options under the Post-
IPO Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 1 November 2009, details of
which are set out in the Directors’ Report. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all

of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the

requirements of the business of the Company.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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xS No. of Board meetings attended/ No. of general meetings attended/
Directors Total no. of Board meetings Total no. of general meetings

WTH R

Executive Directors

SR 4/4 11
Wu Yajun

HR B 4/4 11
Shao Mingxiao

JAtERE 414 11
Zhou Dekang

TS 4/4 11
Feng Jinyi

R 4/4 1
Wei Huaning

Ik iy 414 11

Qin Lihong etV

BT ES

Independent non-executive Directors

HHE 4/4 n

Frederick Peter Churchouse

IS 4/4 11
Chan Chi On, Derek

% 4/4 0/1
Xiang Bing

W 4/4 0/1
Zeng Ming

Wekr s FODUSEAR CF - ENA B EAR AT ER MG R RN -

Note 1:  Mr. Qin Lihong resigned as an executive director and a member of the Investment Committee of the Company on 10 April 2014.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1 November 2009
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in
paragraph B.1.2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include evaluating and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration system and package of the Directors and senior
management, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee consists of
Madam Wu Yajun, an executive Director, and Mr. Zeng Ming, Mr. Xiang Bing
and Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, three independent non-executive Directors. Mr.

Zeng Ming is the Chairman of Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year to review the
remuneration structure of the Directors and senior management of the Group
and appraisal system of the key positions of the Group, discuss the strategy of
attracting and retaining mid to senior level staff of the Company, and approve
the remuneration package of the executive Directors and senior management for

2014. The attendance of each member is as follows:
H TR R U 2 R U
No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
1/1
1/1

1/1

1/1

4F # Annual Report 2013
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7

BE%
Chan Chi On, Derek

SR
Frederick Peter Churchouse

S

Xiang Bing
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Details of the remuneration of the directors during the year are set out in note
11 to the financial statements. The remuneration of the Senior Management

during the year falls within the following bands:

N

Number of individuals

Nil to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,000 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,000 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,000 to HK$8,000,000
HK$8,000,000 to HK$9,000,000
Over HK$10,000,000

R = R =N

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 November 2009 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in paragraph
C.3.3 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process
and internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and monitoring
external auditors. The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Frederick Peter
Churchouse, and Mr. Xiang Bing and is chaired by Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek.
In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit

Committee possesses the appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee held two meetings with the senior management
and independent auditor of the Company during the year, to consider the
independence and audit scope of independent auditor, and to review and discuss
the internal control system, interim and annual financial statements of the
Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor before submitting

to the Board for their approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:
HBE Bk 2R
No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
2/2

2/2

2/2
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Wu Yajun

H B

Shao Mingxiao
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee reports directly to the Board and is responsible for
appraising land acquisition proposals submitted by the regional companies and
the business development department of the headquarters as well as making
land purchase decisions. The Investment Committee currently consists of
Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhou Dekang, Mr. Feng Jinyi, Mr.
Wei Huaning and Mr. Wei Jian, the General Manager of Commercial Properties

Operating Department.

The Investment Committee held 19 meetings during the year, to discuss and
make investment decision on 74 projects. The attendance of each member is as

follows:

A E Ve VR Ve

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
19/19

19/19

19/19

19/19

19/19

19/19

19/19

WREr s FODMSEAR S E - EN A B AR AT ER MG R RN -

Note 1:  Mr. Qin Lihong resigned as an executive director and a member of the Investment Committee of the Company on 10 April 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors are aware of the latest development relevant to
the operation of the Group, the Company has arranged and funded suitable
training for the Directors. During the year, relevant Directors have attended
the corporate governance related training organized by the Company. Certain
directors also attended business seminars, and seminars organized by accounting
firm and the third party institutes on directors’ duties and development in

securities laws.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Given that the Nomination Committee has not been established, the Board as
a whole will be responsible for the selection and approval of the new Directors
and assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors.
The Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 3 years.
Under the articles of associations of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not more than one-third) will retire from office by rotation
provided that every Directors shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. The Board will consider the
factors including the expertise, experience and integrity of the candidates when

selecting the new Directors.

On 10 April 2014, Mr. Qin Lihong resigned as an executive Director and a

member of the Investment Committee.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are
RMB4,049,000 and RMB1,150,000, respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013 which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period.
The Directors consider that the financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with all appropriate accounting standards and requirements and
reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed
and prudent judgment of the Board and the management. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements of

the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section

headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 85 of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance of an effective system of
internal control. The Company has established internal audit department which
is responsible for the independent review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system and for the periodic report of the auditing result to
the Audit Committee and the Board. The Company has also engaged external
professional agent to re-assess and evaluate the internal control system of the

Company.

During the year, all functional departments of the Group improved their
internal control by strengthening their daily supervision. The Group had
launched various important management systems to enhance its internal
control, including standardized guidance for marketing activities (2 $i§ f# &
I% B) T {E B & F5 51 ), 2013 edition of tendering and biding management
solution for marketing sub-suppliers (2 8573 it 7 R RS B 2013 1)),
engineering IT platform management solution ( L2 ITF- & & HLHHE ), cost
management revision solution (J& 4% & AR £ HEVE ), the Group's tendering
and biding management principles (2013 edition) (£ [E 148 5 A1 (2013

Jf)), measures governing the administration of media and telecommunication

suppliers of the Group (4 8 1 #4 25 7 A % 1k 4 J ¥ 1% )| application of
information system to implement items management solution (M I {5 B R %t
HiiIE H E L) , and developing online panorama project system (- S 4
Sl B R L), engineering management platform ( LFEHE HF- 5 ), product
management platform (ZE i & 2 °F & )in order to enhance the management

level through introduction of IT system.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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During the year, as an internal department responsible for conducting
independent and objective review of operation and internal control of the
Company, the risk management centre of the Group carried out a series of

special audit, which includes:
1. Audit on management of the material of the Group

2. Audit on marketing input, and audit on customer relationship

management (CRM) system

3. Audit on online supplier management
4. Data Security Management
5. Routine audit of district companies in Xiamen, Shanghai and Chengdu

The Company has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Beijing Branch in 2013 and appointed its corporate risk
management services department to assess and evaluate the internal control of
the Company. The scope of re-assessment includes the control of the Company,
the control of financial reporting process and the control of business flow which
covers the aspects of operation, financial report, risk management, compliance
and the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function. The re-assessment report of Deloitte Touche demonstrates that the
overall control condition of the Company is good and there is no material

control defect.

All of the above mentioned internal and external audit report and the follow-up
measures have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board
is of opinion that the internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2013 is effective and sufficient.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the
Company. Upon specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2013 in relation to their securities dealings,

if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management and
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of

the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company secretary, Mr. LO Chi Lik Peter, is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong. Mr. LO, aged 64, was appointed as the Company Secretary on 1
November 2009. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1976 and has been
in continuous practice since qualification. He is currently a partner of Messrs.
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. Although Mr. LO is not a full time employee of the
Company. He reports to the Board and is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. The primary contact person of the Company with Mr. LO
is Ms. Zhang Lei, the Controller of Finance and Administration of Hong Kong
office of the Company. During 2013, Mr. LO has confirmed that he has taken

no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Objective

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in enhancing the corporate transparency as well
as establishing market confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a
stringent internal control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely
disclosure of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to information.
The Company has an investor relations department to serve as an important
communication channel between the Company and its shareholders and
other investors. To strive for effective communication and transparency of the
Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contacts with the shareholders
and investors through various channels such as internet, telephone and email.
During the relevant year, the Company has introduced its development strategy
and recent business development to the investors in large investment forums and
site visits. On-site visits to the projects of the Company have been arranged for
the fund managers and analysts from Hong Kong and overseas. The Company
endeavours to create opportunities for direct communication with investors
and to provide the latest development of the Company as well as information
of the PRC real property industry to the capital market in time. In addition,
the annual general meeting also provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board, as well as Chairman
of each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, members of the respective
Committees, and the external auditors of the Company, are available to answer
questions from Shareholders at annual general meetings and extraordinary
general meetings of the Company. As such, investors’ understanding of and
confidence in the Company can be enhanced. The Company maintains a website
at www.longfor.com, where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance and

other information are available for public access.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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Information Disclosure

The Group discloses information in compliance with the securities regulations
of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Group is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful
and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public to

make rational and informed decisions.

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

and Propose Resolutions

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any
one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the company’s articles of association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set

out in the above paragraph.

Detailed procedure for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director

are available on the Company’s website www.longfor.com.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong at 15/F., 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF LONGFOR PROPERTIES CO. LTD.
HE T 0 2 A PR ]

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Longfor Properties Co.
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 87 to 251, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2013, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are reponsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal controls as
the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group'’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors of
the Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at December 31, 2013, and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 21, 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
BE—B=h b = B

For the year ended December 31, 2013

i3 —F=F —FTF

NOTES 2013 2012
ANRWFL AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
A Revenue 5 41,510,167 27,892,830
SHEE R Cost of sales (29,971,959)  (16,709,740)
EF Gross profit 11,538,208 11,183,090
HAb s A Other income 453,586 182,839
HAthli z2 (F548) Other gains (losses) 324,719 (11,814)
LA B 4% W 2E T A T I 4 Fair value gain upon transfer to investment
properties 71,362 293,107
B EYHEA TEEH) Change in fair value of investment properties 2,521,127 1,015,475
B8 I T A B S Selling and marketing expenses (887,256) (688,560)
(il b3 Administrative expenses (1,084,336) (872,743)
V& A Finance costs 8 (39,434) (47,612)
JEIG A B EL Share of results of joint ventures 320,678 247,760
BB A i A Profit before taxation 13,218,654 11,301,542
P15 A6BA 52 Income tax expense 9 (4,582,788)  (4,436,068)
A Vg A Profit for the year 10 8,635,866 6,865,474
AT M A i 1) - Profit attributable to:
ZN/NTIE? 2= DN Owners of the Company 8,037,222 6,301,060
TP A Non-controlling interests 598,644 564,414
8,635,866 6,865,474

4 #t Annual Report 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
BB S LR
For the year ended December 31, 2013

(R S
NOTES 2013 2012
ARBFT  ARKTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BREAM (AR Earnings per share, in RMB
HA Basic 13 1.48 1.20
i Diluted 13 1.46 1.19
B Ve A Profit for the year 8,635,866 6,865,474
At 4 TG B K Other comprehensive expense:

A REEE A £ 8 HH © Items thar may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

E T RIS TERR Fair value loss on hedging instruments (100,664) (114,152)
Ef Wap A EnyiDE LMY TF | Loss on hedging instruments
reclassified to profit or loss 85,205 —
AF Ji 4 T WAL i ARAR Total comprehensive income for the year 8,620,407 6,751,322
AT JE A 4 T i AR - Total comprehensive income attributable to:
/NG 2N Owners of the Company 8,021,763 6,186,908
JE il e 47 Non-controlling interests 598,644 564,414

8,620,407 6,751,322

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi #b 7 A B 2 ]
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
G Lt 1 e
At December 31, 2013

Bk “R-ZE —F-CF
NOTES 2013 2012
ARETFLT  AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Jeim B NON-CURRENT ASSETS
& Investment properties 14 23,813,400 18,383,300
VE BN & Property, plant and equipment 15 184,831 186,188
TEAHFH & #OE Prepaid lease payments 16 11,602,243 8,996,739
TR W 2 W i Interests in associates 17 1 1
NEBERRER Interests in joint ventures 18 3,100,559 2,068,488
Ak Available-for-sale investments 19 8,600 8,600
AL L RS A R R Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights 5,053,024 6,949,391
R B T Deferred taxation assets 32 1,063,481 1,012,836
45,426,139 37,605,543
HLmh CURRENT ASSETS
e Inventories 20 760,649 657,209
BB Properties under development for sales 21 65,368,224 57,727,061
T B Properties held for sales 22 10,963,251 4,477,039
JRE AR 3K e At B i 3k T Accounts and other receivables, deposits
4 T TS S OH and prepayments 23 4,343,422 4,098,246
JEW A& A2 A Amounts due from joint ventures 24 7,431 28,572
AT i ] B I Taxation recoverable 2,626,762 2,222,095
M ERAT AR Pledged bank deposits 25 276,914 227,212
SRATH B LB & Bank balances and cash 25 14,399,175 18,383,520
98,745,828 87,820,954
w1 A CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEATHRIE ~ ik K ERTH 22 Accounts payable, deposits received and
accrued charges 26 53,664,636 48,515,001
JEAT A& 8 A 2 E Amounts due to joint ventures 27 1,343,571 1,051,697
A BLIE Taxation payable 8,511,214 7,899,467
BRAT B HAtAG 3K — —4E A Bank and other borrowings - due within one year 28 9,067,212 5,108,752
72,586,033 62,574,917
80 NET CURRENT ASSETS 26,159,195 25,246,037
A 2 o B £ A TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 71,585,334 62,851,580

4 #t Annual Report 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
S¥ =R tH=tAH
At December 31, 2013

R
NOTES 2013 2012
ARBTE  NEHTL

RMB’000 RMB’000

HEAR Rt CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(&S Share capital 31(a) 476,822 475,802

fitifhd Reserves 36,506,823 29,433,446

AN F A N AR 5 Equity attributable to owners of the Company 36,983,645 29,909,248

JEHE IR 45 Non-controlling interests 2,791,774 2,668,164

2 AR TOTAL EQUITY 39,775,419 32,577,412

T B £ it NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

SRAT B AAE X — — AR EI A Bank and other borrowings - due after one year 28 18,460,950 20,475,034

HEE R Senior notes 29 10,174,918 7,252,980

fiid: 4t TR Derivative financial instruments 30 214,816 114,152

PR SE Rl TE B 1 Deferred taxation liabilities 32 2,959,231 2,432,002
31,809,915 30,274,168
71,585,334 62,851,580

7 E 2SI HZEAMBRENR - F—NE= The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 251 were approved and

F 2 — FE e it R AR Sl g DA authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 21, 2014 and are signed

TALREREE on its behalf by:

R HH

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi #b 7 A B 2 ]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RE-F-SHETASTRILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

—FEZF ZEZ -
2013 2012

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

BEED OPERATING ACTIVITIES
W ok i i ) Profit before taxation 13,218,654 11,301,542
BUAT A Adjustments for:
T A Finance costs 39,434 47,612
W3 - s K s Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 39,210 33,232
AR 2 BOE YR A PR AR Fair value gain upon transfer
to investment properties (71,362) (293,107)
B EYFERN T EET) Change in fair value of investment properties (2,521,127)  (1,015,475)
JEA A8 A 3 3L 4% Share of results of joint ventures (320,678) (247,760)
HEE - BB Rk i s Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment (28,300) (6,379)
HEdA Interest income (116,039) (139,813)
B 5, (i) fes 481 Exchange (gain) loss (296,419) 18,193
AL R T ROE I I B Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments, unlisted (1,310) (1,312)
DAy B A5 B 5 Share-based payments expenses 109,742 131,149
BEEGEEH S SN Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital 10,051,805 9,827,882
&M Increase in inventories (103,440) (63,144)
BREDHEYE Decrease (increase) in properties under development
BeFeAE W 2E D (K5 m) for sales and properties held for sales 2,350,540  (1,379,853)
R Bk B A FEE MR T Increase in accounts and other receivables,
Fie 4 ST R IE I deposits and prepayments (245,176) (753,950)
JRES & 85 SE SR TE D (K Decrease (increase) in amounts
due from joint ventures 21,141 (15,488)
JEATHRAR ~ Witz K e st 22 48 Increase in accounts payable, deposits
received and accrued charges 4,703,877 6,340,923
AT & A SE S IE S Increase in amounts due to joint ventures 291,874 248,527
BEFELENE 4 Cash from operations 17,070,621 14,204,897
E A B B3 L PRC income tax paid (3,899,124)  (2,574,097)
AR B P A Bl NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 13,171,497 11,630,800
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SR EE DR

2013 2012
AR TE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

BEED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
TEA & S E S N Additions to prepaid lease payments (12,804,865) (12,684,697)
Eia-/ES | Additions to investment properties (2,221,985)  (1,533,501)
A L AT AR Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights (2,581,498)  (1,872,153)
GBS EEE Capital injection to joint ventures (728,993) -

Bl A BN RE Dividend received from joint ventures 17,600 52,487
AT RAT 30 Placement of pledged bank deposits (523,181) (290,252)
PRI R SR AT 77 3K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 473,479 469,165
A - R B akhf Purchase of property, plant and equipment (45,555) (41,770)
B ALE Interest received 116,039 139,813
HEYIE ~ B R e B A5 aKOR Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 36,002 9,933
T B R P S Dividend received from available-for-sale

investments 1,310 1,312
BB B P P B NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ (18,261,647) (15,749,663)
L B FINANCING ACTIVITIES

e S o /2 ) 1Y AR ME
B SR AT B At B 3K
RIS
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmhﬁ
BT S R R I A5 I
BT EB B S

BT IR AR P 15 200H
BEAT AR B SE

B 1) I 42 o A e < A S
EMRE

Acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary
Repayment of bank and other loans

Interest paid

New bank and other loans raised

Proceeds from issue of senior notes

Expenses on issue of senior notes

Proceeds from issue of shares

Expenses on issue of shares

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
Dividend paid

(412,831) —
(14,975,331)  (7,219,558)
(2,456,271)  (1,989,072)
16,992,846 13,556,259
3,139,800 2,513,560

(23,494) (43,529)
35,601 2,565,338

— (11,708)
(72,344 (50,379)
(1,082,568) (902,980)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_ZZHTHA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

—FEZF ZEZ -
2013 2012

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

Al 55 ) O B A NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,145,408 8,417,931
B4 R BLA A (A ) 4 NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,944,742) 4,299,068
AER B4 K B A S CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 18,383,520 14,120,925
FE 2R 5 ) 1) 5 22 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (39,603) (36,473)
EARIBE R B & F Y CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

THE END OF THE YEAR 14,399,175 18,383,520
Bl 4 T Bl S E M #5850 b ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
SRATHE B R & Bank balances and cash 14,399,175 18,383,520
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2681,Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands o 523 7] 8t 3 N R SE A0 B (T o
I ) B A s ) 2 B S b B Y ik 2
oAb I TR SR A 4 S AR 2
TRERFETRIEAE 158154 -

AnmR I BEER AT - KB AR E
TXEB BB R R MR 45 -

AR A B R LA 7] O E TR
AR R R AR (AR 24 -

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on December 21, 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”).
The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The addresses of the principal place of business of the Company
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong are 7/
F, Tower 2, FuSheng Building, No. 4 Huixin East Street, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, and 15/F, 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong,

respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of the

principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the Company and its major

subsidiaries.
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R AF T B A T Bt S
80 38 3 B0 B 5 o
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AL B AEBERA LT B R e
S oy (1 ot B ) A
AT B ARG A B 5 YR )

] I o o R BT A
Amendments to [FRSs
I B 5 o o M USRS 7 SR B AT A
Amendments to IFRS 7
I R 2 o Y 58S 10 8%

I 3 B 5 o M B 11 58

I 5 o 7 o 4 5 12 SR RT A
Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 11 and IFRS 12
1] P 5 o 4 58 1.0 9%

IFRS 10
B0 % B o MR RIS 11 9%
IFRS 11
] P o o 5 12 9%
IFRS 12
] % B o M RIS 13 9%
IFRS 13

B0 % 2 1 SRR A
Amendments to [AS 1

B e st RIS 19 9% (2 F——4FE5])
IAS 19 (Revised 2011)

I R 5 27 BE (B ——4F4E7])
IAS 27 (Revised 2011)

B e st RIS 28 9% (ZF——4F &)
IAS 28 (Revised 2011)

I R A o i R R B O 20 9%
IFRIC 20

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

B BB R A R RN R R AR R AR U
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
1 — HRSH T R A

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

ARERIB IR - SER TP KR b B R < B IR T

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance
SR B R
Consolidated Financial Statements
Helm] % PE
Joint Arrangements
PR A ST R £
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
NVER R
Fair Value Measurement
S5 H A2 T RIAH
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
1§ 4 A
Employee Benefits
T 5L BB R R
Separate Financial Statements
RBE AR R E R R
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
98 K T35 1 E T B oK BR LA

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the package
of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures comprising IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS
11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities,
IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements and IAS 28 (as
revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together
with the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 regarding

transitional guidance.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.

Impact of the application of IFRS 10

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements and SIC
Int-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 changes the
definition of control such that an investor has control over an investee
when a) it has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and c) has the
ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of these criteria
must be met for an investor to have control over an investee. Previously,
control was defined as the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in IFRS 10 to explain when an investor has

control over an investee.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

Impact of the application of IFRS 10 (Continued)

The directors of the Company made an assessment as at the date of
initial application of IFRS 10 as to whether or not the Group has control
over other group companies in accordance with the new definition of
control and the related guidance set out in IFRS 10. The directors of the
Company concluded that it has had control over other group companies
since the acquisition or establishment on the basis of the Group's
absolute size of holding in other group companies and the relative size
and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by the other shareholders.
Therefore, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 10, other group
companies have been subsidiaries of the Company since acquisition or

establishment.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

Impact of the application of IFRS 11

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures, and the guidance
contained in a related interpretation, SIC — Int 13 Jointly Controlled
Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers, has been
incorporated in IAS 28 (as revised in 2011). IFRS 11 deals with how
a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified and accounted for. Under IFRS 11, there are only
two types of joint arrangements — joint operations and joint ventures.
The classification of joint arrangements under IFRS 11 is determined
based on the rights and obligations of parties to the joint arrangements
by considering the structure, the legal form of the arrangements,
the contractual terms agreed by the parties to the arrangement, and,
when relevant, other facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a
joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a
joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Previously, IAS 31 contemplated three types of joint
arrangements — jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled operations
and jointly controlled assets. The classification of joint arrangements
under IAS 31 was primarily determined based on the legal form of the
arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was established through a

separate entity was accounted for as a jointly controlled entity).

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint
operations is different. Investments in joint ventures ate accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation is no longer
allowed).
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

Impact of the application of IFRS 11 (Continued)

Investments in joint operations are accounted for such that each joint
operator recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly
held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly),
its revenue (including its share of revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation) and its expenses (including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets and
liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to its interest in the

joint operation in accordance with the applicable Standards.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the classification
of the Group's investments in joint arrangements in accordance with
the requirements of IFRS 11. The directors concluded that the Group’s
investment in joint arrangements, which were classified as a jointly
controlled entity under IAS 31 and were accounted for using the equity
method, were proper to continue the same classification and accounting

treatments.

Impact of the application of IFRS 12

IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application of IFRS 12
has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements (see notes 3, 17, 18 and 45 for details).
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the current year.
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and disclosures about,
fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad: the fair value
measurement requirements of IFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument
items and nonfinancial instrument items for which other IFRSs require
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value
for the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment

assessment purposes).

IFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would be
received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case of
determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under IFRS 13 is an exit price
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Also, IFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure

requirements.

IFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by IFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative period (see
notes 14 and 42f for the 2013 disclosures). Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of IFRS 13 has not had any material impact

on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income. Upon the adoption of the amendments
to IAS 1, the Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed
as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’. The
amendments to IAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. Furthermore, the amendments to IAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income are grouped
into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions ate met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis
— the amendments do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The amendments
have been applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items of
other comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the changes.
Other than the above mentioned presentation changes, the application of
the amendments to IAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss,

other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.



R AF T B A T B Wt S
80 38 o B0 B o

W 1))

A S5 1 0 90 2 7 R ) 2 A L o R AR 2

PR BT AT S AT R ok o s e o E B
8 % o 5 4 ot UL T A

Amendments to IFRSs
I % B 5 5 Y R T AR
Amendments to IFRSs

8 % o 5 4 5 4 U5 0

IFRS 9
8 B 5 HE SRS 14 9%
IFRS 14

R ¢ o s i 5 68 U565 0 9% D

I ¢ o A e )

5 7 BT A
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
8 5 B 5 o 4 U5 10 5%

IR 3 B 5 o MBS 12 58

B g R SR 27 SR RT A
Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and TAS 27
IR P g st SR 19 SR IE T A
Amendments to [AS 19
0 5 o LSS 32 SR MBS T A
Amendments to IAS 32
I o Y R 5FS 36 SR AB AT A
Amendments to TAS 36
I % i Y SR 39 SR B AT A
Amendments to [AS 39
P R R R B

— B 21 9%

IFRIC 21

o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

B BB A R R R TR - T R E RS
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle’

B A B i ) e — — AR R T — AR R AR R O
Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

ST R

Financial Instruments*

EERIEIRS

Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

R 5 o o 4 U B85 8% 2 o Y A B O 4 ¢

Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures’
HEEE

Investment Entities'

FERARAET S - R A e

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions®
BHEMEREREBAR!

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'

4 S E 1 ) ] AR R

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets'

TP A TELAR SERF B3 b B A4

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting'

B

Levies'
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined when
the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalised
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, with limited

exceptions

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a number

of amendments to various IFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions for ‘performance
condition” and ‘service condition” which were previously included within
the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments to IFRS 2 are
effective for share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is
on or after July 1, 2014.

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair value at
each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent consideration
is a financial instrument within the scope of IFRS 9 or IAS 39 or a non-
financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and loss. The
amendments to IFRS 3 are effective for business combinations for which

the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to IFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria
to operating segments, including a description of the operating segments
aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in determining whether
the operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’; and (ii)
clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets
to the entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment assets are

regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of IFRS 13 clarify that the
issue of IFRS 13 and consequential amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 9
did not remove the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without discounting,

if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 remove perceived inconsistencies
in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an
item of property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued.
The amended standards clarify that the gross cartying amount is adjusted
in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount of the
asset and that accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking

into account accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to IAS 24 clarify that a management entity providing
key management personnel services to a reporting entity is a related party
of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose
as related party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid or
payable to the management entity for the provision of key management
personnel services. However, disclosure of the components of such

compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company are in the process of ascertaining the
financial impact on application of the amendments included in the
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include a number

of amendments to various IFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply to
the accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangement in the

financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to IFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are within the
scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, IAS 39 or IFRS 9, even if
those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within TAS 32.

The amendments to IAS 40 clarify that IAS 40 and IFRS 3 are not
mutually exclusive and application of both standards may be required.
Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property must determine

whether:

(@)  the property meets the definition of investment property in terms
of TAS 40; and

(b)  the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under IFRS 3.

The directors of the Company are in the process of ascertaining the
financial impact on application of the amendments included in the
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes
the requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition and further amended in 2013 to include

the new requirements for hedge accounting.
Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS
39 Financial Instcruments: Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit

or loss.

. With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
TIAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the

financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

4F # Annual Report 2013
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Coatinued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The new general hedge accounting requitements retain the three types of
hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have

also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 in
the future may have significant impact on amounts reported in respect
of the Group’s financial assets. The directors of the Company are in the

process of ascertaining the financial impact.

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments to IAS 39 provide relief from the requirement to
discontinue hedge accounting when a derivative hedging instrument
is novated under certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify
that any change to the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument
arising from the novation should be included in the assessment of hedge

effectiveness.

The directors of the Company are in the process of ascertaining the

financial impact on application of these amendments to IAS 39.

The ditectors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis, except for the investment properties and financial instruments
that are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair

value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described

as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

4F # Annual Report 2013




o B U 25 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

3. BEEHIOR )

o HEESAFEREMETEER
BRIA T B AR A FE -

FEEFBORESIAT -

AR A

AR B TR AR A W) AR R A
)RR B WA 2w B B B R o A
NEFEE VAT BefhrE » HE R EER

AT
o BHBEPSREENED

o EBBPREENWAMREERA

MEAEAT AT A [ 5 I

o ARIVENHPHEENEYE

P 21 2] i 3 -

CGES oA EL NS (s T
I b R o A A

HEBHER P ETT -

AF 1 B A B8 L O R 2 A B
XA AOEEM A M E R B AN A
(i 28 71 ) AR b A A HR g B LA 2 T Wi

WRNA

W 2 ] S S 5 S A S A B A L
B DU I8 ot B B A 4 AR R R

NEFTRAE

EEAARMAL Y~ &8 RST)

JARR G AR B R B o

WS 22 ) ) 4 ) i B AS 2 Y %

0~ F R £ 70 B 2 51 o

VT W AR A i 3 £ 2

— R WA JA > ) A 2 T WA i X B S A8 A
)N E RPN E e L E ]

e B P e A AR R PR A B

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the

effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the

Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if

this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related

costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred taxation assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire or share based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting

policy below); and

J assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis

specified in another standard.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales

related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised upon delivery of the properties to the buyers, at which time all

of the following criteria are satisfied:

. the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are

transferred to buyers;

o neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the properties

are retained;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated

statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the relevant lease.

Property management and related service fees are recognised in the period

in which the services are rendered.

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services are rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Promotion and advertising income is recognised when advertisements are
displayed on the advertising screens; or ratably over the displayed period

of the advertisement contract.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included

in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties

under construction.

Property under construction or development for future use as an
investment property is classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment property under construction will be measured at cost until
such time as fair value can be determined or development is completed, in
which time any difference between the fair value and the cartying amount

will be recognised in profit or loss in that period.

Properties under development for sales and properties held for sales are
transferred to investment properties under construction and completed
investment properties, respectively, when it is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its

previous carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in

profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for administrative
purposes (other than properties under development) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than properties under development) over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of development
for production, rental or for administrative purposes, the release of the
leasehold land is included as part of the costs of the properties under
development. Properties under development not for sale are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Properties under development
which are intended to be held for own use are shown as non-current

assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments represent upfront payments for land use
rights and are initially recognised at cost and released to profit or loss, or
capitalised as part of the cost of building as mentioned above, over the
lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those that are classified and
accounted for as properties under development intended to be held for

sale.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or

joint venture.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a
joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss

in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to

the Group.

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development are classified as current assets, and carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the related
land cost, development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,

borrowing costs capitalised.

Properties under development for sales are transferred to properties held

for sales upon completion.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the costs of land, development expenditure incurred
and, where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value

is determined based on prevailing market conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the weighted average method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables or
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial

recognition.

Eftective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
accounts and other receivables and deposits, amounts due from joint
ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial

assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit

or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment

loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to

be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as accounts receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period, observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss

will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of accounts and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When an account and
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net cartying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including accounts payable, amounts due to joint
ventures, senior notes and bank and other borrowings) are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative
is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the

hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges for foreign currency

and interest rate movements exposure (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in

offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit

or loss and is included in the ‘other gains or losses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or loss
in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in
the same line of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain
or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the hedged

risk is ultimately recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative

amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition

policy.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entitety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in

profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental

expense on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the inception of

the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is released over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,

plant and equipment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e., the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred taxation liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred taxation assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred taxation
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at each end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For the purposes of measuring
deferred taxation liabilities or deferred taxation assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred taxation liabilities
and deferred taxation assets for such investment properties are measured
in accordance with the above general principles set out in IAS 12 (i.e.,

based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred taxation are recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred taxation
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred taxation arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, which is a defined
contribution plan, are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions. Payments made to
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments
to defined contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under
the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution

retirement benefit plan.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options/share awards to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options or shares granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase

in equity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options or shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share

option reserve or capital contribution reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will

be transferred to retained earnings.

For any modification to the terms and conditions of share options granted,
the incremental fair value granted is determined at the difference between
the fair value of the modified share options and that of the original share

options, both estimated as at the date of the modification.

If the modification occurs during the vesting period, the incremental fair
value granted is included in the measurement of the amount recognised
for services received over the period from the modification date until the
date when the modified share options vest, in addition to the amount
based on the grant date fair value of the original share options, which is

recognised over the remainder of the original vesting petiod.

If the modification occurs after vesting date, the incremental fair value

granted is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Wherte an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Income tax expense

As at December 31, 2013, deferred taxation assets of RMB1,063,481,000
(2012: RMB1,012,836,000) mainly in relation to tax losses, land
appreciation tax provisions, allowance for doubtful debts, government
grants, unrealised profit on intra-group purchases and others have been
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position,
after offsetting certain deferred taxation liabilities as set out in note
32. The realisability of the deferred taxation assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. The directors of the Company determine the
deferred taxation assets based on the enacted or substantively enacted
tax rates and the best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the deferred taxation assets are expected to
be utilised. The directors of the Company review the assumptions and
profit projections by the end of the reporting period. In cases where
the actual future profits generated are more or less than expected, an
additional recognition or a reversal of deferred taxation assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a

recognition or reversal takes place.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst different
tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the
Group have not yet finalised their land appreciation tax calculations
and payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly,
significant judgment is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The Group recognises
land appreciation tax based on management’s best estimates. The final tax
outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
and these differences will impact the income tax expense and the related
income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with

local tax authorities.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group'’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
petform the valuation. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer
reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company every half
year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and

liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain types
of financial instruments. Notes 14 and 42f provide detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the

determination of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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5. 2 ER 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

AL BRRE T B PO (RN R The Group determines its operating segments based on internal reports

1TEF) B4R/ 40 aL & B R X AR H L B about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief

T 7 AR s 19 7 R A 4 181 AR B 43 1 A operating decision maker (i.e., the executive directors of the Company) in

R o A T o order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance.

A [ 4 5 R AR R E S BT - B The Group is organised into business units based on their types of

I A 5 R T ) A B I A ROR A activities, based on which information is prepared and reported to the

LR DT B R KRR R B o AR Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource

R 0 S B S 45 U] 5 8 RS AR & A allocation and assessment of performance. The Group’s operating

#8 J A B B8 A8 A AT 43 DA = TH segments under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are identified as three main

ES/ operations:

o WIBEEERE : WO TREERE BN A . Property development: this segment develops and sells office
1 FERETYE - AEEES premises, commercial and residential properties. All of the Group’s
BH R T A 72 THT 26755 o activities in this regard are carried out in the PRC.

G VIR« w o S AR SE [ . Property investment: this segment leases investment properties,
G LIRS A= which are developed by the Group to generate rental income and
YR E P AR o AR to gain from the appreciation in the properties” values in the long
HAarm a6 T2 afTE term. Currently the Group’s investment property portfolio mainly
Y 2MARHE o comprises retail properties and are all located in the PRC.

o VI B RO BIRES « #%00 #h - 2 L Property management and related services: this segment mainly
BRYEEEL A - AERHE represents the income generated from property management.
HIAE 7 [ B 29 5 T B 26T o Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in the

PRC.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Company's executive directors
monitor the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable to

each operating segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current assets
directly attributable to each segment with the exception of certain
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, deposits
paid for acquisition of land use rights, interests in associates and
joint ventures, available-for-sale investments, deferred taxation
assets, taxation recoverable and other corporate assets. Other
corporate assets are not allocated to the operating segments because
they are head office assets or assets which are managed centrally by
the Group. The investment properties included in segment assets
are stated at cost when assessed by the chief operating decision
maker. Segment liabilities include trade payables and accrued
expenditure on construction, bills payable, deposits received and
receipt in advance from property sales, and other payables but
exclude taxation payable, deferred taxation liabilities, bank and
other borrowings, senior notes, derivative financial instruments
and other corporate liabilities. Other corporate liabilities are not
allocated to the operating segment because they are head office

liabilities or liabilities which are managed on a group basis.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. Segment profit does not include the
Group's share of results arising from the activities of the Group’s

joint ventures.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation, share of results of joint
ventures, change in fair value of investment properties and upon
transfer to investment properties, and finance costs (“Adjusted
Earnings”), where “interest” is regarded as including investment
income and “depreciation” is regarded as including impairment
losses on non-current assets. To arrive at Adjusted Earnings the
Group's earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ and auditor’s
remuneration and other head office or corporate administration

Costs.
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5. JHBER 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) PEREL - BEMAM ) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Wik 8 A B i R Y 2 R In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
A 5 A5 B A 4 0 0 A B profit, management is provided with segment information
afl > BRI (LG 8 B ) T concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales) and additions
3T I 458 1 SE S ) e v TR R B to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
HRERE o 4 HR IS5 T 2 B ) IR operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices
TSR 5 0 5 R 7 A charged to external parties for similar service.

A B A AR R BRI R Information regarding the Group's operating segments is set out
e below.

BREZR-=ZHTA=T—HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2013

S8

B M5

Property

ES {2 WHERE  management
Property Property  and related gt
development  investment services Total

ARHTE  ARKTLZ  ARWFTE ARKTE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

R AR FRITA Revenue from external customers 40,223,854 634,599 651,714 41,510,167
AP EIA Inter-segment revenue — — 106,032 106,032
Vi ON Segment revenue 40,223,854 634,599 757,746 41,616,199

1 e A1) (SRR B A Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 9,891,021 503,109 256,823 10,650,953

NiEE Segment assets 81,571,233 10,983,516 24,274 92,579,023
Gagi=U Segment liabilities 50,058,624 189,262 16,646 50,264,532
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5. SHBE R 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) HEPESE - BEERAM ) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

BE=F——F 1A t—HLEE
Year ended December 31, 2012

WRER K

B AR B

Property

E SIS WERE  management
Property Property  and related )
development  investment services Total

ABHTFL ARETT ARWTL ARKTT
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000

R EHAE PRI Revenue from external customers 26,946,129 483,373 463,328 27,892,830
B Inter-segment revenue — — 81,607 81,607
AHBICA Segment revenue 26,946,129 483373 544,935 27,974,437
43 A (RS TR ZE ) Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 9,941,407 380,066 173,057 10,494,530
I HRE Segment assets 67,084,344 9,491,397 22,553 76,598,294
IR Segment liabilities 44,819,990 202,010 6352 45,028,352
et 2335 B ) Other segment information

WEFHR

T P

Property

MR WERE management
Property Property  and related At
development  investment services Total

ANRBHTT ARETT ARWTT ARKTT
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

ST > 0 E I Amounts included in the measure

FTAZ A - of segment assets:
i S 2013
NEFEREEE (FE) Additions to non-current assets (Note) 34,462 2,227,658 5,420 2,267,540
SR-TH 2012
R E I G () Additions to non-current assets (Note) 27,992 1,543,403 3,876 1,575,271
W HOEAEREREW R EY Note: Amounts comprise additions to investment properties and property, plant

ERY G and equipment.
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5. ¥R

(a)

(b)

ERRA - BAERER )
Wk 288 B A B o S i A 1 23 6 R
b > EELEIKNERBARA
LEERE TR - AR B FUR AR B
B T RO A B B A AR R S A (i
) A BRSNS KB
BSERR - BUEYE R B8 EY)
KR RTEEE) - HAA ~ HoAb
Wedi - EAREENBERA - TE
LLB AT G L 2 8 00 A B s
HmfF) -

AHRON ~ HHAR - EE KR
i Y B f

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
profit, the chief operating decision maker is provided with
information concerning the Group’s consolidated amount of
interests in associates and related share of results (if any), interests
in joint ventures and related share of results, changes in fair
value of investment properties and upon transfer to investment
properties, other income, other gains, finance costs from
borrowings, depreciation and impairment losses (if any) which are

not allocated to operating segments.

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities

2= —3-—f
2013 2012
AREFLE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

N Revenue
RIS Segment revenue 41,616,199 27,974,437
1 SO A 3 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (106,032) (81,607)
EREA Consolidated revenue 41,510,167 27,892,830
it A1) Profit
a3 vt Al Segment profit 10,650,953 10,494,530
HAb g A Other income 453,586 182,839
HAth i £z (E548) Other gains (losses) 324,719 (11,814)
R BRI Fair value gain upon transfer to

AFE I AR investment properties 71,362 293,107
BN TS E) Change in fair value of investment properties 2,521,127 1,015,475
il A Finance costs (39,434) (47,612)
AL & B EES Share of results of joint ventures 320,678 247,760
e Depreciation (39,210) (33,232)
R AT BL B3 Unallocated expenses (1,045,127) (839,511)
S A BRI g A Consolidated profit before taxation 13,218,654 11,301,542
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5. wER @ 5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) ZHEWA - B BERA (b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,
R EHR (40) assets and liabilities (Continued)
s T i
2013 2012
AREFLE ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
2903 Assets
IR R Segment assets 92,579,023 76,598,294
BEWENTHRFEE) Cumulative change in fair value
of investment properties 12,854,650 8,930,669
ET‘H &0 Prepaid lease payments 11,602,243 8,996,739
TR W O ) R i Interests in associates 1 1
A %J/L\%E’J i Interests in joint ventures 3,100,559 2,068,488
Al it Available-for-sale investments 8,600 8,600
LA L T A R R4 Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights 5,653,024 6,949,391
AR A G Deferred taxation assets 1,063,481 1,012,836
A i [e] ol TE Taxation recoverable 2,626,762 2,222,095
R 43 T A i L Ath Unallocated head office and other assets 14,683,624 18,639,384
FREEME Consolidated total assets 144,171,967 125,426,497
=L Liabilities
G S=Lr Segment liabilities 50,264,532 45,028,352
JRE A B I Taxation payable 8,511,214 7,899,467
R A TH £ Deferred taxation liabilities 2,959,231 2,432,002
SRAT S HAAE X Bank and other borrowings 27,528,162 25,583,786
BRRRE Senior notes 10,174,918 7,252,980
&R TR Derivative financial instruments 214,816 114,152
R 43 i A % At 2 R Unallocated head office and other liabilities 4,743,675 4,538,346
e AR Consolidated total liabilities 104,396,548 92,849,085
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5. IBER ) 5,
(o)  FBEE 5 B P A Wi £ (©

ALEE A B - BUEYE R
BEmeBs BT ag AT I

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from major product and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its

properties sold, properties invested and services provided:

Sk —p s
2013 2012
ANRETFL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEYE Sales of properties 40,223,854 26,946,129
HEE Leasing of properties 634,599 483,373
FRAILY) 2578 PR S Provision of property management services 651,714 463,328
41,510,167 27,892,830

d) HEER (d) Geographic information

TREFZHEWFE - HEYER
SRR BT 12 3k iy 0 A7 Bl A
SEEAK QSR EFRARER «
VLB O 45 S E A S P B

The following table sets out information about the Group's revenue
from external customers by cities in the PRC, based on the location
at which the properties ate sold, properties are invested and services

are provided. Information about its non-current assets is analysed

AT by geographical location of assets.
KAIRE P A
Revenue from external JERENE
customers Non-current assets
R =E —F-F ZE =8 T F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ANREFL ARETL AREFLT ARETIL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB 000
Gl Chongging 10,454,706 8,918,384 15,100,732 16,065,609
B[ Beijing 6,215,618 6,092,996 6,487,691 5,402,335
JH Chengdu 5,538,354 2,788,468 6,181,143 3,624,105
B Hangzhou 4,502,021 1,366,055 2,489,639 2,110,067
W Sunan 4,300,614 3,651,550 1,148,058 1,374,611
20 At 3k T Other cities in the PRC 10,498,854 5,075,377 12,946,795 8,007,380
41,510,167 27,892,830 44,354,058 36,584,107

WRE < IR O B W 7 B 4 < T B ok

MEAE S B — AN R AT A B ik
AFEARLEBLA M 10% LA L o
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Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred taxation

assets.

No revenue from transaction with a single external customer

amounts to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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Hofib A 6. OTHER INCOME
TR =g R T
2013 2012
ANREFE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FLEdA Interest income 116,039 139,813
A R R T Dividend income from unlisted
B A available-for-sale investments 1,310 1,312
R Government subsidies 252,594 16,040
BRI (HH5E) Penalty income (Note) 32,552 16,400
METE LA Sundry income 51,091 9,274
st Total 453,586 182,839
WL - SRR S & BB R B K Note: It represents penalty received from property buyers who do not execute sales and
ICHR R A4 purchase agreement on property sales.
Jefiea O ) 7. OTHER GAINS (LOSSES)
—E g FE T
2013 2012
AR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B ~ RRGE R ke i Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 28,300 6,379
T e 2 (R 80 ) VAR (Bff3E) Net exchange gain (loss) (Note) 296,419 (18,193)
324,719 (11,814)
BiGE : sE R BT (T ) ®En([Ex)) Note: It represents exchange difference arising from bank balances, bank borrowings and
M ERATAS B ~ SRATME R S B S i A Y senior notes, original currencies of which are either Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD”) or
T 5t 22 48 o United States Dollar (‘USD”).
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BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
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8. WA 8. FINANCE COSTS
N St R St
2013 2012
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT B HoAt A& 3RS Interest on bank and other borrowings
BIRCINFS 447 Wholly repayable within five years (1,768,110)  (1,515,565)
FIAE N B HAR Not wholly repayable within five years (26,208) (53,388)
B IE RSB Interest expense on senior notes (833,871) (501,708)
W BRI ERE AL B Less: Amount capitalised to properties
under development 2,588,755 2,023,049
(39,434) (47,612)

B AL A B R A R B AR AR Y —
M RE Rz -2 -=F1+_H
ST —HIEFEERGEIS%(ZF— 2
4 6.9%) MEARLILRGE > SIAGE
% B S -

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

Borrowing costs capitalised arose on the general borrowing pool of the

Group and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 7.5%
(2012: 6.9%) per annum for the year ended December 31, 2013, to

expenditure on the qualifying assets.
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Ji £ B8 A 5 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
e S N St
2013 2012
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IR Current tax
B ZE TR B ([ ZE TR ) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (2,359,979)  (2,439,303)
FR [ M (AR ([ - (E R ) PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (1,793,609)  (2,136,277)
(4,153,588)  (4,575,580)
TEAF A - Overprovision in prior years:
s (E L+ LAT* 47,384 31,154
(4,106,204)  (4,544,426)
R LB JE (B3R 32) Deferred taxation (note 32)
AR BE Current year (476,584) 108,358
(4,582,788)  (4,436,068)
* A TR PR ER — (R SE T B S (B © The actual appreciation value of a property project had been finalised during the

TEARE B il st S E AR > BT
F- o 35 (EL B R A

R A LB BABEAE B KRB EF
W Bl A A AR BB -

AR 4% vp B A 2 A3 Bk (T 2T 15 8L
%) RAEFEBRIL R > A%
FNE—H—H R B g2 ) B
3 5 25% o

ARFRPEEENETHEARSE
1 A R G N A Y B AR SE BT A
B e

AR A B v B 3 P 15 0 4 R S AR B8
/NGBS o T B L A E R
B ZE 755 1 v R B B ) A 4 A 2 T
RBUBLAE o fi5% 55 /A 7] 57 5k B 26755 T 45
AF S A AR R A 709 0 RIS
R FE— = 15% (2012 1 15%) 1 &
HERRHNA AR AR EER
HHEREHLIE -

year which differed from the management’s estimated appreciation value made in

prior years, resulting in an overprovision of LAT in respect of prior years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group

does not have income which arises in, or is derived from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%

from January 1, 2008 onwards.

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries operating in the PRC are eligible

for exemption from PRC EIT for both years.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and regulations,
preferential corporate income tax rates have been granted to certain PRC
subsidiaries of the Company which were established in western regions
and engaged in the encouraged business. These companies are subject to a
preferential rate of 15% in 2013 (2012: 15%), subject to approval of the
tax authority, if the annual income derived from the encouraged business

is more than 70% of the annual total income.
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9.  PifaBB X )

4 B2 LA A 1 R I 2 T
PR BT IR B T

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

N St R St
2013 2012
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
W iy e 7] Profit before taxation 13,218,654 11,301,542
25% H) H B 4 SE P 5Bt PRC EIT at 25% (3,304,664)  (2,825,386)
JREAG & 78 2 SE A 1 B 7S o 2 Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 80,170 61,940
FUBLIAT A T?ﬂf‘?ﬁﬂﬁi Tax effect of expenses not deductible
B 5 28 (ot for tax purposes (Note) (105,782) (131,093)
HLBLIA T 5 TR u%ﬁ WA B 3 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 3,149 4,931
T (B LAT (1,793,609)  (2,136,277)
T bt R B R 2 Tax effect of LAT 448,402 534,069
TEAF A B A Overprovision in prior years 47,384 31,154
R R B JE 4R N B i 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (465) (1,027)
T e A RS Y Effect of tax exemption and preferential rates
ol T S S B R 2 1 2 granted to certain PRC subsidiaries 19,438 25,621
EL A P B Bl 9 T B Withholding tax levied on dividend paid 23,189 —
R A Tax charge for the year (4,582,788)  (4,436,068)

BT © S L AR R AN T 1k £ B 5
et AR 2 ) B S L AR B B A ML Y
AT B B B

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

Note:

The amount mainly comprises the tax effect of non-deductible corporate expenses

of the Group and the expenses of certain subsidiaries in excess of the allowable

deduction limits in accordance with the relevant tax regulations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B =t =R

For the year ended December 31, 2013

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

—F=F B
2013 2012
ARWETFE  ARWTFL
RMB’000  RMB’000

Profit for the year has been arrived

at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration 4,049 3,520
Cost of property inventories included in

cost of sales 26,936,011 16,070,157
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 39,210 33,232
Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (28,300) (6,379)
Minimum lease payment

of operating lease rentals 34,947 19,623
Staff costs

Directors’ emoluments (including equity-settled

Tt B ZERRE O A5 20 (BfFsE11) share-based payments) (note 11) 88,698 95,165
HAth B TRiA Other staff costs
RIRAEF iR Retirement benefit contributions 162,809 108,425
AR £ 5 53 S ey By BEBRE A £+ 35 Equity-settled share-based payments 72,575 85,859
Hofth B T A Other staff costs 1,025,250 922,980
B T A Total staff costs 1,349,332 1,212,429
W BERAENE A SR Less: Amount capitalised to properties
under development (623,878) (524,222)
725,454 688,207
Ea - L/ELORTYITTEA(ON Minimum lease income from
investment properties 509,203 405,692
SR B Contingent rental income 125,396 77,681
W EAFA AR BB 52 Less: direct expenses that generated rental income (126,926) (98,584)
507,673 384,789

Share of tax of joint ventures
(included in share of results of joint ventures) 241,995 190,146

4F # Annual Report 2013




5F o RS e B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—® it AT

For the year ended December 31, 2013

11. H3 ~ 7 B8R R B 5 11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

DS

RSt

RIERE

BN JBfk ftak

Tchuad] HR Bk Equity-

HEE Basic Retirement settled
Directors’ salaries and fBAL benefit  share-based st
fees other benefits Bonus contributions ~ payments Total

ABHFR  ARKTE  ARKFZ  ARKTE  ARKFT  ARKTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

(i)
(Note)
HE_Z—=F Year ended December 31, 2013
FZAZF—H
L5
s Name of director
WirES Executive Director:
LR S Madam Wu Yajun — 5,000 5,000 80 — 10,080
REE Mr. Qin Lihong — 3475 1,400 72 4,058 9,005
H A e e M. Shao Mingxiao — 5917 6,000 72 18,232 30,221
e Mr. Zhou Dekang — 3,933 3,800 80 3,013 10,826
LSt Mr. Feng Jinyi — 3,750 4,000 67 5,136 12,953
BERRS Mr. Wei Huaning — 3,613 3,800 72 5,759 13,244
RS Independent non-executive director:
Frederick Peter M. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Churchouse /&2 350 — — — 243 593
HEEE Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek 350 — — — 247 597
Ui R Dr. Xiang Bing 350 = = = 247 597
el Dr. Zeng Ming 350 — — — 232 582
1,400 25,688 24,000 443 37,167 88,698

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B =t =R

For the year ended December 31, 2013

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND

(#%) EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
DR
Rt
R
EAF % RIK fi3x
RctAA] TRl Equity-
EHHE Basic Retirement settled
Directors salaries and L4 benefit  share-based it
fees  other benefits Bonus  contributions payments Total
ARETFE  AREFLE  AREFT  AREFZ AREFT  AREFx
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(HF3E)
(Note)
HE-Z—F Year ended December 31, 2012
+ZA=+—H
IHAEEE
i dis Name of director
WireEs: Executive Director:
REELL Madam Wu Yajun — 5,000 5,000 80 — 10,080
% R M Mr. Fang Shengtao = 1,231 = 29 2,907 4167
FbEE Mr. Qin Lihong — 3,200 2,600 72 5,425 11,297
G5 e Mr. Shao Mingxiao — 5,000 5,000 72 19,723 29,79
AR Mr. Zhou Dekang — 3,200 4000 80 3,836 11,116
BHELE Mr. Feng Jinyi - 3,200 4,000 67 5,703 12,970
BERE Mr. Wei Huaning — 3,200 3,800 72 6,698 13,770
B Independent non-executive director:
Frederick Peter Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Churchouse 72 /E 243 — — — 250 493
B Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek 23 — — — 253 496
BEHL Dr. Xiang Bing 243 - - - 253 496
L Dr. Zeng Ming 243 - — — 242 485
972 24,031 24,400 412 45,290 95,165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—® it AT
For the year ended December 31, 2013

11. HH - FBARKEMEBHM 11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

(#4) EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

N e o = 7 NN L R R - A Mr. Shao Mingxiao is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his

SCH R B < B 5 LA AR AT BUB R AR emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as

RS I 5 o the Chief Executive.

FfbsE o B B A% A5 S AH B8 A 6 AT 2 {1 N S B % Note: The bonus relates to performance related incentive payment which is determined
REFMBE T ZFE R T ——F+ based on performance of individual and as a percentage of the profit of the Group
HA=+—HILEERGEFE S LEE - for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

1 5 357 Employee’s emoluments

BE_Z—-=+"H=+—HI%E The five highest paid individuals included five (2012: five) directors for

B A4 maHFMALBFELL(CE the year ended December 31, 2013.

— A R EF o

BE_RX—="H£F _F—_"4%+_H During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, no emoluments

== B AR AR B A S A AR were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or the five

) 2 5 A 4 e BN AT o 5 highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the

£ 558 N S A 7R 4E [ 4% 1) 48 B 5% Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors of the

ER M - 22— =R =% Company has waived any emoluments during the years ended December

—ZHTZA=ZT—HIEEE AAH 31,2013 and 2012.

R R

12. & 12. DIVIDEND
ZF =2 CFCF
2013 2012
ANRBTL  ARHTFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
N ERR RIS Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
R AR AR E R Final dividend paid in respect of 2012

AR¥ 0270 (ZF—Z4 of RMBO.2 (2012: in respect of

SR ——ERRARY0.175 70) 2011 of RMB0.175) per shate 1,082,568 902,980

AAFERERRERE T —=

TZHA=E T HIEFEERARBRE AR
#1,241,000,000 7C > & i A R #0.228
T(CE - BE R
H=1—HIEFEEHARBBE A AR
1,085,755,000 76 » & A K #0.270) »
AR B SR T i J SR 4K At e o

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

A final dividend of RMB1,241,000,000, representing RMB0.228 per
share, in respect of the year ended December 31, 2013 (2012: final
dividend of RMB1,085,755,000, representing RMBO0.2 per share, in
respect of the year ended December 31, 2012) has been proposed by the
directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in

the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B =t =R

For the year ended December 31, 2013

(53 &Rl 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
AN T HEAA N RE AL B I A % v 2 The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
B EHE T A DL T $d the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
R = R4
2013 2012
ANBETFL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
A G PR IR e A T e 1 Earnings attributable to the owners of
WAL RIHEA A the Company for the purposes of calculation
JRE A 22 ] of basic and diluted earnings per share 8,037,222 6,301,060
R -=E R0
2013 2012
TH T
‘000 000
s g Number of shares
R R IR A A Weighted average number of ordinary shares
114 288 R o HE S35 for the purpose of calculation of basic
earnings per share 5,437,386 5,238,342
i FBOHE AR B 2 4 i Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
) VL 5 in respect of
— share options 55,935 46,990
R R e v 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
V149 325320 I - 440 for the purpose of calculation of diluted
earnings per share 5,493,321 5,285,332
BE_F - T+ HA=1—HIF For the year ended December 31, 2012, the share options granted on
B iR AR R AT A g = — A January 17, 2011 under the Post-IPO share option scheme adopted
AT 3 B AR A A B AR T 2 T A - K on December 23, 2009 are not included in the calculation of diluted
w58 1 M O S R AR BE =% earnings per share as the adjusted exercise price was greater than the
ZRET AT =HERANERAH average market price of the Company’s shares during the outstanding
BERBERESHR -F-—4—H period in 2012.
L B A IR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE=R S A0
For the year ended December 31, 2013

14 BeEWE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e¥m ERRENE
BEMFE  Investment
Completed properties
investment under At
properties construction Total
ANRWTIT  ARWTLT ARWTT
RMB’ 000 RMB 000 RMB’000
A FAIR VALUE
WoFE—-—FE—H—H At January 1, 2012 8,298,200 4,900,000 13,198,200
N Additions 8,639 1,524,862 1,533,501
AR A A O Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 2,186,077 2,186,077
WA R B Transfer from properties held
(FiH&E) for sales (Note) 156,940 — 156,940
L Transfer 2,665,938 (2,665,938) —
FE Y RS Fair value gain upon transfer of properties
REWEZNTE held for sales to investment properties 96,360 — 96,360
TR AR B AR Fair value gain upon transfer of prepaid lease
REMEZ N TER R payments to investment properties — 196,747 196,747
TR E % HERR Y - (H Net increase in fair value recognised
b DIIREER in profit or loss 553,523 461,952 1,015,475
W T — 4 At December 31, 2012
+=A=t+—H 11,779,600 6,603,700 18,383,300
NE Additions 2,407 2,219,578 2,221,985
R A ESE Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 727,638 727,638
Lxc Transfer 3,023,438 (3,023,438) —
AR R Cost adjustment (112,012) = (112,012)
AR B O g Fair value gain upon transfer of prepaid lease
BB E 2 N FE LS payments to investment properties — 71,362 71,362
JA R B HERR 1 - (E Net increase in fair value recognised
S in profit or loss 1,212,267 1,308,860 2,521,127
AT =4 At December 31, 2013
+ZA=+—H 15,905,700 7,907,700 23,813,400
ESiEt/E S Unrealised gain on property revaluation
H) A 5 B i 4 included in profit or loss 10,230,384 2,624,266 12,854,650

Note: The transfers from properties held for sales to investment properties were made

WHE © dR BANRA LR BB » B
WAIRCBOE > 5 A FRAF B Y S

since there was a change in use as evidenced by the commencement of operating

leases to outside parties.

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]




14

o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEWE )
HELEUIRE I G P o L -
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AR A R R AR R

LT 58P AT S 0 3924
i

B % B 3 — M BLA A s i & A
PR AEARE > W EA Y
T REE AT LA

TR 36 — FE AT B M S M AR R e T R
o R R S A R A > Sl R S
58 JRL R FRE TR S8 B BAS S B T Y
AL R E e RIEA N E R -

A% S I 1A B B R < AR AR B (i
(B A AR BT ) SE R R DL Y
THEEAR BE 2B EARIMEREY
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ARG N TN B E ik (e
SRAG (T R A %) > DL AREE S
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14.

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are all situated in the PRC under medium-

term leases.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at dates of transfer
and December 31, 2013 and 2012 have been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out on those dates by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, a firm of independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group, who have appropriate qualifications and recent

experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined by the

valuers on the following basis:

Completed properties — arrived at by capitalising the net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary

incoming potential of the respective properties.

Properties under construction — valued on the basis that they will be
developed and completed in accordance with the latest development
proposals and taken into account the construction costs that will be
expended to complete the development as well as developer’s profit

margin to reflect the quality of the completed development.

All of the Group’s property interests in leasehold land and buildings to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the

fair value model and classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

4F # Annual Report 2013
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BE_Z-=F+"A=+—HL
For the year ended December 31, 2013

14 BEWE

AEME AR BRI
R
Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated

statement of financial position

REF-=5+-A=1—H

At December 31, 2013

TR B - P
27 Ll

Completed investment properties -

shopping malls in Western China

FRE

APESER
Fair value

hierarchy

BZRY

Level 3

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

flEH A R E AR

Valuation technique(s) and key inpu(s)

feds B ALk
FEHAYGEA

W) Mg

0 MREEATAA R
06) BAENHS

0 MHETHS

Income capitalisation method

The key inputs are

(1) Term yield

) Reversionary yield
() Monthly term rental
(@] Reversionary rental

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi #b 7 A B 2 ]

ERAT B0\

Significant unobservable input(s)

R BT R A
URREliELATICE SR (- T
EARERIEH TR » FF3.5% % 6% °

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated
by market average selling price and the market
average rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the lower market risk for the

term value, range from 3.5% to 6%.

WREEA ARG RS E E R
WS PR E R RlE % i
B DRBED O RF45% £ -

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the conditions of the

shopping malls, range from 4.5% t0 7%.

BREMNE A EHHER AR E AT
s FHRARK T/ Fik/ AEA
B/ ¥/ -

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from
the rental as stated in the existing rental agreements
with an average of RMB39/sq.m./month to
RMB221/sq.m/month.

QEAGLEY SRR LT ]
wIFIHS  FHRARKs0T/ Fhk/
AENRW s/ FHk/A -

Reversionary rental is derived from the market
rentals from comparable properties or the rental as
stated in the new rental agreements with an average
of RMB80/sq.m./month to RMB560/sq.m/ month.

B

Sensitivity

BT 5 B R 2 o B T R
B SEHATENERR AR TH] -

Thete is no indication that any slight change in
the term yield would result in significant higher

or lower fair value measurement.

LSRR 5507 0 R LA 2 B A
N2 S EHAFEHERE LR
Tk

Thete is no indication that any slight change in
the reversionary yield would result in significant

higher or lower fair value measurement.

WA HBAT R SO ERE A E
MR TR T -

No sensitivity analysis for monthly term rental
since they are derived from existing rental

agreements.

BEMR B 5 8m vl RE T AT L < 0 B A A8
B SEERANFE R AR AR T -

Thete is no indication that any slight change in
the reversionary rental would result in significant

higher or lower fair value measurement.
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ARHRGARBRIE
R
Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated

statement of financial position

oh B R £ B
Investment properties under

development in Western China

APEER
Fair value

hierarchy

F=B%
Level 3
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BE

B4 A= LA

For the year ended December 31, 2013

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

e TNt

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
Fltis

FEHABSES
(1) AR
@ RG]
) fiBi%

The residual method

The key inputs are
M Gross development value
@ Developer's profit

3) Discount rate

ERATEEHALRE

Significant unobservable input(s)

DA T AR AR BRI - ZIBBIA AR
WEMLENBHER > MEmAKD  FEA
RicnmETLEARN STET -

Gross development value on completion basis,
taking into account of location and individual
factors such as frontage and size, between the
comparables and the property, range from RMB692
million to RMB3,504 million.

PREERAIAIT - % R T I 3005 R
B R 109 % 20% -

Developer's profit, taking into account of the
comparables land transactions and progress of the

property, range from 10% to 20%.

BB BT HRAHE REs6%%
6.15% °
Discount rate, taking into account of the prevailing

market interest rates, range from 5.6% to 6.15%.

B

Sensitivity

AREEEENLT HEHAPEAR L
b B2k -

A slight increase in the gross development value
would result in a significant increase in fair value

and vice versa.

BEREVE S B B S T A R B B
B SEEHATENERREARTH] -

There is no indication that any slight change in
the developer's profit would result in significant

higher or lower fair value measurement.

R ES TN RS LR LU TR
ST ERHEAR AR -

There is no indication that any slight change
in the discount rate would result in significant

higher or lower fair value measurement.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

14 BEWE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

ARHRGARBRIE
R
Investment properties
held by the Group APEER
in the consolidated Fair value [EUPETTIN ¢ 3 EVNNIE 722 TN ¢ R
statement of financial position hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) Significant unobsetvable input(s) Sensitivity
RiG B R HZBY Flts DA T AR AR R IER ARRAREMNLL  HERAPENRL
Investment property under development  Level 3 The residual method WEMGEREARE - MERALAS > AAR F> K2R
in Pan Bohai Rim B 049 H AT o A slight increase in the gross development value
LERARA ; S

(1) A EEN
0} R
) fisi%

The key inputs are
1) Gross development value
0) Developer's profit

(3) Discount rate

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi #b 7 A B 2 ]

Gross development value on completion basis,
taking into account of location and individual factors
such as frontage and size, between the comparables

and the property, of RMB6,049 million.

PREETAIAIT - % R T I 3005 R
B Bisee

Developer's profit, taking into account of the
comparables land transactions and progress of the

property, of 15%.

WigE > ZBHMERGHE  B5.6% e
Discount rate, taking into account of the prevailing

market interest rate, of 3.6%.

would result in a significant increase in fair value

and vice versa.

AR 57 A 0 1 0t B 2
B SEEHATENERE AR TH] -

Thete is no indication that any slight change in
the developer's profit would result in significant

higher or lower fair value measurement.

AR S BUR BB L B (E B - o
GRYNTEFEAREAR T -

There is no indication that any slight change
in the discount rate would result in significant

higher or lower fair value measurement.
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AEMR A R RTE
HH2kEmE
Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated

statement of financial position

REMELRRENE
Investment properties under

development in Yangtze River Delta

APEER
Fair value

hierarchy

FEH
Level 3
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BE

B4 A= LA

For the year ended December 31, 2013

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

B LEES IS

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

Flghik

EX2 N ¢ v}
n  ASREEHE
@ B AR
06) HiBi%

The residual method

The key inputs are
(1) Gross development value
@ Developer's profit

(3) Discount rate

EARTRE AR

Significant unobservable input(s)

DR TRAEEMARIREE - 285 %
RpEOAENEHEE > mEmALD - R
FARMK L6 HETENRN 052 TR -
Gross development value on completion basis,
taking into account of location and individual factors
such as frontage and size, between the comparables
and the property, range from RMB1,567 million to
RMB3,052 million.

PRSI % T8 2T M 35 5 AR
R By1sw e

Developer's profit, taking into account of the
comparables land transactions and progress of the

propetty, of 15%.

WHRE ZEAMGAGHNE R FonZ
6.15%
Discount rate, taking into account of the prevailing

market interest rate, range from 6% to 6.15%

B

Sensitivity

ARREEEMET - AR TR £
Tho B2k »

A slight increase in the gross development value
would result in a significant increase in fair value

and vice versa.

BEREVE S B0 B ST O A BT
B SEHATENERE LA TH -

There is no indication that any slight change in
the developer's profit would result in significant

higher or lower fair value measurement.

BRI S BUr B R L R B MRS - &
ERYNFER BRI AT -

There is no indication that any slight change
in the discount rate would result in significant

higher or lower fair value measurement.
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BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

15. W3 ~ WG Bt Al

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PR ARAR
BHHE  Equipment
M Motor and At
Buildings vehicles furniture Total
ANBHFL  AREFL  AREFFL  ARETFL
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
A COST
WZF—_F—A—H At January 1, 2012 168,800 45,742 65,268 279,810
nE Additions 57 8,705 33,008 41,770
EHARELEYE Transfer from properties held for sales 6,121 — — 6,121
ik Disposals (5,554) (2,266) (1,352) 9,172)
REF—-ZAHEFZA=+—H At December 31, 2012 169,424 52,181 96,924 318,529
wE Additions 64 9,196 36,295 45,555
e Disposals 9,227) (2,300) (2,888) (14,415)
RF—=4FZA=+—H At December 31, 2013 160,261 59,077 130,331 349,669
e ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
RZE—-"F—H—H At January 1, 2012 43,069 26,522 35,136 104,727
AR IR Charge for the year 8,240 7,161 17,831 33,232
B R Eliminated on disposals (2,329) (2,153) (1,136) (5,618)
RoF——FF - H=1—H At December 31, 2012 48,980 31,530 51,831 132,341
A EFIBR Charge for the year 8,196 6,413 24,601 39,210
L 8 Eliminated on disposals (1,943) (2,086) (2,684) (6,713)
REZ—EHFZH=1—H At December 31, 2013 55,233 35,857 73,748 164,838
R CARRYING VALUES
REZF-ZHFZA=Z+—H At December 31, 2013 105,028 23,220 56,583 184,831
RZF—ZAHEFZA=+—H At December 31, 2012 120,444 20,651 45,093 186,188
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15. Y3k ~ Wim Bt fi )
FARAE - BR RAHE E ASE R
AR A (3R B 1 B
it -

M FEAd Tl (6 F 430 20 4F
¢ B 20%

B! 33%

T BT AE 2 335 07 7 P B > AR P A
BHA -

16. AR KR

T AL 5 O B R T (96 7E o IR A R
T FIHE - AT AT

16.

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated

residual values at the following rates per annum:

Buildings
Motor vehicles 20%

Equipment and furniture ~ 33%

Over the estimated useful lives of 20 years

The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC held under medium-

term leases.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments represents land use rights
held in the PRC and is analysed as follows:

R T

2013 2012

ABWFIE  ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

Hh i Medium-term 4,527,954 4,806,156
=2 Long-term 7,074,289 4,190,583
JEENHA Non-current 11,602,243 8,996,739

AR [ TS AL R SRR S 5 AE T B A
T 40 4F 2 70 T VR ) 3645 TR 1Y £ 3t i
FARE I AT A BRI o i =T — =4
A=+—H &L A BB
5T A R 5,848,419,000 G (= &
— 4 N 3,872,338,000 7 ) [ FE
FEL T i 7 RS o

The Group's prepaid lease payments represent payments for acquisition
of the land use rights in the PRC with lease terms ranging from 40 to
70 years for the purpose of property development. The Group had not
yet obtained the certificates of land use rights of prepaid leases with a
carrying value of RMB5,848,419,000 (2012: RMB3,872,338,000) from

the relevant authorities at December 31, 2013.
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17. BB A 6 B HE LR 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

R -=E T
2013 2012
ANRETFIL  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

PG A > LT Cost of investments, unlisted 415 415

W DR IR (E R 1R Less: Impairment loss recognised (414) (414)
1 1

MNoE—=FE+ A =+—H2Z2EEN Details of the associates as at December 31, 2013 are set out in note 45.

R REREOR B E 45

18. REBAEMRER: 18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2=k -~
2013 2012
ARBFTE  AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

I & AR Cost of investments, unlisted 2,040,268 1,311,275
R A A A 0 A+ IR MR Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividend received 1,060,291 757,213

3,100,559 2,068,488

RE-F—-=ZF+ZA=Z+—HZA8EM Details of the joint ventures as at December 31, 2013 are set out in note
KRR R ML 45 45.

HRAESEME G Summarised financial information of material joint venture
A4 T K 7 2 S R S Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material joint
GBI o venture is set out below.

T BB R R R B R R The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown
W B 5 6 ) 4 R Y S R A 2 57 in the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
1 58 - IFRSs.

BB AR LA MR K A DU 4 51 The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
iR consolidated financial statements.

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]
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. R BAENRELR ) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
PR L O B B R A PR Longhu Land Limited
= -~z
2013 2012

ANR¥TFIL ANR¥TT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

T Current assets 3,710,503 2,960,430
B & Non-current assets 207,325 157,604
MBI A Current liabilities (2,080,764)  (1,714,482)

FHEE K AENSFEMTE FSIEH @ The above amounts of assets and liabilities

include the following:

e kB EEED Cash and cash equivalents 1,082,076 1,106,392

A Revenue 1,442,425 1,522,257

A iR R T 2 T Wi 45 4B AR Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 433,512 453,936
A FI R N IER The above profit for the year includes the following:

—F—=F —ZF—4F

2013 2012

ANRETFIL ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

e K Depreciation and amortisation 99) (156)
FEHA Interest income 23,039 16,303
A B H Interest expense (427) (422)
Fr A5 B 2 Income tax expense (370,331) (360,724)
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18. REBAEMRER )

50 S 5 AR S A
JEA B2 T IS A B 5 R R R

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in Longhu Land Limited recognised in the

i HR T (3 R consolidated financial statements:
“E S F U
2013 2012
ANR¥TFT  AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
L R RN R & Net assets of Longhu Land Limited 1,837,064 1,403,552
AR T o L o Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in
7 BRZA B HEA HE LA Longhu Land Limited 49.57% 49.57%
T M B e Y (L o 88 Y 3 Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition 71,866 71,866

7% S 17 R LA 3 9
A PR ) HE 5 10 R T (E

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in Longhu Land Limited 982,498 767,606

1 A TR Y 8 i SR A
Bt

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not

individually material

SR -=E T
2013 2012
AR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

7% B B8 A i ) B 2 T 2 A The Group’s share of profit and total

comprehensive income 105,786 22,744

19. Wt A%

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

= E-F
2013 2012
ANREFIL NRETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

I biihEs i SR 5 HE A Unlisted equity securities, at cost 8,600 8,600

bt I b T R B R AR E A
SEH AL E B EEAT I B R A A O
1 W% 5 B ) B B P (B 8
Ko AR EFRH AR EFREL
VA > ACH A R TR A R 0 (L

3 -

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

The above unlisted equity investments represent the investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities established in the
PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that its

fair value cannot be reliably measured.
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20. f#1 20. INVENTORIES
=8 —"ZT—_4F
2013 2012
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
e g ) Construction materials 757,676 656,220
TH 22 i S HoAth Consumables and others 2,973 989
760,649 657,209
21. ?ﬁﬁ FP ﬁ%%% 21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALES
R R -TUF
2013 2012
ANRHEFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
JRA COST

RAEA]) At the beginning of the year 57,727,061 46,197,041
NE Additions 29,715,675 20,372,024

B T gt | A AR B O Transfer from prepaid lease payments upon
commencement of construction 13,349,588 8,984,328
R ERE R EY Transfer to properties held for sales (35,424,100) (17,826,332)
RAE#E At the end of the year 65,368,224 57,727,061

BRAFEY R A B
%o

WoFE—=F A =1+—H §FA%
JR R B W S 00 R B T O MO T
£ %1 N B 46,105,000,000 76 (& — =
4F 0 N H36,194,000,000 70 ) o 15 76 1
i AR A T A A e T
{149 3 1 B T (L

The properties under development for sales are located in the PRC under

medium-term leases.

Included in the properties under development for sales classified as
current assets as at December 31, 2013 is carrying value of approximately
RMB46,105 million (2012: RMB36,194 million) which represents the
cartying value of the properties expected to be completed and sold after

more than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

22. Ffei B 22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALES
AEBMFEL EMEMR PR - T h The Group's properties held for sales are situated in the PRC. All the
RO S DURRAS 51 B o properties held for sales are stated at cost.
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23, MEWCHE S B LB REMCEKJE - 23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
354 B WA X8 AND PREPAYMENTS

B by ME i 3 A [ 4 S T 2 Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sales of properties and properties

B&E - FRBEEDENRME R ERBE investment. Considerations in respect of sales of properties are paid by

A E B W ek R S e M ERE T purchasers in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase

1> A4 A R FLF W AE A AR g agreements. For properties investment, rental income are paid by

Ol S SN tenants within two months in accordance with the terms in the tenancy
agreements.

=k —T—a
2013 2012
ANR¥EFLT NRETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

E 5 RENE A Trade receivables 362,725 334,977
HoAt BE IR R IR Other receivables, net of allowance for

doubtful debts 860,994 922,613
I 4L B R A Advances to suppliers 596,035 543,975
AT 5 2R R H A B VB Prepaid business tax and other taxes 2,385,688 2,280,980
AT T st A 45 Prepayments and utilities deposits 137,980 15,701

4,343,422 4,098,246

PIF B3R E R s {25 5 The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
FEE g 2 JE [ REBS A0 BT reporting period based on invoice date:
SR EE DR
2013 2012

ARWTFE  ARWFL
RMB’000  RMB’000

60 HA Within 60 days 327,436 284,169
612180 H 61 - 180 days 31,025 26,501
181 365 H 181 - 365 days 4,264 24,307

362,725 334,977
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JEE VB B 7 B i M Bk S
14 BT a0

RoE == 17%(Z
T—TAF 1 159%) 1B B ME N H BE 4 A
WIMERE > BEEERSAME -

REFE—=F+ZH=+—HFAL%E
V) i B R B 1) B ) T Wl BRE 2 R
T F A5 A B8 300,905,000 70 (— F — =
4 N R 284,544,000 8 ) > HE R K
HHA B > H AL RS & T %
< x9Sk EJUEL BER b E UL
S (L TE M R A e TR HRE i K T 4
B > MO G AR S IR B A o

A S FL R 9 (1 2 OB WS TE O B 70 AT

25

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
At December 31, 2013, 17% (2012: 15%) of the trade receivables are

neither past due nor impaired and with satisfactory credit quality.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable balance are trade receivables
with a carrying amount of RMB300,905,000 (2012: RMB284,544,000)
at December 31, 2013 which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment as the Group
has retained the legal titles of the properties sold to these customers and
the estimated fair value of the relevant properties is expected to be higher

than the outstanding receivable amount.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

TR DFE T

2013 2012

ANRETFIT ANRFETFL

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

60 H A Within 60 days 265,616 233,736
612180 H 61 - 180 days 31,025 26,501
181 %365 H 181 - 365 days 4,264 24,307
HEr Total 300,905 284,544

A i 7 B o IR SO T R W [ g > AR 4R
W15 58 O U R B H A TR
B 5 BGRfE RE RN E) -
JA % 5 A RE K HL A B A B By
EHREAR -

AL I > A5 B T R
A AR S 2 FHER > B
Ao B AR A MR AR e Rt o T A
W A 390 A R B AEL PR &5 B 39 A BL A 9 1R

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables from
the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.
The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being

large and unrelated.

Before accepting any customers, the Group uses an internal credit
assessment system to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and
considers adequate allowance has been made at the end of the reporting
period. Balances which are neither past due nor impaired are all with

good credit quality.
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23.

24.

25.

MR sk il M WO O
4 BB sk )
REF—=4F+ZA=+—H > HAE
o] E A RE e Bl
BREBEE 2R TRES B
A5 3K K B AR BB B R) R R 1 45 TR
FHME%GS ZERHEEWEAR
#12,000,000C( =& — 4 AR
12,000,000 7C) - J& H £ ¥ FH A B E
1) B R I 3 L 7 4 (o0 o7 40k 2% 5 A5 B
AATATHEA o B F RO A5 BR M R o

Al R SR L SR M 1 52 ) -

) B AR K R

23.

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Other receivables mainly comprise rental deposits, receivable of
refund of the deposit for land auction, deposits for construction work,
temporary payments and miscellaneous projects related deposits paid
which are refundable upon maturity, of which, RMB12,000,000 (2012:
RMB12,000,000) was impaired as at December 31, 2013 because the
counterparties are in severe financial difficulties and the Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The remaining balance was not yet

due for repayment.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on other receivables:

—E=E SR
2013 2012
ANBETLT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Balance at the beginning of the year and
at the end of the year 12,000 12,000

[leig:gne ¢

FE R 8 b R R - B AR
—HEREE -

TG BRAT A2k AT 45 B
KBl

BRI ERAT A AL AN R RHE - EE AR
LT SRAT I A2 > BECR f3 % 4R (it
Bk R_F—=F+ A =+—
H o 77 50 2 A R H035% (&
— A4 1 0.35%) ©

W T — =8 BT ER > RAT4S
ik I B LA 2 L ST AR A AL IR
#181,496,787 (. F — —4F « AR
321,895,000 JG) - 0] FIA TS & V) 358
HH -
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24.

25.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and are

repayable within one year.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits are denominated in RMB which mainly represent
deposits pledged to banks to secure the mortgage guarantees provided
to customers. The deposits carry fixed rate at 0.35% (2012: 0.35%) per

annum at December 31, 2013.

Included in bank balances and cash are balances which, in accordance
with the applicable government regulations prevailing in 2013, are
placed in restricted bank deposits, amounting to of RMB181,496,787
(2012: RMB321,895,000), which can only be applied in the designated

property development projects.
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25. CIKMUT IR BT Bk
RBLE )

RATH R BB & WA R M FFA B &
B J5 20 391191 R 2y =1 A SAT M0 78 47
Ko SRAT B 17 REN BT E 39
(ZF—ZF:TF3%) -

B AT Y EARITRAT AR K
RATH R R &
—UARWFHE
— DUt E
—AEITEHE

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH (Continued)

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and demand
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The interest
rates on cash placed with banks ranged from nil to 3% (2012: nil to 3%)

per annum.
“FEF SR
2013 2012

ARHETE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

Analysis of pledged bank deposits/bank

balances and cash by cutrency:

— Denominated in RMB 14,122,290 14,949,588
— Denominated in HKD 118,156 1,787,906
— Denominated in USD 435,643 1,873,238

14,676,089 18,610,732

26. MEAHHRAK ~ Wk 4 B ME Gt
&N

5 5 M A VR % e - e S B
C et & Sy 3 o 4 BULGHOR

Al AT 3 e M2 ()

26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED CHARGES
e
2013 2012

ABETE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Trade payables and accrued expenditure

on construction 7,078,610 4,197,276
Deposits received and receipt in advance

from property sales 43,185,922 40,845,115
Other payables and accrued charges (Note) 3,400,104 3,472,610

53,604,636 48,515,001

Bitak - AR BOE KRR R E R A EAE S
JREATEURT i B MCBEIH ~ BT & K R A
TAEA o

Note: Other payables and accrued charges comprise mainly tax received and payable to the

government on behalf of customers, accrued salaries and accrued staff welfare.
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26. BEAFIER - %4 B MER 26, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

M a0 ACCRUED CHARGES (Concinued)

B 5 HEAT O L R AR B L R A Trade payables and accrued expenditure on construction comprise

B AR B A B B S TR A construction costs and other project-related expenses which are payable

EsHEWIEEEREM - AEEEE based on project progress measured by the Group. The Group has

P55 J g A B IBOSR DA BT A7 £+ 3k financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are

THE MR B RERR A 1E - settled within the credit timeframe.

DA By ik 5 R - B 5 A 3K I e The following is an aged analysis of trade payables and accrued

FIEE SRR S RS A A expenditure on construction at the end of the reporting period:
R CER-T

2013 2012

AR T ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

60 HIN Within 60 days 5,239,214 3,146,952
612180 H 61 - 180 days 487,761 437,526
181 £365 H 181 - 365 days 731,610 199,552
1E 2% 1 -2 years 429,385 357,561
2F 34 2 - 3 years 181,539 40,114
A 3 4 Over 3 years 9,101 15,571

7,078,610 4,197,276

27. BB A ESE 27. AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINT VENTURES
LS THD N REEEHE > A - 4 The amounts are denominated in RMB which are unsecured, interest-free
BT JE N SR W o and repayable on demand.

28. 8T R AbAE % 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

i S -
2013 2012

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

SRATE > A Bank loans, secured 19,029,775 15,223,211
SRATELN > R4 Bank loans, unsecured 7,104,189 8,968,587
&% > A Bond, secured 1,394,198 1,391,988

27,528,162 25,583,786
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28. BT B ILAbAE K ) 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Concinued)
fEFRE A DA B RR A fE 2 (5T - The borrowings are repayable (Note):

SRS CFTF
2013 2012
ARWTFL  ARWTFL
RMB’000 ~ RMB’000

—4ER Within one year 9,067,212 5,108,752
ZIR 4 (BB M More than one year, but not

exceeding two years 10,286,214 11,573,111
ZIRWAE > A =4 More than two years, but not exceeding

three years 6,037,684 6,381,735
ZIN = [HA I I AR More than three years, but not exceeding

four years 692,272 1,623,988
ZIAIUAE - [EA B LA More than four years, but not exceeding

five years 682,000 90,000
e 48 4 Exceeding five years 762,780 806,200

27,528,162 25,583,786

W B AT — 4 R EOE Less: Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities (9,067,212) (5,108,752)
— AR B A Amount due after one year 18,460,950 20,475,034
BEaE o 030 AR R R S s B R Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
BN o agreements.
R -=E R0
2013 2012
ANBETL AR¥TIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
fig K B AT Analysis of borrowings by currency:
—DARHHHE — Denominated in RMB 23,517,115 20,985,894
— DU E — Denominated in HKD 3,784,045 4,354,753
—AZEIeEHME — Denominated in USD 227,002 243,139

27,528,162 25,583,786
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28.

iﬁﬁl’(ﬁﬂhfﬁ%{(@

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

A A R 1 T SR AT B Kk B A 7 DA Certain bank loans and bond at the end of the reporting period were
&t 35 B A g%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ g secured by the pledge of assets as set out in note 35.
R = —E AR
2013 2012
LIRS HEF %
AR Effective AR Effective
RMB’000 interest rate  RMB’000 interest rate
E R HUTH Fixed rate bank loans 4,298,812 6.21% 4,508,572 5.74%
T2 R RATE K Variable rate bank loans 21,835,152 6.60% 19,683,226 6.60%

ROFEZNERLARA > AEMBTA
G B N R 1,400,000,000 78 S AF R
F—NERA R HBHERNES (T
ARAESR Ty AR ) o EHERE
AR 6,79 W 2 B 35HE - Y
EFA AEBARER -F—NER
HAH G — M E #2100 (8 2E 5 (2
s E) - 4‘%@%)‘%:9@*@@&%
Zh RO EE R AR
7 e 4R R K 6.7% > BHFFEA N JE R
]SS 4 1 ) A R M T o 74
S5 0 4 (N R 1,100,000,000 78 ) 1A
LSRG b KB o E R UA
SR A 5 T 400 3 T 0 R4 -

EHREMF BER-_F— =ZF
+ZHA=+—-HHATEAARE
1,406,300,000 G ( & — 4+ AR B
1,454,600,000 7G) ° fEFFE BT Kok BTl
a2 NTETIZ % EHE AW
WA > Wik > HATERES
KRN TR 1 8 -
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On May 5, 2009, the Group issued a bond of the principal amount of
RMB1,400,000,000 and will be repayable in full by May 5, 2016, subject
to early redemption as described herein. The bond bears fixed coupon
interest rate at 6.7% per annum for the first five years payable semi-
annually in arrears and is subject to an one-off upward adjustment of up
to 100 basis points (inclusive) from May 5, 2014 at the election of the
Group. The Group will determine on April 25, 2014 the interest rate by
election of an upward adjustment to the interest rate but if it determines
to maintain the interest rate at 6.7%, the holder of the bond then may
elect to redeem all or part of the bond at the face value. A portion of such
bond (RMB1,100,000,000) is listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The bond is secured by certain properties and land use rights

of the Group.

Management estimates the fair value of the bond at December 31, 2013
to be RMB1,406,300,000 (2012: RMB1,454,600,000). The fair values
of both the listed and unlisted portions of the bond have been calculated
with reference to the quoted market price of the listed portion of the
bond, hence, their fair value measurements are catergorised within Level

1 of the fair value hierarchy.
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29. SENIOR NOTES

=8 T4
2013 2012
ANREFLE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

B Senior notes
— B R TR — Senior notes issued in 2011 4,622,876 4,746,477
— N CE - AR TIE R — Senior notes issued in 2012 2,436,196 2,506,503
— R FE— SR E R — Senior notes issued in 2013 3,115,846 —
10,174,918 7,252,980

(@)

WZF——FMALH &
N )T A A RO AT A
750,000,000 % JC(4 A K ¥
4,909,200,000 7 ) 19 A5 4% % & &
ERERIZF—-ANEELE
B ZEEBZEEENRR
9.5% » BB F AT —RHE
M E R =% — N A L H i
ER R -

S = VI 2 3 ) (B e
o B IR R Tl - AR w] A
A ESERAE - AR RS T
AR B B B 2 Stk R Ao 2 R
AWE R AR - AR R IRE
Ja 725 B R 7 B HoAt A S AR B
WELLPTHE M 2 B (A R -

fif i~ SCHTR 4R I8 A £ H B R Y
+ A R ] AR R AT
e S U NER e KU N
BRI T XHII A A
73 R FR o £ 57 fn 8 22 ] Y
FERHEA A LS TR e 2 s 2 —
FNERTRE -

G

Year

TR Y4
SRR

2014

2015 and thereafter

(i)

On April 7, 2011, the Company issued guaranteed senior fixed
rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal value of
US$750,000,000 (approximately RMB4,909,200,000) (the “2016
USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 9.5% per annum (interest
payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully repayable at par
by April 7, 2016.

The 2016 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC and Barbados. The guarantees are effectively subordinated
to the other secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of

the value of assets serving as security.

At any time and from time to time after April 7, 2014, the
Company may at its option redeem the 2016 USD Notes, in
whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the percentage of
principal amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date if redeemed during the twelve-month

period beginning on April 7 of each of the years indicated below.

S T £

Redemption price

104.75%
102.375%
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29. BEREW @)

)

(%)

A % — DUAE DU At H AT A R
] A B RS IR R R A S i —
F—NFEERTEBA S 100% 1)
B [0 57 e 2 B e 30 O (L 4%
B H ) B F N B E
FHE R AT AR (A ) - 1] 2
({EEFEHD) B —NELTE
1o

[ 7N B 5 147 B R
Mz ZF—NEELEE > BQ)
BB TN R TR B A S
1.00% J% (2)(A)F BRI o B #1 ) —
F—PU4EN A B A B - F—AE
0 IR 2 I BN b i) #eAH
A A58 R R 5 M) 22 100 R A 2 G
BRI EA R = — N EFETT
BN F AN A L A2
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29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

At any time and from time to time prior to April 7, 2014, the
Company may at its option redeem the 2016 USD Notes, in
whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount of the 2016 USD Notes plus the 2016
Applicable Premium as of, and accrued the unpaid interest, if any,

to (but not including) the redemption date.

“2016 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2016
USD Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00%
of the principal amount of such 2016 USD Notes and (2) the
excess of (A) the present value at such redemption date of (i) the
redemption price of such 2016 USD Notes on April 7, 2014 plus
(ii) all required remaining scheduled interest payments due on such
2016 USD Notes through April 7, 2014 (but excluding accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed using a
discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis
points, over (B) the principal amount of such 2016 USD Notes on

such redemption date.

At any time and from time to time prior to April 7, 2014, the
Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2016 USD Notes with the net cash proceeds of
one or more sales of common stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 109.5% of the principal amount
of the 2016 USD Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date; provided that at least
65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2016 USD Notes
originally issued on the original issue date remains outstanding
after each such redemption and any such redemption takes place

within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(Continued)

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2016
USD Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not

including) the offer to purchase payment date.

The net carrying amount of the 2016 USD Notes is stated net
of issue expenses totalling US$15,995,000 (approximately
RMB104,696,000) and the effective interest rate of the 2016 USD
Notes is 10.02% per annum.

On October 18, 2012, the Company further issued guaranteed
senior fixed rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal
value of US$400,000,000 (approximately RMB2,513,560,000)
(the “2019 USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 6.875% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully

repayable at par by October 18, 2019.

The 2019 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company'’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the other
secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value of

assets serving as security.
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29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(i1)

(Continued)

At any time and from time to time after October 18, 2016, the
Company may at its option redeem the 2019 USD Notes, in
whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the percentage of
principal amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date if redeemed during the twelve-month

period beginning on October 18 of each of the years indicated

R JUEE RS - below.

G HE e £
Year Redemption price
“ENE 2016 103.4375%
R LA 2017 101.71875%
—F— )\ R HE 2018 and thereafter 100%
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At any time prior to October 18, 2016, the Company may at its
option redeem the 2019 USD Notes, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the 2019 USD Notes plus the 2019 Applicable Premium as of,
and accrued the unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the

redemption date.

“2019 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2019 USD
Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the
principal amount of such 2019 USD Notes and (2) the excess of
(A) the present value at such redemption date of (i) the redemption
price of such 2019 USD Notes on October 18, 2016 plus (ii) all
required remaining scheduled interest payments due on such 2019
USD Notes through October 18, 2016 (but excluding accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed using a
discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis
points, over (B) the principal amount of such 2019 USD Notes on

such redemption date.



o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. R @)

(ii)

(%)

A ZF =N H A\ H AT R
[ /AT N - e Sy I
5 T TR AR 45 106.875% HA i 1)
B ) hn = I I H O (R A
% H) W REFHERA LR ()
PA— 52 A1 25 TSR A 8
1Y) B0 42 i A5 TRV A - I e —
F-NEETEBASHRE35%
T 25 7 T B [ A R P A o
&A% 60 H N HEAT (9 1T o] A7 B0 1
4% » 20 65% it IR 3547 B 1 %
T —F— UF R LR R A S A
oA fE R o

HHRR > RIS HERR R R
AR L ] R P (B AN EEOK o

i 5 1 A MR S A S 5 U
A AHEE R A S 1012 1)
SR E 5 g 4 B R Lz A )
Z IR ATKE B REEHE R A AR
TR TR R EE =T LR
TR -

ZERE-NFETEBZ RIE T EL
MR EEAT# & 356,927,000 % 7T
(%) NR % 43,529,000 70) Ak > —
ESIREE ST T kY
7.20% °

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(i1)

(Continued)

At any time and from time to time prior to October 18, 2016,
the Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2019 USD Notes with the net cash proceeds of
one or more sales of common stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 106.875% of the principal
amount of the 2019 USD Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, to (but not including) the redemption date; provided
that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2019
USD Notes originally issued on the original issue date remains
outstanding after each such redemption and any such redemption
takes place within 60 days after the closing of the related equity

offering.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2019
USD Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not

including) the offer to purchase payment date.

The net carrying amount of the 2019 USD Notes is stated
net of issue expenses totalling US$6,927,000 (approximately
RMB43,529,000) and the effective interest rate of the 2019 USD
Notes is 7.20% per annum.
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29. SENIOR NOTES (Coatinued)

(iii)  On January 29, 2013, the Company further issued guaranteed
senior fixed rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal
value of US$500,000,000 (approximately RMB3,139,800,000)
(the “2023 USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 6.75% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully

repayable at par by January 29, 2023.

The 2023 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the other
secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value of

assets serving as security.

At any time and from time to time on or after January 29, 2018,
the Company may at its option redeem the 2023 USD Notes, in
whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the percentage of
principal amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date if redeemed during the twelve-month

period beginning on January 29 of each of the years indicated

below.
JiEg ] £
Redemption price
2018 103.375%
2019 102.250%
2020 101.125%
2021 and thereafter 100%
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(iii)

(Continued)

At any time prior to January 29, 2018, the Company may at its
option redeem the 2023 USD Notes, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the 2023 USD Notes plus the 2023 Applicable Premium as of,
and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the

redemption date.

“2023 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2023 USD
Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the
principal amount of such 2023 USD Notes and (2) the excess of
(A) the present value at such redemption date of (i) the redemption
price of such 2023 USD Notes on January 29, 2018, plus (ii) all
required remaining scheduled interest payments due on such 2023
USD Notes through January 29, 2018 (but excluding accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed using a
discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis
points, over (B) the principal amount of such 2023 USD Notes on

such redemption date.

At any time and from time to time prior to January 29, 2016,
the Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2023 USD Notes with the net cash proceeds of
one or more sales of common stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 106.75% of the principal amount
of the 2023 USD Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date; provided that at least
65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 USD Notes
originally issued on the original issue date remains outstanding
after each such redemption and any such redemption takes place

within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.
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29. BELSR ) 29. SENIOR NOTES (Coninued)
(i) (4) (iii)  (Continued)
i 2 A B2 o R A PR A - Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
20 T A S A AR B 1019 1) Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2023
S E S L B R H) USD Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
BT EKH B R HE AR AT ALE amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
Ll AT RN - p e S oS including) the offer to purchase payment date.
TLEE -
CER TR TERZIREFER The net carrying amount of the 2023 USD Notes is stated
B 317 & & 3t 4,081 0003%713 net of issue expenses totalling US$4,081,000 (approximately
(A N B 23,494,000 70) ABR > RMB23,494,000) and the effective interest rate of the 2023 USD
F SRR TR H A }:f:‘; Notes is 6.89% per annum.
6.89% °
MEF—-=H+ZA=+—H > %2% The fair value of the 2016 USD Notes, 2019 USD Notes and 2023
N 8 5 38 5 BT A B ) 22 T 5 R A USD Notes at December 31, 2013 with reference to the quoted
AR ZE-AREETREE - ZF N market price available on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
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{E43 7l 40 25 N R W 4,864,183,000 78 (=% RMBS,207,364,000), RMB2,558,259,000 (2012: RMB2,620,123,000)
— 4 0 NRH5,207,364,00070) © AR and RMB2,807,439,000 (2012: Nil), respectively.
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30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TR B
Non-current
el T4
2013 2012
ANRHFL ARETFL
RMB’000 RMB 000
MR ik AR AT AE G f T H Derivative financial instruments under
hedge accounting
B4 i 2 Cash flow hedges
— | 22 451 18] — Interest rate swaps 1,509 7,586
— 28 W R v ] — Cross currency interest rate swaps 213,307 106,566
214,816 114,152

GRS

HOHR A I A WA DA 465 B B A
i T LA R B DU — I
I S 18 o VB M B A A
ST % B P R ) - =% — =
G2 = F R B0
BRI ARA BT HHEBEN R A
ATEMBEWT -

A F—-WEHMNRH

REF—NE 24

Interest rate swaps

Contracts maturing in 2014

Contracts maturing in 2014

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following interest
rate swaps designated as highly effective hedging instruments in order to
manage the Group's interest rate movements on its bank borrowings by
swapping a proportion of those borrowings from floating rates to fixed
rate. The notional principal amounts of the interest rate swap contracts
outstanding as at December 31, 2013, their remaining terms and

estimated total fair value are as follows:

HEREH

HIEEA) % ZHEEN% Notional flat AT

From floating To fixed principal Estimated

interest rate interest rate amount fair value
iR
FEZ/:E:S
Hong Kong
Inter-Bank

Offering Rate 325,000,000 ARH1,038,0007C

("HIBOR”) + 2.85% 432%  HKD325,000,000 RMB1,038,000

150,000,000%7%  ARM 471,000 7

HIBOR + 2.85% 430%  HKDI50,000,000 RMBA71,000
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30.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Interest rate swaps (Continued)

During the year, the Group adjusted the scheduled repayment dates
of those bank borrowings. The notional amount and terms of the swap
have been modified according to the adjusted scheduled repayment
dates. The revised notional amounts as at the end of the reporting
period are HKD475,000,000 (equivalent to RMB389,664,000) (2012:
HKD760,000,000 (equivalent to RMB616,208,000)).

All of the above interest rate swaps are designated and effective as cash
flow hedges. The fair values of the above interest rate swap contracts
totalling RMB1,509,000 (2012: RMB7,586,000) (net liabilities to the
Group) have been deferred in equity December 31, 2013.

Cross currency interest rate swaps

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following cross
currency interest rate swaps designated as highly effective hedging
instruments in order to minimise its exposutes to foreign currency and
cash flow interest rate risk on its floating-rate USD and HKD bank
borrowings and corresponding interest payment by swapping a portion
of those borrowings and corresponding interest payment from USD and
HKD to RMB and from USD and HKD floating-rate interest payments

to RMB fixed rate interest payments.
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Notional amount

Em 37,268,000 £ 7

(ZF -4 %11139,030,000 70
Sell USD37,268,000

(2012: Sell USD39,230,000)
Fit2,018,750,000 1 1C

(ZF——4F  FH2,125,000,000 )

Sell HKD2,018,750,000
(2012: Sell HKD2,125,000,000)
B H 960,000,000 T

(ZF—4F L EH1,200,000,000 % 7C)

ell HKD960,000,000
(2012: Sell HKD1,200,000,000)
%tlj 325,000,000 7
(ZZ—ZF - FH520,000,00070)
Sell HKD325,000,000
(2012: Sell HKD520,000,000)
150,000,000 1 76
(ZF— 4 ¢ FH 240,000,000 % 0)
Sell HKD150,000,000
(2012: Sell HKD240,000 000)
FH 25,000,000 6 (ZF—Z4F : F)
Sell USD25,000,000 (2012; nil)
F 125,000,000 70 (2526 F)
Sell USD25,000,000 (2012 nil)
B 125,000,000 F 76 (ZF—24 0 %)
1l USD25,000,000 (2012; nil)
H 15,000,000 F70 (ZF 24 &)
Sell USDS,000,000 (2012: nil)
F11150,000,000 76 (ZF 25 : F)
Sell USDS50,000,000 (2012 nil)
B 150,000,000 F76(ZF—24 0 %)
1l USD50,000,000 (2012 nil)

FIHH
Maturity

“E-HENANA

08/04/2015

“F—REMANR

08/04/2015

S LV S

31/03/2015

SR AN A AH

281042014

“Z—ENA =+ \H

28/04/2014

“EF-NETATAR
18/1012019
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“EF-ETATAR
18/10/2019
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18/1012019
“F-NETATAR
18/1012019
“EF-ETATAR
18/10/2019

are as follows:

MR

Exchange rates

AEBELTE 0157 F T

RMBI: USD0.157

AR 12193

RMBI1: HKD1.219

ARMLL 12199

RMBI1: HKD1.219

AEBELTE 12193

RMB1: HKD1.219

AR 12193

RMBI1: HKD1.219

ARH1IE  0.164F 0
RMBI: USD0.164
ARHELIE  0.164F 70
RMBI: USD0.164
ARBELTE : 0164 F T
RMBI: USD0.164
ARH1IE  0.164F 0
RMBI: USD0.164
ARHELIE  0.164F 70
RMBI: USD0.164
ARBELTE : 0164 F T
RMBI: USD0.164
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps (Continued)

The terms of the cross currency interest rate contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the respective designated hedged items
and the directors consider that the cross curtency interest rate swaps are

highly effective hedging instruments. The major terms of these contracts

llsEcy

Interest rate swap

LR 17 4R K (T LIBOR )
+4% ZEER%6.65%
From London Inter-Bank Offering Rate

(“LIBOR")+4% to fixed rate of 6.65%
H HIBOR + 4% % £ 1 1% 6.63%

From HIBOR +4% to fixed rate of 6.63%

Hi HIBOR +3.15% 28 72 #% 5.80%

From HIBOR +3.15% to fixed rate of 5.80%

Hi HIBOR +2.85% 2 [ 1% 6.695%

From HIBOR +2.85% to fixed rate of 6.695%

Hi HIBOR +2.85% 2 8 /& /% 6.67%

From HIBOR +2.85% to fixed rate of 6.67%

1 715 6.8759% 2 [FEFI% 7.730%

From fixed rate of 6.875% to fixed rate of 7.730%

Hi [ 7 1% 6.875% £ H E 1% 7.730%

From fixed rate of 6.875% to fixed rate of 7.730%

Hi [ 7 % 6.875% 2 E % 7.710%

From fixed rate of 6.875% to fixed rate of 7.710%

1 72 1% 6.875 9% 2 [ E F1% 7.690%

From fixed rate of 6.875% to fixed rate of 7.690%

Hi [ 72 % 6.875% £ H £ 1% 7.850%

From fixed rate of 6.875% to fixed rate of 7.850%

i 72 % 6.875% 2 % 7.700%

From fixed rate of 6.875% to fixed rate of 7.700%
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30. iAW TR @) 30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
BB R R ) Cross currency interest rate swaps (Continued)
BN > A B (] 3 R 5% S SR AT 15 X I 5 8 During the year, the Group adjusted the scheduled repayment dates of
BEH o MM B XSGR ERIE those bank borrowings. The notional amount and terms of the swap have
R AR K B AR BERT - been modified according to the adjusted scheduled repayment dates.
bl fr G AR X WA 2 A 4 E AR All of the above cross currency interest rate swaps are designated and
B sREHMEAR - RZF—= effective as cash flow hedges. The fair values loss of the above cross
E+—H=+—H > baix X E%F currency interest rate swap contracts totalling RMB213,307,000
REYMEHMATEHERSG AR (2012: RMB106,566,000) have been deferred in equity at December
#213,307,000C(— F — —F: AR 31, 2013. The fair value loss of the hedging instruments amounting to
#5106,566,000 7C ) B B HE 45 1A 1E 48 % RMB85,205,000 (2012: Nil) were reclassified from hedge reserve to
e ¥y TR A FEHEERNRE profit and loss in the same year.

85,205,000 76 ( —F—4F « &) A 4E R
HESMUTLCE R PR TR b
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

31. AR Bl 31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
@ MBA (a) Share capital
BB
0.10 70
WA
Number of
ordinary shares
of par value T
HK$0.10 each Nominal value
T
HK$'000
BiE Authorised
RZF—ZF—HA—H At January 1, 2012, December 31, 2012 and
ZE T ZH=1—H December 31,2013
R = F— =4
+ZA=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
CBAT R AR Issued and fully paid
R_ZF—"4F—H—H At January 1, 2012 5,155,050,000 515,505
A1 R PR RE B8 4T B0y Issue of shares upon exercise of share options
(PR 5E ) (note (1)) 13,725,500 1,373
BEAT AR (R (i) Issue of new shares (note (i)) 260,000,000 26,000
R ZF—"4FF A =+—H At December 31, 2012 5,428,775,500 542,878
ﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ AT ( Wuf 1) Issue of shares upon exercise of share optlons
(note (1)) 12,757,000 1,276
A ZF—=4F 1 H="1—H At December 31, 2013 5,441,532,500 544,154
LA MR R Shown in the consolidated financial statements
FEARKT T
R ZF—Z4FF A =+—H At December 31, 2013 RMB’ 000 equivalent 476,822
HHANREET T
R ZF—4FF = H=+—H At December 31, 2012 RMB’ 000 equivalent 475,802
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31. EA Bl ) 31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
O ZNE (a)

Share capital (Continued)

(i) HE_ZX—=ZH£+_FH (i)  During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company
=t —HIEEE > AAH issued 12,757,000 (2012: 13,725,500) shares of HK$0.1
A7 10 1 e HE 9217 12,757,000 each upon exercise of share options. The exercise prices of the
B (=2 — 4R 13,725,500 share options exercised during the year range from HK$2.94
M) & B (Ho s T /Y to HK$12.528 (equivalent to RMB2.33 to RMB10.16)
Ty o AF IR B AT 1 I T (2012: range from HK$2.94 to HK$12.528 (equivalent to
B 47 {65 4 F2.04 % oC & RMB2.39 to RMB10.22)). The new shares issued rank pari
12.528 ¥ JC (#H & it A R passu with the then existing shares in all respects.
2337 & AN R ¥10.167T)
(ZF— 25 i Foo4
JC % 12.528 ¥ 70 (M # 1A
R¥2397L E AR %1022
J6)) o BEATHRIEA I
BRLE IR £ A IR = (7] 4 HE
%o

G) WMoF—"FHATH: (ii)  On September 19, 2012, the Company issued 260,000,000

A4y T B 47260,000,000
i 5 M T AE 0.1 %5 oo 1Y
I R A7 A VAR
UNES - N TR NN
A] 4% B B H Charm Talent
International Limited JT A
260,000,000 B 7 4 ] 4
i T B 0.1 %5 0 B9 B 4R 0 i
B 18 11.88 5 o0 A 4 A ik
i —F——4 LA +/\H
B T 4 7.91% °

HRBER] B 5T 57 0 72 0 h 7k
Charm Talent International
Limited % 5 it 11.88 ¥ 70 (1
18 # 78 5 260,000,000 B 7=
A ) A FRETET B 0.1 V5 G Y T
FBC o BT Ao K HE R A A A2 1 o
B /7 b e B TR R AR B A
SR —REEES - ik
IR E AN FR =F
—ZAER AL HEITI R
HRBAE R e 1 — R
T84T > b AE £ 5 T B A
OB IR = AR S -
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ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each and arranged a private
placement to independent private investors of 260,000,000
shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company held by Charm
Talent International Limited, a controlling shareholder of
the Company, at a price of HK$11.88 per share representing
a discount of approximately 7.91% to the closing market

price of the Company’s shares on September 18, 2012.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the same date,
Charm Talent International Limited subscribed for
260,000,000 new shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company at
a price of HK$11.88 per share. The proceeds were applied
for the Group’s property development projects in the PRC
and as the general working capital of the Group. These new
shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the
directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on May 17, 2012 and rank pari passu with other shares in

issue in all respects.
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31. G B flif a)

(b) fEfE

Tl 208 ~ PR iR

()

B

TR SR R T
+H=+—HW RO E
FEA A B3 te o

I A5 Vi 1 e 52 B 2 B U 2 )
R > Al A A R R YR
(U0 ) 40 4k 75 R K A4 K2 40 1
MR E R DL & ¢ (a) 3O
SrBLEURE TR 5 () SR
HEBEAT T A8 R AE B
AR A A TR BEAT L4 5
(4% B 2 BE 55 A Al L 4 37
5 0 8 ) O ] e 47
(d) 85 2 7 PR AEE S (e
RSB AT A O ] A A 7
110 25 P BT L S £5F 0 4 45 B
BT 5 Koo 1E B
o B B A A AT ] L £ 2 £
S IR T 34 A s 1 o

B R TS 2% B A A 2 IR B
AR BHIAE > A F ]
(CEREIGE R LR
B BT B i
1] 48 2 S SR AF: th A o7 DR 5
SAHETBCS «

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Reserves

Name, nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium

Share premium at December 31, 2013 and 2012 represented

share premium of the Company.

The share premium account is governed by the Cayman
Companies Law and may be applied by the Company subject
to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to
members; (b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to
be issued to equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares;
(c) the redemption and repurchase of shares (subject to the
provisions of section 37 of the Cayman Companies Law);
(d) writing-off the preliminary expenses of the Company;
(e) writing-off the expenses of, or the commission paid or
discount allowed on, any issue of shares or debentures of the
Company; and (f) providing for the premium payable on
redemption or purchase of any shares or debentures of the

Company.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.
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31. AR KA )
it (4)
b2t~ R XM E )

(b)

(i)

(iif)

EAGH

REMANF R BT i
“EENEAAT—H B
LT 3,999,999,000 & & Ik
T {8 0.1 385 JC 1R % 0 56 B4R
B A o AN PEEAT R
11 TH (L B % R R A U (E
JB) A RRA R ([FHHBER]
7 45 [ R P HE A D) I
JReA BB T 2 A0 G AR
it -

REFEFEFETHH A
A ) ) HL R M R R S
100,000,000 ¥#5 7C (#H # 7% A
[ 88,120,000 7T ) i H &
AR -

i

wWE _EELEFT N
=tT—HILFE » FRERE
Cr—ZELEME A E
B AEHREARA A
([EREREMAERRE )G
770,000,000 ¥ JG > 1A/ )
RS S LY
T BB A I T R
W1 4 2E 4 Jr 1 FF 4% ol R B
A [ B A 24
) B4 th 60% 3 £ 91.3% >
[ AOEE PN
620,672,000 76 FIl 4 By i g 48
AR A5 1) JE A S 1R (B L
EEEFNH D > ERFRR
i e 7 T W 4 T TR
% .
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31.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Reserves (Continued)

Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Capital reserve

On June 11, 2008, a group reorganisation was completed
for the preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares
by issuing 3,999,999,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. The
difference between the nominal amount of the shares issued
by the Company and the aggregate amount of the share
capital of Juntion Development Hong Kong (Holding)
Limited (“Juntion Development”), then holding company of

the Group, is charged to capital reserve.

On October 2, 2009, the Company declared dividend of
HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,120,000) to the
then shareholders of the Company and charged to capital

reserve.

Special reserve

During the year ended December 31, 2007,
Juntion Development injected additional capital of
HK$770,000,000 in a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Chongqing Longhu Development Company Limited
(“Chongqing Longhu Development”) in which the non-
controlling shareholders are Madam Wu Yajun and Mr.
Cai Kui, who are also the ultimate controlling shareholders
of the Company at that date. The Group’s equity interest
in Chongqing Longhu Development has increased from
60% to 91.3% and a discount on deemed acquisition of
RMB620,672,000 which represents the excess of the share
of net assets attributable to the additional interest acquired
over the amount injected was recognised in special reserve as

the contribution from equity owners.
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31. BAR Rl )
(b) FEE )
AR~ B RR® )

(iv)

HA A

WE_Z—-=4FT+=H
=t —HILFE  AEER
JEFEHI R B Bt R
A BRA A ([ a2 )
25% W) R A > AR A A
R #412,831,0007C ° i %
AR SN
08 TR e I 47 T HE 55 1) 4 B
O A AR 2 T 7 22 B
T ARt A TR RR o

HE-F—-—H T+ H
=t—HIEFEE > AEER
S 7% T i oA B B
i b 7 2 FR A PR A 499 1)
af A s RE R AR
176,307,000 JC ° &% 2F Y I 2
ER R A IR > 58305
I e 1 18 25 00 B AL E AT
1B A T-(B 1 28 B8 B HoAth
it HERR

BE_FT-FTHEF A
Sh—HIEEE > AEER
JE 7 il P 343 B 3 B 1 %
HE 0 SR IR B E A R AT
J S HE W g5 B A A
Fo PO FE W E AR A
B2 = S il AR HE W ]
EHRAT0.7% > 8% > 8%
Fe2sop ik it A K AE 5
Al £ N R %6 16,750,000 7C
A R #72,000,000 75+ AR
#36,000,0000C K A R #
520,080,000 7G © %% i i L
VBT BERERS ) A M » 485 %
I 2 TR 25 1Y) 42 BB S AR
BT (EL ¥ 26 5 B i At
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁb °

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Reserves (Continued)

Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

Other reserve

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group
acquired an additional 25% of the registered capital
of Shanghai Hengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd (“Shanghai
Hengrui”) at a consideration of RMB412,831,000 from
the non-controlling shareholders. This acquisition has
been accounted for as equity transaction and the difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid are

recognised directly in other reserve.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Group
acquired an additional 49% of the registered capital of
Chongqing Longhu Yiheng Estate Development Co., Ltd. at
a consideration of RMB176,307,000 from non-controlling
shareholders. This acquisition has been accounted for as
equity transaction and the difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid are recognised directly in

other reserve.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group
acquired additional 0.7%, 8%, 8% and 25% of the
registered capital of Xi'an Longhu Jincheng Company
Limited, Chengdu Longhu Jinhua Real Estate Company
Limited, Sichuan Longhu Real Estate Development
Company Limited and Chengdu Longhu Tongjin Real Estate
Company Limited at a consideration of RMB16,750,000,
RMB72,000,000, RMB36,000,000 and RMB520,080,000
respectively from non-controlling shareholders. These
acquisitions have been accounted for as equity transactions
and the differences between the amounts by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair values of the

considerations paid are recognised directly in other reserve.
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31 BA Bl an) 31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Concinued)
(b) flif 4 (b) Reserves (Continued)

A - R R 4) Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

) EERBRHEG (v)  Statutory surplus reserve
MRAEAE p B T 25 T B B In accordance with the articles of association of certain
INF AR AR AR - 555 subsidiaries established in the PRC, these subsidiaries are
WEF 5 2 i 2 I 9% o L A £ required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the
s LR B2 % R 19 1096 > statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50%
HE T G E AR of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
50% 4 1k o L % R kA ZE made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The
A 1 g A TR IR S 2 statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
AR o 352 B B R e T P year’s losses, expand the existing operations or convert into
T AR A A B B R - additional capital of the subsidiaries.
B B K8 S O 5
J& A R R BEANE A o

i) TEERE (vi)  Capital contribution reserve
TE G R 48 B 39(a) T 5t Capital contribution reserve represents the recognition of
J& 0 N HERR B IR A B the fair value of share awards under the Pre-IPO share award
TR 3 58 i w38 2 J5 47 2% schemes over the vesting period as set out in note 39(a).
AT -

(vii) E IR (vii) Hedging reserve
S R A 9 B 4 I R b The hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective
R Z B TR 2 AT portion of gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of
Bk 2 a2 AETEBR hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The
g fEEE ML T B cumulative gain and loss arising on changes in fair value of
i o FU A S8 o ok 85 T e R the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated
R BGt 2 B TR ZATE under the heading of hedging reserve will be reclassified to
BE L2 BiHARA G E profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the
A EEGR - profit or loss.
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RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

32, WERBHE 32. DEFERRED TAXATION
PIF AR E R RN T EIEERIE (A The followings are the major deferred taxation (liabilities) assets
&) & Jr Hakd) recognised and movements thereon during the year:
fEAR
RER R
BRM  Ems
mE - fEE ME ORRRE MR ABBEA Wikholding
RENE  WATE BEE  Alownce  (Hita)  Unrealised tax N
Accelerated  Fairvalueof  BEEH Land for Government  proficon onretained  (H7Eb)
tax  investment Tax appreciation  doubtful  subsidies  intra-group  profits to be Others At
depreciation  properties losses  tax provisions debts (Notea) ~purchases ~ distributed (Note b) Total
AREFE NREFL ARBFT ARBEFT AREFr AREFL NEBFr AREFT ARETr AREFT
RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMBO0  RMB'O0)  RMBO09  RMBUOO  RMBOW)  RMBO00
R-%-"F—f-H At January 1, 2012 (66,788)  (2.229,063) 02858 037417 3,750 2551 38420 (79,360) 03,691 (1,527,524)
B (1R FEA (Charge)credi to profit ot loss @618 G40 08 34417 = (509 48235 = (BL49) 108358
REF-ZHEFZASt-H At December 31, 2012 (89400)  (2,556,209) 184566 961,834 3,750 16458 106,655 (79,360) 32546 (1419,166)
B (TR FEA (Charge) credit to profit or loss (908) (648122 33306 131353 - (1468) 26987 B (294)  (476,584)
REF-=EFZA=1-0 AtDecember3l, 2013 (118400 G4 27872 1093387 3500 1A% 136 G6IT) 19602 (1895750)
Btk - Notes:
o 2 4 RGO oV ) BB T M I S T a. This represents the tax effect of the temporary difference arising from the treatment
1) B BT 7 A W R S BRI B TS B o BT of the government subsidies between the accounting standard and the tax bureau.
B S BOR R AR B U, > [T 2 Tax bureau treats the government subsidies as an income but for financial reporting
H R ) S T R YR S M B e P e 2 T purpose, the government subsidies as deduction from costs of properties under
T o development for sales.
b. B A BRI T 4 B S T A W R S A b. This represents the tax effect of temporary differences arising from the deduction of

BT BB o A% S T T 10 R A i o i
159% H49 B 455 B 52 o T S AT 0B A9 3 20 (A
A7) R AT AR A R 4

advertising expense. The Group can deduct its advertising expense of no more than
15% of its revenue and for the part that cannot be deducted, if any, it can be carried

forward to future years.
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32. BHEBIH 40 32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
5 R EES MBS IR R > A THELER For the presentation purposes of the consolidated statement of financial
TEEE (BE) TR o AN A% i position, certain deferred taxation assets (liabilities) have been offset. The
5 H TR H Y 28 AR JE A5 R AT following is an analysis of the deferred taxation balances for financial

reporting purposes:
R CER-T
2013 2012

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

R HE T TE Deferred taxation assets 1,063,481 1,012,836
R SIE T IR B 1 Deferred taxation liabilities (2,959,231)  (2,432,002)

(1,895,750)  (1,419,166)

R-FE—=F+_H=+—H > K& At December 31, 2013, the Group had unused estimated tax losses of
B A % A\ R #883,709,000 0 (= F — = RMB883,709,000 (2012: RMB798,444,000) available to offset against
0 N R 798,444,000 70 ) 1A 5H A B) future profits. Deferred taxation assets have been recognised in respect
Ji B0 I i 45 AT PR S 8 R Al A o Rt of RMB871,488,000 (2012: RMB738,264,000) of such losses. No
# N R M5 871,488,000 76 (=& — 4F deferred taxation asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
N B 738,264,000 75 ) 1 s 18 B 57 A0 A RMB12,221,000 (2012: RMBG60,180,000) due to the unpredictability
BLIH B o /R R AT R 2R i A AR of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the
W WOME MR 6% N N R 12,221,000 76 following years:

(ZF—F: AR¥60,180,0007C ) fE
FRAR T TE R o R T R AL T S 1R A Y

DURAEREE Y -
e T
2013 2012
ANRETFT ANRETT
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
e SN 2013 — 49,820
ZE YA 2014 888 888
A 2015 3,428 3,428
TR N 2016 1,934 1,934
— L 2017 4,110 4,110
ZE— )\ 2018 1,861 —

12,221 60,180
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BB )

AR A b 0 5 i e I A7 1B R 4 S P A5
3 O B o BB R 9 A AT IR B A 22 B ) I [
BB 2008111255 » 5% Mt B T8 F BB R
TR B B A R A b ] PR B
25% MAEHERAT -

A SO o T B {6 9 Al B AR B T
e /N ) & /N T S ]
R 73 UK Uik M) 2096 1F i 0O TR AR 4 o R
o IR > T IRy 2 AR 1 AR AR AL R B
) 2 4 T 2 A1) IR 8 4 T B o o ke
W) B N R ¥ 25,000,000 70 (- F —
0 KR 25,000,000 70) o H A< 4 5]
FE 40 2 ] 7 IR 25 A L A IR D > AR
72 FEAE AT S A AT e N e A s R
S M 5 22 B R A o

Tt 2 i) S A A

BE_Z—-=Z4F+Z"HA=Z+—H1I
R, REBMUBHEREARE
412,831,000 7T 1 5 — ] BT Ji§ 2 ) g e
BRI 259 14 -

15 i Al 2 T A B 2 KB AU 2

NPEMEZHEERE > HEER R
THE RS B B I A R B

32.

33.

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on
Income” and Guoshuifa {20081112, where the Hong Kong resident
company directly owns at least 25% of the capital of the Mainland
company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is applicable.

Deferred taxation liabilities include provision for withholding tax which
has been provided for 20% of the latest financial year’s undistributed
profits arising from all subsidiaries situated in the PRC and held by
Hong Kong companies. At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred taxation liabilities have not been
recognised was approximately RMB25 million (2012: RMB25 million).
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

ACQUISITION OF AN ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN
A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group acquired an
additional 25% interest in a subsidiary, Shanghai Hengrui, at a cash
consideration of RMB412,831,000.

The difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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34. SBARHRA T 34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
R 9 o B A A B v 1 BTE R > AR R I According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
o (28 o 2 W ZE 23 o b T R A Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a defined
15 kSR AR FTE o AR 2 B [ v B contribution retirement scheme administered by the local municipal
J& 4 ) ) % w42 DL 4 SR M BB AR government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are
Fa A > 5% kR 4 468 iy T RS [R] 2 calculated on certain percentage of the average employee salary as agreed
#ZE BT HFENETAS WEE - & by local municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement
S B A B AR IRAR R St Y B SR AE £ benefits of the employees. The principal obligation of the Group
MR RZFTEAE B ik with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

AL WIS HOBT A B B B IR B Rk oL The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
RN R S ETE o GBI G A qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
H & E DB FERZ T NEH separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustee.
M4 o AN SR B AH BB & AR 19 5 9% 1) The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme and the
ZaT B AR > TR B AR SRR o same amount is matched by employees.
BE_F-Z=Z+_H=+—HI#F The Group recognised the retirement benefit contributions of
s A4 R OR KA R N R R RMB163,252,000 (2012: RMB108,897,000) for the year ended
163,252,000 (=% — —F: AR ¥ December 31, 2013.
108,897,000 JG) ©

35. HEAE A 35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

R BIR - CHEMLL T EEMEAAE
V8 5 T ST o A 0 9 AR S 1)
B & W3 n BT SR A 4 K

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking and other
facilities granted to the Group and mortgage loans to buyers of sold

properties at the end of the reporting period:

SR EE DR

2013 2012
ANRBTL AR¥TIL

RMB’000  RMB’000

BEHE Investment properties 4,677,958 3,399,800
T 0E Prepaid lease payments 1,019,001 1,054,646
BRPEYE Properties under development for sales 31,003,343 26,678,965
HEHEY % Properties held for sales 610 562,988
TR SRAT A7 3K Pledged bank deposits 276,914 227,212
36,977,826 31,923,611

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]




Rk 3 T 5 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. MELH

AL AR A

2T SR L T R AR P B Y
BEHENLETENLEE HEF
— =4+ A =4 — A IR EE R A B
SR 4 e A &) B N 125,396,000 76
(ZF— 4 NR¥77,681,0007C)
AL FERL BN R Y 0 B S AT
AT AR o

REE IR > AGEECEME B TR

36.

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as a lessor

Contingent rental for certain properties was determined by a certain
percentage of turnover earned by the tenants. The contingent rental
income recognised during the year ended December 31, 2013 amounted
to RMB125,396,000 (2012: RMB77,681,000). The properties held by
the Group for rental purpose have committed tenants for periods ranging

from one to twenty years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

e AR B E T4 tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:
I St S St
2013 2012
ANRBETFL  ARETFIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
—4ER Within one year 417,269 301,651
5B AR AR (R E W AE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 724,279 572,759
HEFER After five years 320,911 308,396
1,462,459 1,182,806

AR E R B RN The Group as a lessee

I R N A NG T At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following future

AR A A I AL 5 400 3 S AT RO R A B (AL

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

EHIEW T respect of leased properties:

—ER-=EE CF-TF
2013 2012
ANBETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—4ER Within one year 26,568 16,020
SRR (B B AE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 24,217 20,222
B After five years 4,726 2,765
55,511 39,007

AL A B 5 A 4R A Bt Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for

TN - BT
FHHI 0 7 — 2 N > M B R BT
HE W HEE -

leasehold land and certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of one to sixteen years and rentals are fixed at the date of

signing of lease agreements.
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37. R 37.
T K o AR A DA R

COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

commitments:
"R CECf
2013 2012
ANBETFL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
E AT A E AR R 55 6 MBS R A 43 Contracted but not provided for
in the consolidated financial statements:
— AR B A REPEEYER — Expenditure in respect of projects classified
TE R BUE W) SEIH B P X as properties under development

for sales and investment properties
under construction 24,267,689 16,243,396

— 7 R B A Lt o AR B 2 — Expenditure in respect of acquisition
of land use rights 4,646,373 5,793,647
28,914,062 22,037,043

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees amounting to RMB10,376,827,000
(2012: RMBS,590,537,000) as at December 31, 2013 in respect of

mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties.

38. BAAAE 38.
WoE—-=ZFE+A=+—H > KEH
Hh S R AR 1B R AT B AR A A
K %#10,376,827,000 TG ( & — — 4 A

R #8,590,537,000 7C ) HI 3% ff o A/ A
HERR > AEMZEMBHERAAN
ONT{E B B R BRI AN K > BT T
#1057 K BRI AR MBI B &)
IR LA R —F — = R F— 4
T = H R AR A R
i -

AL [ [ SRATHR LA B AR L £ H 7
ZRATERIER o S VE N E Rk
W) 2 T A T 42 4 1) 36 8 50 58 JIRE Fh SR AT

PR

Mortgage guarantees

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of these
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition and the directors of the Company consider that the possibility
of default of the parties involved is remote, accordingly, no value has been
recognised at the inception of the guarantee contracts and at the end of

the reporting period as at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released by
banks upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and completion of

the relevant mortgage properties registration.

2=k —T &
2013 2012
ANREFLT ANRETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
10,376,827 8,590,537
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39. DAIBCAR By B i 45k K 28 5

UL e i 55 e R W
i -

a.

U2 B8 5 A S it 81
2R ) T TE U B R B4
A (A SE bt 3 ) AR AR S
“EFEFEEF-A=ZHREZFF
JUEEA =+ — BB R R R
Ao MRIRA R SE > A F
A m R AR SR TR B A
AL T (TSR 1) o Bty 8%
Al 1) B 7E {1 B i B2 7] A
i3 B E A AR &
B R R B AL IR -

RoF— =R
St—BREBEEEH—A
= B R R B B
NESE S

WEZZZIELA =+ — H R
WaHE > RZFFNELH =1~
HeRER -F—=ZF 1 _F
St o i & s el = LB N
1) 5% JEh PB4 BT 95 B 40343 B 2 2 I
7,500,000 [ (42 4§ 11 =& = 4% i 1)
2,084,750 B - 43 Bl AG & A A
NG R 0.14% © S Ay
WA B o B R AR ORI
FLREA o BB S UAE > B T
18 B 1 S8 B e 1 81 5 11 B H
W& EE B ENEE o oG
HMA —F—FFLA=1—H-

b={112

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:

Pre-IPO share award schemes

The Company’s two Pre-IPO share award schemes (the “Share
Award Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on November 30, 2007 and July 31, 2009. Under the Share
Award Schemes, the Company has awarded the Company’s shares
(the “Awarded Shares”) to directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Group. The objective of the Share Award
Schemes is to align the interests of the employees with those of the
Company, to share the pride of ownership among employees and to

reward their performance and contribution to the Group.

There were no Awarded Shares outstanding under the scheme
adopted on November 30, 2007 as at December 31, 2013 and
2012.

Under the scheme adopted on July 31, 2009, the total number of
shares in respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on
July 31, 2009 and remained outstanding was nil and 7,500,000
(including 2,084,750 shares granted to directors), representing
nil and 0.14% of the shares of the Company at that date, as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012. The Awarded Shares, subject to a
vesting period, are being held by a trust of the ultimate controlling
shareholders. The vesting period is four years during which the
award shares granted to employee will vest on each anniversary of
the first vesting date in equal portions. The first vesting date is
July 31, 2010.
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BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

39. DAIBE A 2 25 B 0 A K 22 B

(%)

DARE 25 45 L 00 I 0y S W6 e

at & : o)

a. R PR T MR A S
(#8)
ACEEFAELH =T AR
R 03 8 i RE ST 29 A P E 2 AR
71,250,000 7T > JH 4R & % K
IR E - 0 5 R E
FHERBE o AN T ESY
By i i B0 A Al A T8
TERAUR B3R~ 0 S A 1) 2 S I
R o Wl Ty RV S B b i
] P A JRE SR A IR MR T O

[l Sl O e Sl o
A=+T—HIHEE » ARRIHAH
7% TS TR 0 PB4 3 9 e RN R R
2,416,000 7C & N R 7,834,000 76
()3 H o AR\ ] S 9 I 444 DA e
AP RS e R M B I 55
o I A BRI AR A T
s o

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)

a.

Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)

The weighted average fair values of the shares granted on July 31,
2009 was RMB71,250,000 and were determined using a mix of
asset-based and market approach with option-based pricing model
is adopted to account for the vesting condition. The significant
inputs into the model were estimated fair value of shares at the
grant date, expected dividend pay out rate, annual risk-free rate
and volatility rate. The volatility is measured based on past years

historical price volatility of similar companies listed on the SEHK.

The Group recognised an expense of RMB2,416,000 and
RMB7,834,000 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
respectively in relation to shares awarded by the Company. The
shares awarded by the Company will be settled with the existing
shares held by the trust of the ultimate controlling shareholders.
Accordingly, the respective amounts were credited to capital

contribution reserve.



39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DA JBe Ay 2 B W i Ak Kk 22 B

(#)

DIBE 25 45 00 I A 5 B % ot

i o)

a.  H IR BB IR A A% D ST
(4)
Ak T 45 1 07 4 2 M M
i

1) S A 1 A D

Share Awards granted to directors:
~REEEAELAZT—H
—on July 31, 2009

1] {8 B 452 ) A 1 3 -

Share Awards granted to employees:
— R FFAFLAZ T
—on July 31, 2009

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)

a. Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year

are as follows:

JRe A 5E 8 25 2
Number of Bt M

share awards  Vesting Conditions

8,339,000 HEMHMERZZ—FHFLA=F—HA25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2010
BREHMEE - ——FEEA=+—HA25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2011
BREAMEE TS EA=t—H R 25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2012
ARG AR E R —=FtA=1+—H25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2013

21,661,000 HABHHMEE -Z-FELA=T—HR25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2010
BREAMERE —F——FEA=1t—H25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2011
AL APREE—F "R EA=1t—HR25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2012
ARG HPEE —F—=FLA=1T—HA25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2013

4F # Annual Report 2013




o B U 25 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B == L

For the year ended December 31, 2013

39. UM BB SRAY 39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(4) (Continued)
DL RE 25 45 550 B I8 Ay 5% Bl / i i Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)
Gis [IENE
a. B IR BE B A S S a.  Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)
(#)
ERNEE LR B A RARL 7L The movements of the Company’s share awards held by directors
A s ) and employees during the year:
B Ay 52 ¥ H
Number of share awards
R=%—=4 RE=F—=4
—H—H #H  +ZA=Z+—H
ARATHE C RATHE
Outstanding as Vested  Outstanding as
it B at January 1, during at December 31,
Grant date 2013 the year 2013
B 473 4 i “ERNELAZ+—H
Share awards July 31, 2009 7,500,000 (7,500,000) —
i A3 42 i 4 H
Number of share awards
t=B - et S
—H—H R +ZH=+—H
ARATE C 57 RATIE
Outstanding as Vested Outstanding as
iy H at January 1, during  at December 31,
Grant date 2012 the year 2012
B A3 5% iy “ELNELA=ZF—H
Share awards July 31, 2009 15,000,000 (7,500,000) 7,500,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]
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39 UM BB SRAY 39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(#) (Continued)

DARE 25 45 5500 e A S Gh W %
i o)

Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)

b. YR BE I R sk Pre-IPO share option scheme
A% B U4 B B G A The Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
S (8 YR B B Rl I e pE Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed

W}B&

[ ) TR =2 XL+ —H
=+ BEE—ER R R R
FTEAMRAAREEES LA EHE
16 B 4R AL A M > 1 o PR AEE 48 T A —
EELFET—HA=ZTHERAF MK
R E WAL sE 5 2 A (T E
T H A ) i — {3 5 Ik
B RAZ o AR A B
JRHERT R > A w) R MR A v #
B AR T R A A IO 1 B A
T o VR BB B i R RO R
PR AR 104F -

REFZELFET—HA=1TH O
s i % HE 37,940,000 4 (62 45 [ #
F 47 15,588,000 173 1 i HE )

SR -CER-E—-—HF+ A
o HARER A B A T
RETH ) O 452 L 17 A7 A AT (8 1 i i
EW I LA B H £ 8,088,000 Ht (2
35 1) R 4 7,188,000 13 WA )
419,929,000 i (62,45 [ # 5 4% i
7,188,000 {3 B ML 1) > fh = F—=
FER-F—HFFZA=ZT—HA
A F A 0.15% 120.37% °

BRIAT (AR o 2 B B i B
) A % ) i A O P
5% L 0 T A S HE T T RE AT A AR
PRI A AR B H
A R BB AT IR B 109 -
UK B i AR S B
FTEAE £ 6.46 HTT » i —FEZIUF
—H—HEBA 2,940

on November 30, 2007 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Group, and
options can only be offered and granted from November 30,
2007 until the business date before the date on which dealings in
the Company’s share first commence on the SEHK (the “Listing
Date”). Under the Pre-IPO share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries were granted options to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The term of the Pre-IPO share Option

Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

On November 30, 2007, 37,940,000 share options (including
15,588,000 share options granted to directors) were granted. The
number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was 8,088,000 (including
7,188,000 share options granted to directors) and 19,929,000
(including 7,188,000 share options granted to directors),
representing 0.15% and 0.37% of the shares of the Company as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company
in issue at the Listing Date. The exercise price of the pre-IPO share
option initial at HK$6.46 and amended to HK$2.94 effective from
January 1, 2009.
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39. UM BB SRAY 39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(#) (Continued)

DARE 25 45 5 1 B Ay 5280 Wk e i Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)

at#l s o)

b. B WRA B BT R RE S b.  Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(#)
TRV AT (AR 42 2 B i I e The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
S o AR/ ] B B A b R B B upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
5% W AT R AT (58 1) O A e s e g ] exercised under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and other share
BB TR I BB 1Y 23R FRAE > A option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
PR R AN B B AT 1 3096 o in issue from time to time.
BE_Z—=HK-FE——F+ There was no share option expense in relation to the share options
B = —H kA R kAR w57 under the Pre-IPO-Share Option Scheme granted by the Company
H T YR A B T I e = o O recognised for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 as the
T B R R R R B R R S TR they were fully amortised in 2011.

RER T ——EEREH -
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39 UM BB SRAY 39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(#) (Continued)
DARE 25 45 S 1Y B Ay B2 8D W e Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)
atdl : o)
b. B WRA B BT R RE S b.  Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(#)
AF KT % M R R RE 2 ek e Akt The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year
T are as follows:
Ji e e
HHRIEH
JEBCHESR R Contractual
Number of life of
options  Vesting periods options
1] 2 R B A
Share options granted to directors:
—-REFFLEL-A=HH 12,776,000 AEHAMEZE-FTNE-A—HE25% 45
— on November 30, 2007 25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009 10 years
ARG APRE-F-TFE—A—HA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010 10 years
AREHMREE - ——F—H—HRA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011 10 years
BREAPRE-F-"F—-A—HH25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012 10 years
1] {8 B 45 th S A -
Share options granted to employees:
-REFFLEF—A=1H 25,164,000 AR ABRE-ZTHFE-A—HRA25% T4
— on November 30, 2007 25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009 10 years
BREHMEE - —FRE—F—HRA25% i
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010 10 years
B HEE —F——F—A—HA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011 10 years
HEHAMEE —F——F—A—HR25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012 10 years
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

39. U B3R AT sk R 5

(4)

DIRE 25 45 000 T A 5 B % Pt

)

b, H IR B R RE T
(4)
ENEE R B A RARLNF EIK
7 B A I M o TS B R

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)

b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

The movements of the Company’s share options under the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme held by directors and employees during the

M5y - year:
TR A
Number of options
pog-= o=
i T2A=-H
S FEREHE AIT
Giid Outstanding (H&E) Outstanding
iy at Exercised at
Rlny Exercise i A January 1, during  December 31,
Grant date price  Vesting period 2013 the year 2013
HKS$ (Note)
e ZEFUET-AZHH 294 “ERRAE
Share option November 30, 2007 T=H=10%
“F-CZE-A-H
November 30, 2007
to January 1, 2012 19,929,000 (11,841,000) 8,088,000
e s

ToRET— A
Exercisable at
December 31,2013

8,088,000
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39. DAy 2o SR WE W A 3k R 5
()
DARE 23 465 00 I 0y SR % 3t
EinINE
b.  H R BH BB R A A

(#)

Riin g

Grant date
e “ERLET-AZtH
Shate option November 30, 2007

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)

b.

Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

frfif
i
Exercise
price
HK$

294

RN
Vesting period

“BEEE-AZH
et Sl
November 30, 2007

to Januaty 1, 2012

kog-F
—~A—A
Kl
QOutstanding
at

January 1,
2012

32,940,000

vyt
Number of options
Ho3-t
TZAZ+-H
Kl
FRETE Ousstanding
Exercised at

during December 31,
the year 2012

(13,011,000) 19,929,000

REF-ZE+ZA=F-H
Al frfE

Exercisable at
December 31,2012

19,929,000

FfaE AT 6 AT i 4T 2 B8 A
13.62 75 °

Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$13.62.
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39. DAIBE A 2 25 B 0 A K 22 B

(%)

DARE 25 45 550 00 e 7y S8 I i T
G E 7

e H RN BB AR I RE ST B

2 0 T A B A
T U2 BB 1 15 M B 3T
)RR -FEAET A
S SRR E R AR R
G TEEMRRAEMERLS
Vit IR SRS o ARIEE YA B
BB A R RO
T A 7 7 9 L T R B A A 7
RO HE o UK/ RS B AR A
HERT ) R 2 B 104

BRoEEAFE+AFZE B
%t 7] 52 56 10,600,000 B (42 45 17
A7 H 4,550,000 BT ) B A1)
R IEHE - BERRER AT (E 25 8.44 W5
I o

G

AN_FE—-—F A+ LHK=Z
——AEJUH A\ H $%  A)RR E
46,000,000 B (£ 45 ) # 2 %
9,200,000 I & 17 ) % 150,000,000
i (€24 1) 3 4 4% i 55,600,000 A
e A7) PB4 1) e B E o RO 2 AT
i 1 43 0l A5 12523 o6 K 8.28 ¥
JG ©

RoFE R FE R A
=1—H > REERAHEERE
JBCREE T ) 452 L5 E R AT (8 7 5 A
HE BTV 1B 0y B H £ 204,919,000
J2205,835,500 % » fh A AT ZF
R G Sty el S I
H b 3.77% % 3.79% °

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)

Post-IPO share option scheme

The Company’s Post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on December 23, 2009 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Group. Under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries were granted options to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The term of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is

10 years from the date of adoption.

On December 23, 2009, options to subscribe 10,600,000 shares
(including 4,550,000 shares granted to directors) were granted.
The exercise price of the option is HK$8.44.

On January 17, 2011 and September 28, 2011, options to
subscribe 46,000,000 shares (including 9,200,000 shares granted
to directors) and 150,000,000 shares (including 55,600,000 shares
granted to directors) were granted. The exercise price of the options
are HK$12.52 and HK$8.28, respectively.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was 204,919,000 and
205,835,500, representing 3.77% and 3.79% of the shares of the
Company as at December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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39. DAIBE A 2 25 B 0 A ok 22 B

(#)

DARE 25 45 5500 e A S Gh W %
s [IRE

C.

R 2 B R A AR B A
(#)

PRIAT G AR 1 V2 B B 5 1 I A
B e AR 2 ) B A B PR
AR B A B T T e AT A
AN A EBR L
T H A A B AT IR AR
10% °

RIS AR AR 1 U B 8 5 4 A
w8 B AR ) A AR B PR U 2
AT AT AR AT 5 1 o A B
AEBEAT IO et B A 9 2R IR > A
B AR T BT 30%

WE_F—=F1ZA=1T—HIt
SR AR B A A R I E R
O [ 1 R P ME G 0 TS g e
fifE 78 48 3 N R 107,326,000 76
(=& — 4 0 ARM123,315,000
JC) °

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)

€

Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company

in issue at the Listing Date.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares

in issue from time to time.

The Group recognised total expense of RMB107,326,000 (2012:
RMB123,315,000) for the year ended December 31, 2013 in
relation to share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

granted by the Company.
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39. UM BB SRAY 39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(#) (Continued)
DARE 25 45 5 1 B Ay 5280 Wk e i Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)
atdl : o)
c.  H IR/ BB AR RE R RE S c.  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(#)
A KT % M R R RE 2 ek e Akt The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year
o are as follows:
S i
AHEH
TR S H Contractual
Bl HE Number of  Jit i 1 ] life of
Grant date options  Vesting periods options
o) 3 3 R “ETNF 4,550,000 HEHAMEZE-F-FFF_AZT=HA 5% T
Share options granted +ZAZF=H 25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
to directors December 23, 2009 HREARE-E——F+ A= +=HE25% 4R
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
AREHREE=F -+ A +=HA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
AR AMEE =R -=F+ A"+ =0 A25% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
“EF—F 9,200,000 HFHHMEE-F—-ZF—A+tHA25% iR
—H+tH 25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
January 17, 2011 ARG AMEE =T —=F—H+tHA25% 4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years
A AR E R —NE—A+LHA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years
B AR E - F—TF— AL HE25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years
ZF——F 45,600,000 AEHAMERE=F—=FHAZ+/\HA10% T
JLAZAH 10% from the date of grant to September 28, 2013 10 years
September 28, 2011 HA%H B E ==L A H A30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2014 10 years
HE FEE =R TN A H B30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2015 10 years
A AR =% A A Z A H B 30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2016 10 years
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39 UM BB SRAY 39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(#) (Continued)
DL RE 25 45 550 B I3 Ay 5% Bl / i i Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)
atdl : o)
c.  H IR PR RE R RE S c.  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(#)
T I
AREH
JEIRHE S H Contractual
R i Number of 5t i i life of
Grant date options  Vesting periods options
“EF—F 10,000,000  FHFH B MR E =T~ A ZF/AH F100% R
ALAZ+AH 100% from the date of grant to September 28, 2017 10 years
September 28, 2011
[ {8 B 5% 4 B e s 6,050,000 HEHAMERE-F-FFF_AZT=HA 5% T4
Share options granted TZAZF=EH 25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
to employees December 23, 2009 HEEAPEE - F——H+ A=+ =HE25% A
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
AREAMEE=F -+ A +=HA25% +4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
AREAMEE = F =+ A +=A K259 4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
“EF—F 36,800,000 HIFH AMEE-F-ZF A HEHR 5% T
—H+tH 25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
January 17, 2011 B AR E = Z—=F— A+t HA25% 4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years
B A E = F—FE— A+t H A 25% 4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years
ARG AR - F—-AF—A+LAA 2% Az
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years
—F—F 94,400,000 A AMEEZF-=FNAZ AR R0 i
JLAZANH 10% from the date of grant to September 28, 2013 10 years
September 28, 2011 HA%H B E =LA 4 A H A 30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2014 10 years
AR IR E =%~ R LA =+ /AH f30% T
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2015 10 years
AREAREE -F—AELAZ T 309 T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2016 10 years
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39. UM BB SRAY 39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(4) (Continued)
D) HE 25 &5 550 1) I Ay 2 ) / i JE R Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)
Cig [RIE 7
c.  H IR/ BB AR RE R RE S c.  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(#)
ERE R MR BRRA AN T E IR The movements of the Company’s share options under the Post-
/S B B 1 O R - ) T TS IPO Share Option Scheme held by directors and employees during
W) the year:
e St 2013
T H
Number of options
RZF-=F
e 2 t2A
~A—H ERTHHE =t—H
T Afif (M) Atk
# Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at
BiHHE Exercise  SiRHIM January 1, during  December 31,
Grant date price  Vesting period 2013 the year 2013
HKS (Note)
1 “RENE 844 ZFBAELCAZTERE
Share option +ZA=+=H v S sy e et |
December 23, 2009 December 23, 2009
to December 23, 2013 10,550,000 (150,000) 10,400,000
i 12528 ZF-—H-f+LRE
—~RttH “Z-hE-R1ER
January 17, 2011 January 17, 2011
to January 17, 2015 45,285,500 (490,000) 44,795,500
3 828 ZE-—EAAZHARZE
JUAZ4 LA “FEELASTAR
September 28, 2011 September 28, 2011
to September 28, 2017 150,000,000 (276,000) 149,724,000
205,835,500 (916,0000 204,919,500
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39. DAIBE A 2 25 B 0 A ok 22 B

BE_F =ZH£TZA=ZT—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(%) (Continued)
DA RE 35 45 50 0 It A 28 B W e e Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)
Gis [IENE
c.  H IR PR RE R RE S c.  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(#)
TRt H
Number of options
RER-ZE
REZ-=E +2A
—~R—H ERehE ]
frhifE AfTfE (M) Atk
# Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at
R Exercise S January 1, during  December 31,
Grant date price  Vesting period 2013 the year 2013
HKS (Note)
Hog-=k
tZA=F-H
Af7E
Exercisable at
December 31, 2013 45,919,500
ST
(H7c)
Weighted average
exercise price (HKS$) 9.22 10.58 9.22

B 5E R AT 0 E OB 0 E T 2 R A A
13.50 ¥ G ©

Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$13.50.
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BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

39. DAIBE A 2 25 B 0 A K 22 B

(%)

DARE 25 45 55 00 e A S Gh W %
s [IRE 7

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option scheme: (Continued)

c.  H IR/ BB AR RE R RE S c.  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
()
—r— s 2012
TR
Number of options
ot S ot
~A-H Epefle +ZA=1-H
friefE AITf () AArf
b Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at
FHAM Exercise S B 11 January 1, during  December 31,
Grant date price  Vesting period 2012 the year 2012
HKS (Note)
F “ETNE 844 “EFENET-ASLERE
tZAZTEH B Sl 2 g s |
Shate option December 23, 2009 December 23, 2009
to December 23, 2013 10,550,000 - 10,550,000
e S 12508 ZF-"E-A+tHE
—~AttH “F-LE-AttR
January 17, 2012 January 17, 2012
to January 17, 2015 46,000,000 (T14500) 45,285,500
Rk 828 “F-THEAAZTARE
AZTAHR “E-EFAAZTAR
September 28, 2012 September 28, 2012
to September 28, 2017 150,000,000 - 150,000,000
206,550,000 (714,500) 205,835,500
RZF—=F
TZRAET—HAfT
Exercisable at
December 31, 2013 18,685,500
il SR ftid{tom)
Weighted average
exercise price (HKS) 9.23 12,528 922

FERE W AT B A B9 i 4 7 2 B8 A
14.17 75 ©
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Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$14.17.



o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. BEETT R 5

41.

BRI & 1 ISR DL B B R 24 27
[ B2 7 A BR AN > 4E R > AR 4 ) SR

40.

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the balances with related parties set out in the consolidated

statement of financial position, and in notes 24 and 27, during the year,

B FISL LR ERAS the Group entered into the following significant transactions with its
related parties:
@ BERE (a) Joint ventures
RS TER-TUE
2013 2012
AREFE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ES=3- A UN Property management income 265 584
(b)y FEEMERES (b) Key management and director
D -
2013 2012
ANRHEFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
SHE Sales of properties 14,705 79,289

(© AFREAREMARAR EEEHE
(IR B 77N w0 2 3 ) B0 357 S B
11 e

AR B 4 B

A% SR 1 A T AN LR R A 4 L ) R
FRACE o TR R R AL B S A
E LSS ONTE S

AR BB A A A LA (O A (B4
FAL TS WY 5k 28 B 29 5 5 9 A8 s I 8 5 5%
#) ~ Bl LRSS EYFHEULARF
A NG RE LS (LR TR AT IR - (A
KPR EA)

A F B B AL o fE R
FHH— W > AN FHEE EEA N
A B B TR A A B RO JEL B - 3 R U
E T A

41.

() The remuneration paid and payable to the key management of the
Company, who are the directors of the Company, for the year is set

out in note 11.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes,
where appropriate, the borrowings and senior notes disclosed in notes
28 and 29 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,

reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and take

appropriate actions to balance its overall capital structure.
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BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

42. @I
a.  ZmTHER

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.  Categories of financial instruments

SR E

AR ERE

SRR SRR (L1 Bl %
BESHEY)

SR

W A

& A TRMAT A M LA

SRS CFTF

2013 2012
ARBTE  AEKETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments 8,600 8,600
Loans and receivables (including cash

and cash equivalents) 15,907,239 19,896,894
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 48,243,117 40,416,778

Derivative financial instruments

designated as hedging instruments 214,816 114,152

£l R e A B D B R BOSR

AEENEE M TROENES
P TR~ R R B A R Wi
JE ~ e REAT) B 77 300E ~ T4
METIER - MITHBR A S - B
FrBRAR ~ SRAT B AR A KA R 5
2R o ZEEM T AN EN &
FARER 3T o BL5% %5 & T B ARG Y
Ja o ARG 2 5 L o ) SR RRS
3C o AR R B Y A S L B A
e R A 15 A 30 R EBO 45 0

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include derivative
financial instruments, accounts and other receivables, amounts due
from (to) related parties, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, accounts payable, bank and other borrowings and senior
notes. Details of these financial instruments are set out in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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42. M H @)

C.

T 53 JE B

ES SEIRESEED AR RIES o /8
H1 W 5 8 I e B B AR A LBy
T B (SR 30) -

RSB T T R
R R A Ik
KEH) -

RS g8

S SRAT & B B SR AT B L At 5 3K
(FZ BTG F R RARE AR
AT P A 3 G A i B A R Gt
B BT 5 MR B E) - LA
A I T B O R L

74 B I T S B SR SR AT AE
LA B ] 7 A At B SRAT B
Al i 35 2 48 S SRR B ) - (L
R -

EHE AR R R R
W e A R K I R E
BERAT R R o 2 BT Ak
R ALEETE M R LK
WA 3 e O A S 9 R £ ) 2 S
1T A A T Iy o R BR A Y
B Ty (R A A 4 T B A TR R AT
At A8 K 2 A 0t DA ) R it
B BT E fi B D P B A
RBP4 0 5 2 B S8 R
GESCEIE

T 5 3% R A 4 B RT 5L BR R 2R 4
S~ SR SURL MO g 0 AT B
Al £ K B 15 2 A B E 30 2
28 ¢

74 S5 0 Th 36 AL < R R A R 2R
JEB > AR RO A B O
PR o AEEB SR B R
FREPEA LML RWFHEK
o P A A o BN R R AT BT A
R -

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the market risks of
changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates risks and

other price risk (see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group's exposure to
market risk or the manner in which it manages and measures the

risk over the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank balances
and bank and other borrowings which carried at prevailing market
interest rates and variable rate based on the interest rates quoted by

the People’s Bank of China, respectively.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to pledged bank deposits, bank and other borrowings

and senior notes which carried fixed interest rate.

The management aims at keeping material bank and other
borrowings at fixed rates at appropriate level by entering into
interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps. In order
to achieve this result, the Group entered into interest rate swaps
and cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge against certain
exposures to changes in interest rates of the bank borrowings. The
management adopts a policy of ensuring that all the material bank
and other borrowings of the Group are effectively on a fixed rate
basis, either through the contractual terms of the loan facilities
agreements ot through the use of interest rate swaps and cross

currency interest rate swaps.

Details of the Groups interest rate swaps, ctoss currency interest
rate swaps and bank and other borrowings entered into by the
Group at the end of the reporting period are set out in notes 30

and 28, respectively.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of

China arising from the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.
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42. BRI H )

€

i 355 KR ()
)3 B A B ()
VB9

DA SRR B A0 A7 T B A i 1 K 1
B AR BRI R GTE 2 AT T A
(SRAT 45 B BLERAT R Fo A ) 1l 32
B A B AR i 3 o A AR R R
SR LR ERBERMED - 2
GIE e s WN=Tii* F
ez R B 2L T Bk 200 1 56 B (il 847
T FCA AR M ) B Bk 100 7
B CRERATAE BRI 5 ) £y R - B
BN B 53 Bl REAG SR AT B A 2R DA
JRATHE G AR I AT R ) o

A BIAR > AR LT TR
zoofﬁlfﬁgﬁ (BLERAT &Eﬁb%?ﬁ

of 4% Jr&i‘ %ﬁjﬁ@lﬂﬂ@ﬂ%iﬁ
%ﬁ&ﬁciﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁi$
EARLMERRK  ARBRBEZ %
==& hE= +* F 1k 4 5 3 A
W/ BOE(CE-TF 0 F)

e Ak 5 ik A %L?’r/?ﬁ%looﬁl
BB GRS AT fE M F ) o T
ﬁ,ﬁ\m*‘*%ﬁz%’ﬁv?"‘%’ HI 7 45 4]
BE-Z—-=%+_H=1+—H
t@ﬁﬁﬁ%WM/ﬁmAEW
107,994,000 76 (=& — Z4F © KR
”%137,876,000)13)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments carried at
variable rates (bank balances and bank and other borrowings) at the
end of the reporting period and assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 200 basis point increase or decrease for bank
and other borrowings and a 100 basis point increase or decrease for
bank balances are used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the possible change in interest rate in respect of bank

and other borrowings and bank balances respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by 200 basis points in respect of bank and
other borrowings and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year would increase/decrease by nil (2012:
nil) for the year ended December 31, 2013, after taking into effects
of the interest rate swaps and the cross currency interest rate swaps
designated as hedging instruments and capitalisation of interest

Costs.

In addition, if interest rate had been increased/decreased by 100
basis points in respect of bank deposits, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would increase/
decrease by RMB107,994,000 (2012: RMB137,876,000) for the
year ended December 31, 2013.
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42. M H @)

C.

i 357 LBt (42)

AN L ot 2

A% 4 1 2 T A 2 LA R W Ut
o5 HATA MR (e
S0 B 52) DA B A B SR A
R o

74 S5 B T ) £ i £ 2K LR
i S 2 ) LA I T RE B R R ELRG £
B o ASE AT RE B W DU D
SMERHE RS TERBATHER - A
B o TR B T
JEB R BRI K - ARG
F IR SR W 77 B o A AR TR sk
LU 351 IR 1 Wk e T 36 e
BB o WG AR B 7T
7E BB 1 AR B 30 -

B AR BTNT R DA SME
BT RRFTEE L 0 SR - P
R R4 DA 5 W00 687 1 3
14 B BTS00 S R 1
BEAT -

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management

The Group collects all of its revenue in RMB and most of the
expenditures including expenditures incurred in property sales as

well as capital expenditures are also denominated in RMB.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
borrowings denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of individual subsidiaries. The Group entered into
currency swaps to hedge certain material bank borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies. Given this, the management
considers that the net exposure to currency risk is kept to an
appropriate level. It is the Group's policy to negotiate the terms
of the hedge derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to
maximise hedge effectiveness. Details of the currency swaps entered
into by the Group at the end of the reporting period are set out in
note 30.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk arising from bank
deposits denominated in foreign currencies. The management
maintains the portfolio of bank deposits denominated in different
currencies and the exposure to currency risk is kept to an

appropriate level.
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42. EWTH @) 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Coninucd)
c. TG 41 c.  Market risk (Continued)
Al B B (47 Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
AL 45 B B DL AN EHE R The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated
BB E R B AR (ZEE Y monetary assets and monetary liabilities (other than bank
T T ELFR A1 HEE 44700 52 A AT 8 5 borrowings subject to foreign currency swaps designated as
BRA) 4 R T {0 T hedging instruments) at the respective reporting date are as
follows:

—FEF SR
2013 2012
ABHTE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

293 Assets

FIT USD 435,643 1,873,238
ETH HKD 118,156 1,787,906
= T4
2013 2012
ANRWFE  AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

=Lt Liabilities
FIT USD 8,986,353 7,252,980
ESTH HKD 1,075,127 329,576
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42. M H @)

C.

i 35 JE B (42)

KNS J B A B ()
SIS

A R B T R T AR
W ) I 2 0 S, -

SRR A AR A BN B S A
IR A1 Y e =R o B U 5 9% 1 UK
J o SRR A AT L AR SR 1) A1
WatEEWHE (8 E AW L
FL1 A8 SCE e A1) 3R 451 0 5 2 Y 4R
FEAS FRBRAN) > S 4F A o 2 L 46
DL B AT ME 2611 59 ) © 5%
By A 1 B TR A B R
A1 e R e 1 SR B R 3R I A R
g 3t 41 HEE I 26 4 34 A] 58 5 B 10 51
fili o BURREE Z M 4 DA AN HE Y
SRAT ik LA B SR AT 46 i I A 4R
TIEE - B8/ (B#) Fm AR
S AE R AW (R 6 0 1 S 38 A
VAL CARE N 3Rl PN
{H5% > RIBHAF B 3 ) A5 A 7] 45 7Y
=g} 23

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange fluctuation of USD
and HKD against RMB.

The following table details of the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items (other than the bank
borrowings subject to cross currency interest rate swaps designated
as hedging instruments) and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes bank borrowings as well as bank
balances and pledged bank deposits denominated in foreign
currencies. A positive/(negative) number indicates an increase/
(decrease) in profit for the year where the RMB strengthens against
the relevant currencies. For a 5% weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on

the profit for the year.

RS RN

2013 2012
ANRHEFL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Xt USD
A 15 Profit for the year 427,536 268,987
T HKD
A i A (548 Profit (loss) for the year 47,849 (72,917)
At A % L B Other price risk

747 S5 I [ T AR o 4 5 S A A
ByE b o SR - EBERE R AL R
TG 36 ) P 1 8 J L .

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its available-
for-sale investments. However, the management considers that the

Company’s exposure to fluctuation in equity price is minimal.
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42. &M H @)

d.

i B I s

TR IR A4 T
BF 7 KRB AT AT S AR 4 B
455 LA D% T 5 S80S 4 A A B S e
B EKREERR - IEEASS
TSR DL 2R 1A T 31 45 L o 4
G I B TR > DA B B E 38 T Bt
ISR AR - Rt s R R
B > BT R T TR
TRCBR AT S i [ 208 A (S WL Ah
A% S B s 39 A 12 8 4 DL AR
F 5 e HL A R i T DA i
L7 R A AT ] 458 o AN
A IR DU R I A AR T bR R
SEHRARE A o M b A 4 A L AL
AR 88 B T 3B L IR 468 7S B 6 ) T
AT -

FR S O 2 2 B B R AR 4 T
e BRI 8R4 35 A 1 B A 4R
17 MREESEEEBAR

BRAFIN 2 % o i SR SRAT 19 i )
Ee R A B SETIEA R R
B S DA A I B LB >
2 T RE R - SOl
KEHfE R -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Credit risk management

At each of the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees issued by the Group is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed in note
38. In order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring procedures
are carried out to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and other receivables
and amounts due from related parties at the end of the reporting
period. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position are net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts,
estimated by the Group's management based on prior experience

and their assessment of the current economic environment.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit

rating agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings and amounts
due from joint ventures, the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk, in which exposure is spread over a number of

counterparties and customers.
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d.

5 SR\ B A5 B o)
MEFEERRTHYENS > A
S W R A4 S
I 2 A A T R TR AL
18 W iR 4 AR B B e
B 709 © R J7 R A R0 5 A
(B > SIS 1218 Y AT 7T
oA S A o PR B S A AT
BIREH RIS o ZEMCIER T - A%
T2 M B 0 8 6 0 [
Wi - Il SEB R B A SIS
7 7 B 15 B0 AE AT AL
EHERN > RGN %
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Credit risk management (Continued)

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 70% of
the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage during the period of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay
the outstanding loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to forfeit the sales deposit received
and resell the repossessed properties. Therefore, the management
considers the Group would likely recover any loss incurred arising
from the guarantees. The management considers the credit risk
exposure to financial guarantees provided to property purchasers
is limited because the facilities are secured by the properties and
the market price of the properties is higher than the guaranteed
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that

the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

€.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and the flexibility through the use of borrowings. The
directors of the Company closely monitor the liquidity position
and expect to have adequate sources of funding to finance the

Group’s projects and operations.

The following table details the Group’s expected remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the discounted
amount is derived from interest rates existing at the end of the

reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
(inflows) and outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net
basis. When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as
illustrated by the yield curves existing at the end of the reporting
period. The liquidity analysis for the Group's derivative financial
instruments is prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management considers that the contractual maturities are essential

for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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42. W TR 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
e. VREIHE KR 42 e.  Liquidity risk (Continued)

#%-=
2R
migry =t

LIE ST AMBEE

Weighted Carrying ik k|

average  amountat 0E60H  G1EI180H 181%365H 1524 153% 3% Total

interest  December 31, 0060 61 to 180 18110365 lto2 2t03 Over undiscounted

rate 2013 days days days years years Jyears  cash flows

ARBTE  ARETR  ARETZ  ARETn  ARETZ ARETn ARETL ARETZ
RMBYOOO  RMBUW — RMBO  RMBUW ~ RMBWO  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBOO)

Fhik AR Non-derivative financial liabilities

A& Non-interest bearing — 10,540,037 1,508,124 4,460,087 4,571,226 - - = 10,540,037
THIR Fixed interest rate instruments 142% 15867928 307,894 795,68 2,166,241 3,162,700 6,572,287 6,262,536 19,267,343
BHIR Variable interest rate instruments 631% 21,835,152 401,179 2,408,342 3,678,788 8.919,847 6,462,488 2396010 24,266,654
B ERAL Financial guarantee contracts — 10376827 — — — — — 10376827

48243117 12,594,024 7,664,714 10,416,255 12,082,547 13,034,775 8,658,546 64,450,861
TR HEH Derivative-net settlement
fitaRTA Derivative financial instruments 214816 14077 55,699 48,605 106,897 10,259 - 235,597

48457933 12,608,101 1720413 10464920 12189444 13,045,034 8,058,346 64,086:458

R2%F-2

12

mEFy =+-H
g WREE RS
Weighted Carrying HEAH
aernge  amountat  0Z60H  GIE180H  181%365H 1524 EXLE i3 i Toal
interest ~ December 31, 0060 61 t0 180 181 10 365 lto2 2t03 Over  undiscounted
tate 2012 days days days years years 3 years cash flows

ANRRTE  ARWTE  ARETT  ARKFT  ARETC  ARKTT  ARNTT  ARKTL
RMBOOO  RMBYOO  RMBOW  RMBUW  RMBUOO  RMBUO  RMBYOW  RMBOW

Fhitk AR b Non-derivative financial liabilities

N Non-interest bearing — 7580012 113 3409116 3828783 - - — 7580012
THIE Fixed interest rate instruments 14% 13153540 211,624 6713914 90734 24735719 2732966 9493561 16478378
BHIR Variable interest rate instruments 6.60% 19,683,226 666,969 1253950 3201312 10942721 4479947 1579716 22,124,615
BBERAS Financial guarantee contacts = — 8590537 = = = = — 8590537

40,416,778 9,811,243 5,336,980 7,960,829 13,416,300 7,212.913 11,035,277 54,773,542
i T -85 Derivative-net settlement
fit2MTH Derivative financial instruments 114,152 1,331 8,151 11,89 33,728 64,942 - 120,047

40,930,930 9,812,574 5,345,131 791,724 13450,028 T8 103527 54,893,589
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42. &M H @)

€.

TEE 4 R\ (40

LTS RAK ST RS
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SR R B T

At A LRI P R 6 40 2 SR
WERINAZ 5 T R8> AL EIRE S
PRZE I (B AR 215 O A e 129 28
R IR RE > AR
AR % % PR AR A T E Sz 488 1 A°F 5K
A o SR BLAGRHRT 2S5 O R AR
YRR AR T REVE T ks > 4R i
R AT RETE IR A 22 5 0 BT
TEAfs (R M i S 2 (R BHRK
H T AR -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

€.

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest

rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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Erfh TR A APEGE
74 B B 173 < il BRI A i R
AN FERHE o TR A
O3 PR CRE T2 BT (5 1) 22 Al (B
K A SR o ol A Bk 2 T8
TR DA 58 % 55 AR < A F
{H » RAFER RS2 A TE
A (E—F =) 2GR o
REF—=4
+2H
=+—H
ZAFH
Fair value
as at
LA December 31,
Financial liabilities 2013
ANR#T T
RMB’ 000
fra MBS IR DLR T R A 213,307
Gl TR 2 A8 S W SR
Cross currency interest rate
swaps classified as derivative
financial instruments in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
SR B IR R B AN 1,509

T2 22 | R e

Interest rate swaps classified as
derivative financial instruments
in the consolidated statement of

financial position

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
f.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group’s financial liabilities are measured at fair value

at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives

information about how the fair values of these financial liabilities

are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs

used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the

fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.

ATESH
Fair value

hierarchy

Level 2

5 JE 5k

Level 2

[EETPERL YN ¢ 3

Valuation techniques and key inputs

R E B 0 o AR IR ) R 5 e M) 6 (R i 5 0 R T
B2 1 32 00 R 3 % A i ) % T A4 M 7 U B I
G S [ o R 37 o e A 7 9 18 D S
P 53 1 R ) LE 30 2 B B (R T )

Discounted cash flows. Future cash flows are estimated
based on forward exchange rates and interest rates (from
observable forward exchange rates and yield cutves at
the end of the reporting period) and contracted forward
rates and interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the Group or the counterparties, as

appropriate.

BB B o AR A A (R i R AT B 1Y
Wit Hh AR ) B B AT A9 A R A AR B R
PR — {18 R4 e A 4 A 8 71 0 LB F) EL 6t 2
B (N ) e

Discounted cash flows. Future cash flows are estimated
based on forward interest rates (from observable yield
curves at the end of the reporting period) and contracted
interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of the Group or the counterparties, as

appropriate.
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42. TR T H ») 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f. ZMITEMAFEGRE)

AR RIBAEAEIL > RN
TS S TR A T A

Sk B S B 5E 28 B 29 6 3% 1 5k A
N FE AR 5 T 18 S SR 0 AT AR
i T B R 214,816,000 JC (=
A AR 114,152,000 7C)
G > RNTFIERRL Bk AR
B BT IR0 #k 2% 1A LA 8 6 B A 51
R 4 Tl 7 T 4 2 Y R T

BN FEARE o

AR ER eBA B A TE

e AR BB SR8
oy M E > E R A B B B
o ZMAMBERIET Z5HFH
{5 B -

ER
F—

43. Bk IR PR

REZF—NE—-AZ+ZH > Jtmsh
B FRELE EH R AR (A A B A
91.3% Z Wt B/~ 7)) AE4A B R R 2 e A A
o A8 {E A5 A\ B ¥ 4,200,000,000
T o A% P A T A 8 B S
BT ARER -

ATE—UEZHEH  AATFRNE
S AR R 2 5 9.59% M) —F— N EE
FEEE T — WU H & H AR S
A 4 %6.104.75% 5K 821,250,000 3 IC 73 Jll
AR AW (B =F—MaEMA £ H
(EENTETA=REN S S il = P T
2B o
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43.

f. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the current and

prior years.

Except for the bond and senior notes with fair value disclosed
in notes 28 and 29 respectively and the derivative financial
instruments of RMB214,816,000 (2012: RMB114,152,000), the
directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated statement of financial positions approximate

their respective fair values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of the financial liabilities included in Level 2 have
been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most
significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit

risk of counterparties.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On January 22, 2014, Beijing Jinrong Xinxing Properties Company
Limited, an indirect 91.3% owned subsidiary of the Company, succeeded
in the bid for the land in Hangzhou at an auction at an aggregate price
of RMB4,200,000,000. The land shall be used for the development of
an integrated mixed-use urban property consisting of residential and

commercial components.

On March 7, 2014, the Company announced that all outstanding 9.5%
Senior Notes Due 2016 of the Company will be redeemed in full on April
7, 2014 at a redemption price equal to 104.75% of the principal amount
or USD821,250,000 thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest to (but not
including) the redemption date that is, April 7, 2014
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44. AR v B E R 44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(@) AAFHMBRANZBEE (a) Financial information of the financial position of the
i Company:

=k —E—&
2013 2012
ARBFT  ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

FE G NON-CURRENT ASSETS
B A Investments in subsidiaries 20,178,787 17,296,903
TE & & CURRENT ASSETS
JRE S Bk e A JRE WA Accounts and other receivables, deposits
4 BN R and prepayments 117,349 3,974
SBITAE R KBS Bank balances and cash 577,294 3,364,053
694,643 3,368,027
S INER CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEATAR K ~ Eid% 4 R ERTBI . Accounts payable, deposits received
and accrued charges 14,950 6,895
JREASH Bf g 2 ) 3k Amounts due to subsidiaries 206,153 3,398
SRAT S H A AE K — — N E Bank and other borrowings — due within one year 1,524,631 1,109,074
1,745,734 1,119,367
WH (FA) & EE NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (1,051,091) 2,248,660
A8 7 VR B £ TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 19,127,696 19,545,563
JBEAR B Al CAPITAL AND RESERVES
JeAs (R 5E31) Share capital (note 31) 476,822 475,802
fitiffs Reserves 5,774,724 8,213,812
AHREAS TOTAL EQUITY 6,251,546 8,689,614
F i £1 6% NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
SRAT S H A G ——4FRZIH  Bank and other borrowings - due after one year 2,486,416 3,488,817
B Senior notes 10,174,918 7,252,980
fiid e TR Derivative financial instruments 214,816 114,152

12,876,150 10,855,949

19,127,696 19,545,563
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44. AN vl B E R ) 44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(b) ANV RS (b) Movement of reserves of the Company:

WG R
WebHE®E AR Share Capical ~ EWGHAE  BFHEH
Share Capital option  contribution Hedging  Accumulated it
premium feserve reserve feserve reserve losses Total
ANRETE ARETE AREFT AREFT ARETT ARBTFT ARKTL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB 000

REF—Z4

—H—H At January 1, 2012 5917961 2523930 197,177 177,124 — (1376954 7,439,238
EEBR Loss for the year — — — — —  (870,686)  (870,680)
EFAMATHL  Other comprehensive

expense for the year — — — — (114,152) — (114,152)

FERTFICAHE  Total comprehensive

expense for the year - - -

(114,152)  (870,680)  (984,838)

UGS  Recognition of equity-setcled

Tl B AERERII3K share-based payments — — 13305 7,834 — — 131,149
WHMRAES  Dividend recognised
as distribution (902,980) — — - - —  (902,980)
TR HERE TR Tssue of shares on exercise of
share options 53,430 — (16,156) — — - 37,274
Bk Issue of new shares 2,505,677 — — — — — 2,505,677
B OEL Transaction cost attributable
YOS to issue of shares (11,708) - — - - - (11,708)
S S
FZA=F—H At December 31,2012 7,562,380 2,523,930 304,336 184,958 (114,152)  (2,247,640) 8,213,812
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44. ARB BB YR )

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) ARATREMEEE - 4) (b) Movement of reserves of the Company: (Continued)
TGRSR
R BB Share  Capial  EHPEKHE  RebEH
Share Capital option contribution  Hedging Accumulated it
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ANRETE ARRTT ARBTT ARWTT ARWTxE ARKTT ARETZ
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
EFER Loss for the year = = = = = (1,485,384)  (1,485,384)
H TR Fair value loss on hedging
MRS instruments - - - = (100,664) = (100,664)
EHMEEREN  Loss on hedging instruments
Hi TRER reclassified to profit and loss - — - — 85,205 - 85,205
EREATHICAHE  Total comprehensive
expense for the year — — — — (15,459)  (1,485,384)  (1,500,843)
RUMERSERR  Recognition of equity-settled
Tl B BER[T30  share-based payments — — 107,326 2,416 — — 109,742
ARMRMBE  Dividend recognised
as distribution (1,082,568) — - - — —  (1,082,568)
FrORREREHERE Tt Tssue of shares on exercise of
shate options 49972 — (15,391) — — — 34,581
Rog-=p
FZH=F—H  Ac December 31,2013 6,529,784 2,523,930 396,271 187,374 (129611)  (3,733,024) 5,774,724
() HEMEAH (c) Investments in subsidiaries
—F=E SR F
2013 2012
ARl TTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
I LBty - $e AR Unlisted shares, at cost 2,875,598 2,875,598
X AR YNCIRES <Y Deemed capital contribution to subsidiaries 17,303,189 14,421,305
20,178,787 17,296,903
d)  FEATHBH B A F #0E (d) Amounts due to subsidiaries

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

4F # Annual Report 2013
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BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
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45. FERBAAE - BEER
B 48 2wl Yyt
() REF—=FR-F-F12A (i)
=t—H AAREEREAF
HEEREE AR

kiR A T A1 L
ALk Equity interest
Place of attributable to the Group
UNTEA incorporation/ —F=k e S5
Name of company establishment 2013 2012
o 24
Subsidiary
LEERAARAT (k) il 93.5% 93.5%
Beijing Dezhuo Trade Company PRC
Limited (note a)
ERERSEARAR (HEb) i 91.3% 91.3%
Beijing Huicheng Investment PRC
Limited (note b)
S AR R A A i 91.3% 91.3%
(Mt a) PRC
Beijing Longhu Chengheng
Decoration Company
Limited (note a)
AR B A A il 89.9% 89.9%
(MfzEb) PRC

Beijing Longhu Properties
Company Limited (note b)

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

CETRER
TR /R A
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

FEfft B A

AR 20,000,000 76
BRI AR

AR 20,000,000 76
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

FEf B A
ARH10,000,000 76
BRI AR
ARH10,000,000 76
Registered
RMB10,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

Al ws
AEH2,000,000 76
BRI

AR 2,000,000 76
Registered
RMB2,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB2,000,000

sEft A
AEH1,000,000,000 76
B AR
AEH1,000,000,000 76
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000

BB
Place of

operation

i
PRC

HH

PRC

PRC

PRC

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and

associates at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

FIEH

Principal activities

EHES
Trading of construction

materials

IESH

Properties development

R4

House decoration

VB

Bt AR R

Properties development
and provision of

consultancy service



45. RERBBEAG - FBREER

Bk 48 A ) Wk ()

AAAH

Name of company

W2 ()
Subsidiary (Continued)

AR AR AR
(Hfika)
Beijing Longhu Property Service

Company Limited (note a)

T B R AR AR
(HtzEb)

Beijing Longhu Qinghua
Property Company Limited (note b)

TR R E A R AR
(fia)
Beijing Longhu Shidai Properties

Company Limited (note a)

JEHEM AT BRA AR
(M5t a)
Beijing Longhu Tianxing Properties

Company Limited (note a)

o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

AL AV AR T A

LK Equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group
incorporation/ —F—= e St
establishment 2013 2012
b 90.0% 90.0%
PRC

i 91.3% 91.3%
PRC

i 91.3% 91.3%
PRC

HE 91.3% 91.3%
PRC

CRfTRAR
Tk /i A
Issued and fully paid ~ AEHH
share capital/ Place of

registered capital operation

A B A HE
ARH5,000,000 76 PRC
G

ARH5,000,000 76

Registered

RMBS,000,000

Paid up capital

RMBS,000,000

HAURES il
ARH500,000,0007  PRC
A

AR 500,000,000 76
Registered

RMB500,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB500,000,000

HAURES ile
ARH1,400,000,000 76 PRC
B AR

ARH1,400,000,000 76
Registered

RMBI,400,000,000

Paid up capital
RMBI,400,000,000

HalRES Gilz1
AEM 600,000,000 PRC
B AR

B 600,000,000 76
Registered

RMBG00,000,000

Paid up capital
RMBG00,000,000

FIEH

Principal activities

FR%E

Properties management

IES

Properties development

IESH

Properties development

B

Properties development
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45. TEBA - 5B4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 A vl W EEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REMbERE, ARG T A I CRITRAR
LK Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
YNGR incorporation/ —F—= Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of TEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi A s (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
A b B R A IRAR (k) B 91.3% 91.3%  sEMEA i B
Beijing Longhu Zhongbai PRC AE1,500,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Properties Company Limited G
(note a) N EH1,500,000,000 2
Registered
RMB1,500,000,000
Paid up capital

RMB1,500,000,000

B ESEA AR () I 91.3% 91.3%  sHEAR I VER 3
Beijing Mengke Properties Co., PRC AR 830,000,000 PRC &Ll
Ltd. (note a) I Properties development

AR 830,000,000 TG and provision of
Registered consultancy service
RMB830,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB830,000,000

oS B R A RA R (k) B 91.3% 91.3%  sEMEA i IE S
Beijing Tongrui Wanhua Real PRC ARH2,800,000,0007G  PRC Properties development
Estate Co., Ltd. (note a) B A
AR 2,800,000,000 78
Registered
RMB2,800,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB2,800,000,000

LRI E A RAR (Hika) R 91.3% 913%  aHEA HH VESiT
Beijing Xingshun Real Estate PRC ARM700,000,00076  PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note a) BRA
N EH700,000,000 72
Registered
RMB700,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB700,000,000
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o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B =t =R

For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - 5B ER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

Bk 48 A ) Wk ()

AAAH

Name of company

W2 ()
Subsidiary (Continued)

AR B A A A (5T )

Beijing Xiongrun Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (note a)

M EEERARAT ()
Changzhou Jia'nan Properties
Co., Ltd. (note a)

MBS RA AR (WD)
Changzhou Longfor Jiye Co.,
Ltd. (note b)

WM EERARAT (ko)
Changzhou Jiabo Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (note c)

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

REMbaL/ AR T A CRITRAR

LK Equity interest JBA /R A

Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ AEHH

incorporation/ —F—= Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of TEEH

establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities

i 91.3% 913%  EMEA HE IES
PRC ARMH10,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
BRI A
AR 10,000,000 7
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

i 93.5% 93.5%  wEMEAR Bl IE S
PRC ARM720,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
A
AR 720,000,000 7
Registered
RMB720,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB720,000,000

Gl 96.8% 96.8%  sfftEA Gl IESH
PRC 124,690,000 % ¢ PRC Properties development
B AR
124,690,000 £ 7
Registered
USD124,690,000
Paid up capital
USD124,690,000

HE 100% 100 wEMEA HE IS
PRC 196,160,000 5 7C PRC Properties development
BULA
196,160,000 % ¢
Registered
USD196,160,000
Paid up capital
USD196,160,000
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BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. EERBBEAA - FBREER
B8 A F IR )

GRL W AR T AV e
LK Equity interest
Place of attributable to the Group
UNTEA incorporation/ —F—= e St
Name of company establishment 2013 2012
W2 ()
Subsidiary (Continued)
G HHERARAT (k) il 91.3% 91.3%
Wuxi Jianan Real Estate Co., PRC
Ltd. (note a)
EOHRAERARAT (k) i 91.3% 91.3%
Wauxi Jiarui Real Estate Co., PRC
Ltd. (note a)
W RIERARAT (k) Gil:: 91.3% 91.3%
Wouxi Jiateng Real Estate Co., PRC
Ltd. (note a)
B S E A RAT i 91.3% 91.3%
(TR FERE |) (H5Ea) PRC

Chengdu Jiaxun Investment Company

Limited (“Chengdu Jiaxun”) (note a)

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]

CRfTRAR
Tk /i A
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

FEff B A

AR 260,000,000 7
G

AR 260,000,000 7
Registered
RMB260,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB260,000,000

REMHEA

AR 559,500,000 78
B IA

AR 559,500,000 78
Registered
RMB559,500,000
Paid up capital
RMB559,500,000

HAURES

AR 720,000,000 78
B AR

AR 720,000,000 78
Registered
RMB720,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB720,000,000

FEf A
AEH30,000,000 7
B AR
AEH30,000,000 7
Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000

B
Place of

operation

il
PRC

i
PRC

B
PRC

PRC

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

FIEH

Principal activities

ES i3

Properties development

IESHE

Properties development

IESH

Properties development

B

Properties development



ar AN 2y

w1 S R B EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - 5B ER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B A vl MEEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
R MbERaE, ARG B A i CRfTRAR
B Equity interest JBA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ AEHH
R incorporation/ —F—= Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of TEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi AR (37)

Subsidiary (Continued)

TR A 7 (Ea) il 93.5% 93.5%  wkMEA il EHHEH
Chengdu Jinteng Trade Company PRC AR 20,000,000 PRC Trading of construction
Limited (note a) B A materials
B 20,000,000 7
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

FREREMI G B R A IRA T (akb) o 94.2% 9420  sEMEAR Bl IE S
Chengdu Longhu Jinhua Real PRC AR 100,000,000 PRC Properties development
Estate Company Limited (note b) BRI
N EH100,000,000 72
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000

AT AIRAR (Wit  HE 91.04% 91.04%  GEMEA HH MEER
Chengdu Longhu Property PRC AR 5,000,000 76 PRC Properties management
Services Company Limited (note a) B AR
AR 5,000,000 72
Registered
RMBS,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBS,000,000

AR B EEARAR (Kb R 93.5% 93.5%  aHEA HH VES T
Chengdu Longhu Tongjin Real PRC AR 966,549,865 16 PRC Properties development
Estate Company Limited (note b) B AR
NEHE 966,549,865 ¢
Registered
RMB966,549,865
Paid up capital
RMB966,549,865

4F # Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - 5B4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 A vl W EEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REMbERE, ARG BREAY o CRfTRAR
B Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
YNGR incorporation/ —F—= Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of TEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi A s (47)

Subsidiary (Continued)

AP E A RAT () il 91.3% 91.3%  sEMEA i IES
Chengdu Xixi Real Estate PRC AR 335,660,000 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) B A
AR 335,660,000 ¢
Registered
RMB335,660,000
Paid up capital
RMB335,660,000

IR PIH B A RAT (HEa) i 91.3% 913%  sEftEA i IESHE
Chengdu Xixiang Real Estate PRC ANE#436,370,000C  PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) B IA
AR 436,370,000 7
Registered
RMB436,370,000
Paid up capital
RMB436,370,000

AT A R (T a) I 93.5% 935%  wftEE R BHEE
Chengdu Yuanbo Gardening PRC ARH20,0000007C  PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Co., Ltd (note a) B A
AR 20,000,000 7T
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

AT E A AT (kD) P B 914% 914%  aHEA HH VESiT
Chengdu Longfor Jincheng Real PRC AEM390,000,00076  PRC Properties development
Estate Co., Ltd. (note b) BRA
NBH 390,000,000 7
Registered
RMB390,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB390,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B =t =R

For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - D BEER
Bk 48 A ) Wk ()

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R MbERaE, ARG T A I CRfTRAR
LK Equity interest JBA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ AEHH
R incorporation/ —F-= ZEF-TH share capital/ Place of TEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi AR (37)
Subsidiary (Continued)
AR E EA AR (HEEb)  E 92.8% 928% kMR T LIE
Chengdu Longfor Beicheng Co., PRC ARH1,970,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Ltd. (note b) BRI A
AEH1,970,000,000 7
Registered
RMB1,970,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,970,000,000
R RER SR B A RA R (Hita) 91.3% 91.3%  sEEAR I VIER T
Chengdu Longfor Jinhua Real Estate ~ PRC AR 650,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note a) T €
R 650,000,000 72
Registered
RMB650,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB650,000,000
ERAHE RN RRARAA Gl 91.3% 91.3%  skMEA B IE S
(BHfZED) PRC ARM700,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Chongqing Beilonghu Property B AR
Company Limited (note b) A RH700,000,000 7
Registered
RMB700,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB700,000,000
BEHAOL AR A A A (Wka) HE 91.3% 913%  aHEA HH VES T
Chongqing Henghong Investment PRC AEH10,000,000 76 PRC Properties development
Inc. (note a) B AR
B 10,000,000 78
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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BE—® it AT
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEHBA - D BEER
Bk 48 A ) Wk ()

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

REMbERE, ARG T A I CRITRAR
LK Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
UNTEA incorporation/ “F = Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi A s (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
R EREARAT I 93.5% 93.5%  EMER T IEE
(Ff&E D) ANE#778,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Chongqing Juntion Real Estate PRC G
Development Inc. (note b) AR 778,000,000 76
Registered
RMB778,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB778,000,000
BEENELERRARAR T 91.3% 913%  EftEAR I VER 3
(Bffsta) AE#1,000,000,000C  PRC Properties development
Chongqing Longhu Chengheng PRC I
Real Estate Development AR 1,000,000,000 7
Inc. (note a) Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000
EEREMEARARAT (HiEb) B 91.3% 91.3%  sEMEA B IE 1Y%
Chongqing Longhu Development PRC ARH1,308,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note b) B A and investment
AR 1,308,000,000 78
Registered
RMB1,308,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,308,000,000
B ML ERRARA A I 91.3% 913%  aHEA HH VESiT
(Bif7ta) PRC AR #30,000,000 70 PRC Properties development
Chongqing Longhu Hengshang B AR
Real Estate Company AEH30,000,000 7
Limited (note a) Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi #b 7 A B 2 ]
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B8 2 7 I )

AAAH

Name of company

W2 ()
Subsidiary (Continued)

&R G R B R A R A 7]
(HiFzE D)

Chongqing Longhu Kaian Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (note b)

EREMREREARAR (K
Chonggqing Longhu Properties

Company Limited (note a)

BRI B A AR (k)
Chongqing Longhu Xijie
Real Estate Company Limited

(note a)

BRI ERRARAA
(M5t a)
Chongqing Longhu Yiheng Estate

Development Co., Ltd. (note a)

o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B =t =R

For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R MbERaE, ARG T A I

LK Equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group
incorporation/ —F—= e St
establishment 2013 2012
il 95.6% 95.6%
PRC

bl 91.3% 91.3%
PRC

il 91.3% 91.3%
PRC

i 91.3% 95.6%
PRC

CRfTRAR
Tk /i A
Issued and fully paid ~ AEHH
share capital/ Place of

registered capital operation

A B A HE
AR#1,278,000,000 76 PRC
G

AR 1,278,000,000 76
Registered

RMBI,278,000,000

Paid up capital
RMBI,278,000,000

HAURES Gilo
AR 1,544,912,450 6 PRC
A

AR 1,544,912,450 76
Registered

RMBI,544,912,450

Paid up capital
RMBI,544,912,450

HAURES ile
NEM 624,000,000 76 PRC
B AR

R 624,000,000 7
Registered

RMB624,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB624,000,000

HalRES Gilz1
AEM360,000,00076  PRC
B AR

A EM360,000,000 76
Registered

RMB360,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB360,000,000

FIEH

Principal activities

VES 3

Properties development

IES G4
Properties development

and investment

VES 319 &4
Properties development

and investment

B

Properties development
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BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - 5B4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 A vl W EEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REMbERE, ARG T A I CRfTRAR
LK Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
UNTEA incorporation/ “F = Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi A s (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
EEMHE A RA (HEb) HE 93.5% 93.5%  sEMEA i B
Chongging Rongkai Industrial PRC AE#698,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note b) B A
R 698,000,000 T2
Registered
RMBG698,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBG698,000,000
BRERAHEARAR (Wika) T 93.5% 93.5%  EMER I VER 3
Chongging Tianzhuo Investment PRC ARH20,000000C  PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) B IA
AR 20,000,000 7
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
ERERMRERRARAT (W) R 93.5% 935%  EMtEAR HH BEE
Chongqing Tianlang Agriculture PRC ARH10,000,000 76 PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Development Company Limited B AR
(note a) AR 10,000,000 T
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
BRI R AR I 91.3% 913%  aHEA HH WEER
(Bif7ta) PRC AR #5,000,000 76 PRC Properties management
Chongqing Xinlonghu Properties B AR
Services Company Limited (note a) AR #5,000,000 76
Registered
RMBS,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBS,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  #E Wi #b 7 A B 2 ]




45. EERBBEAG - FBREER

B8 2 7 I )

AAAH

Name of company

W2 ()
Subsidiary (Continued)

o ) B TR PR A
(Wzkc)

Chongging Longfor Dezhuo
Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (note c)

BUMREMI B E R A IR A
(Bt )
Hangzhou Longhu Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. (note ¢)

TR E L E RS A RA R
(fia)
Hangzhou Longjia Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. (note a)

LR A A A (k)

Shanghai Hengchi Real Estate

Company Limited (note a)

o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B =t =R

For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R MbERaE, ARG T A I

LK Equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group
incorporation/ —F—= e St
establishment 2013 2012
bl 100% 100%
PRC

i 100% 100%
PRC

i 91.3% 91.3%
PRC

i 93.5% 93.5%
PRC

CRfTRAR
Tk /i A
Issued and fully paid ~ AEHH
share capital/ Place of

registered capital operation

A B A HE
150,000,000 % & PRC
G

150,000,000 % &

Registered

USD150,000,000

Paid up capital
USD150,000,000

HAURES il
229,400,000 TG PRC
A

189,400,000 % 7T

Registered

USD229,400,000

Paid up capital
USD189,400,000

HAURES ile
ARH50,000000C  PRC
B AR

AR 50,000,000 7
Registered

RMB50,000,000

Paid up capital

RMB50,000,000

HalRES Gilz1
AEM1,000,000,0007G  PRC
B AR

A B 1,000,000,000 76
Registered

RMB1,000,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000

FIEH

Principal activities

VES 3

Properties development

IES

Properties development

IESH

Properties development

B

Properties development
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - 5B4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 A vl W EEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REMbERE, ARG T A I CRITRAR
LK Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
YNGR incorporation/ —F—= ZEF-TH share capital/ Place of TEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi A s (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
LR EARAR (W) 91.3% 91.3%  sEMEA i hEEH
Shanghai Longhu Property PRC AE5,000,000 76 PRC Properties management
Management Company BRIA
Limited (note ) A EH5,000,000 72
Registered
RMBS,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBS,000,000
LEENEERRARAR (i) hE 91.3% 913%  EftEAR I VER 3
Shanghai Longhu Real Estate PRC AE#100,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Co. Led. (note a) BRI AR
N EH$100,000,000 72
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
ERERERKARAR (H5Ea) 93.5% 93.5%  atlEAR HH BEE
Shanghai Xinrun Garden PRC ARH12,0000007C  PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Virescence Company B AR
Limited (note a) AR 12,000,000 T
Registered
RMB12,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB12,000,000
EERRAEEERAE (Wika) I 93.5% 93.5%  aHEA HH BHES
Shanghai Yujiu Industrial PRC A B 20,000,000 76 PRC Trading of construction
Company Limited (note a) B A materials
BT 20,000,000 78
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]




45. EERBBEAG - FBREER

B8 2 7 I )

AR

Name of company

Wi AR (37)

Subsidiary (Continued)
Lt A TRA F (HEa)

Shanghai Hengshi Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (note a)

R A A R (H3ED)

Shanghai Hengyi Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (note b)

AR A RA R (H3Eb)

Shanghai Hengrui Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (note b)

AR A A A A (HEREb)

Shanghai Hengjun Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (note b)

o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B =t =R

For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R MbERaE, ARG T A I

LK Equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group
incorporation/ —F—= e St
establishment 2013 2012
il 91.3% 91.3%
PRC

B 95.6% 95.6%
PRC

i 91.3% 68.5%
PRC

i 93.5% 93.5%
PRC

CRfTRAR
Tk /i A
Issued and fully paid ~ AEHH
share capital/ Place of

registered capital operation

A B A HE
AR#1,000,000,000 76 PRC
G

AR#1,000,000,000 76
Registered

RMBI,000,000,000

Paid up capital
RMBI,000,000,000

FEff B A il
ARH1,100,000,000 76 PRC
B AR

ARH1,100,000,000 76
Registered

RMBI,100,000,000

Paid up capital
RMBI,100,000,000

FEf B A ile
ARMH1,589,000,000 76 PRC
B AR

AR 1,589,000,000 76
Registered

RMBI,589,000,000

Paid up capital
RMBI,589,000,000

HalRES Gilz1
AEM4,300,000,0007G  PRC
B AR

NS 445,657,500 T
Registered

RMB4,300,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB3,445,657,500

FIEH

Principal activities

VES 3

Properties development

IES

Properties development

IESH

Properties development

B

Properties development
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BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - 5B4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 A vl W EEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REMbERE, ARG T A I CRfTRAR
LK Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
UNTEA incorporation/ “F = Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi A s (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
R REIA B B R A R R I 98.5% 985%  akMtEAR T IEE
(WzED) PRC 65,000,000 %76 PRC Properties development
Shenyang Longhu Estate G
Development Co., Ltd. (note b) 65,000,000 %7
Registered
USD65,000,000
Paid up capital
USD65,000,000
TR AL E A WA (fskb) R 96.2% 96.2%  sEMEA HE IE S
Shenyang Longfor Xinbei Real PRC 113,000,000 ¢ PRC Properties development
Estate Co., Led. (note b) B IA
113,000,000 %7
Registered
USD113,000,000
Paid up capital
USD113,000,000
PO M B A R A (WERED) o 93.5% 93.5%  atitEAR HH E S35
Sichuan Longhu Real Estate PRC AR 50,000,000 7 PRC Properties development
Development Company B AR
Limited (note b) NE#50,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
HLTEMMMEFRARAT (Hika) R 91.3% 91.3%  aHEA HH B
Xi'an Longhu Jincheng PRC AR 430,000,000 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) BRBA
NBH 430,000,000 72
Registered
RMB430,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB430,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBAV - 5B4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B A vl M EEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
R MbERaE, ARG B A i CRfTRAR
B Equity interest JBA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ AEHH
R incorporation/ —F—= Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of TEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi AR (37)

Subsidiary (Continued)

oL RE MR A A ] (ika) R 91.3% 913%  EMEA il hEEH
Xi'an Longhu Property Service PRC AR #3,000,000 7 PRC Properties management
Company Limited (note a) BRIA
3,000,000 7
Registered
RMB3,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000

TR R A R A (Hita) 91.3% 913%  wftEAE i MR
Xi'an Longhu Real Estate PRC AR #50,000,000 76 PRC Properties development
Inc. (note a) A
AR 50,000,000 7
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000

FLEMBURE XA RAT (Hita)  HE 91.3% 91.3%  skMEA B IE S
Xi'an Longhu Xingcheng Estate PRC AR 499,610,000  PRC Properties development
Co. Led. (note a) B AR
NEH499,610,000 7C
Registered
RMB499,610,000
Paid up capital
RMB499,610,000

P EHEI AR A (Wka) HE 93.5% 93.5%  aHEA HH BHES
Xi'an Yeheng Industrial PRC A B 20,000,000 76 PRC Trading of construction
Company Limited (note a) BRI materials
BT 20,000,000 72
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - 5B4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 A vl W EEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
GRL W ARG T A I CRITRAR
LK Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
UNTEA incorporation/ “F = Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
W2 ()
Subsidiary (Continued)
PEENEMEEERAT (M)  HH 94.2% 9429%  EMEAR GC| IEE
Xi'an Longfor Runrong Real Estate PRC ANE#615,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (note a) B A
AR 615,000,000 72
Registered
RMB615,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB615,000,000
TS EME EE WA (Wka) T 91.3% 913%  EftEAR GlC| IES
Wuxi Longhu Real Estate PRC ANE#615,200,0007C  PRC Properties development
Inc. (note a) BRI AR
AR 615,200,000 7T
Registered
RMB615,200,000
Paid up capital
RMB615,200,000
T HEMEEARARAT (Hikb) B 95.2% 95.0%  sEfitEA B IE S
Qingdao Longfor Real PRC ARH1,100,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Estate Co. Led. (note b) B AR
AR1,100,000,000 78
Registered

RMB1,100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,100,000,000

HEEREEARAH (ko) I 100% 100%  aEfFEA HH VESiT
Qingdao Longjia Real PRC 90,000,000 %75 PRC Properties development
Estate Co. Ltd. (note ¢) B AR
90,000,000 7
Registered
USD90,000,000
Paid up capital
USD90,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led. HE ] Hi & A FR 2 #]
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BE—B =t =R
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45. EERBBEAG - FBREER
B8 2 7 I )

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R MbERaE, ARG T A I CRITRAR
LK Equity interest JBA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid ~ AEHH
R incorporation/ —F—= Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of TEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi AR (37)
Subsidiary (Continued)
B R R ERARAT (ko) il 100% 100%  EMEA HE IES
Qingdao Longkai Real PRC 70,000,000 %76 PRC Properties development
Estate Co. Led. (note c) BRI A
70,000,000 %7
Registered
USD70,000,000
Paid up capital
USD70,000,000
SR R RIRA AT il 100% 100%  EfEA Gl IES
(Bfakc) PRC 99,800,000 3 TG PRC Properties development
Ningbo Longjia Real Estate B IA
Development Co., Ltd. (note c) 99,800,000 % 7T
Registered
USD99,800,000
Paid up capital
USD99,800,000
TR A M B A RAT (feka) Gl 91.3% 91.3%  skMEA B IE S
Yantai Longfor Real Estate PRC AR 600,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Co., Led. (note a) B AR
R 600,000,000 72
Registered
RMBG600,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBG600,000,000
KRR v A A I 93.5% 93.5%  aHEA HH VES T
(WfzEa) PRC ARMH110,000,00076  PRC Properties development
Dalian Longfor Donggang Real B AR
Estate Co., Led. (note ) B 110,000,000 72
Registered
RMB110,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB110,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - 5B4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 A vl W EEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REMbERE, ARG T A I CRITRAR
LK Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
UNTEA incorporation/ S Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi A s (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
Jasmine Spread Investment KRR RS 100% 100%  EERA ik E/g el
Limited ([ B4R AL 50,000 G HK Investment holding
B&) BRIA
The British 2%
Virgin Authorised
Islands USD50,000
(the “BVI") Paid up capital
usD2
Join Dragon Limited ERAT RS 100% 100%  HERA Fifs RELR
BVI 50,000 %70 HK Investment holding
B IA
257
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
usD2
Longfor Investment Co. Led. (Ff7Ef) KBTS 100% 1009  HERA Hi Erg2eidild
Longfor Investment Co. Ltd. (note f) BVI 1%L HK Investment holding
B A
17T
Authorised
UsD1
Paid up capital
UsD1
Silver Oak Enterprises Limited BB 100% 100% kA ik BELER
BVI 50,000 3 76 HK Investment holding
BURIRA
2%
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
usD2
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45. EERBBEAG - FBREER
B8 2 7 I )

AR

Name of company

Wi AR (37)
Subsidiary (Continued)
HEBERARAR

Fortune Glister Development Limited

HRE A RAT
Joy Wealth Trading Limited

Iz A A

Joyline Corporation Limited

TR R (HR) HRAR
Juntion Development Hong Kong
(Holding) Limited

o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—B =t =R

For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

AL AV R B A e

LK Equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group
incorporation/ —F—= e St
establishment 2013 2012
ik 100% 100%
([ ])

Hong Kong

(‘HK")

ik 91.3% 91.3%
HK

itk 100% 100%
HK

ity 100% 100%
HK

CRfTRAR
Tk /i A
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

e M A
10,000 # 72
G
1T
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1

W E B
100,000,000 # 7T
A
69,687,000 7T
Authorised
HKD100,000,000
Paid up capital
HKD69,687,000

A
10,000 # ¢
B AR
17T
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKDI1

HREBA
2,000,000 #7¢
BURIRA
2,000,000 #7¢
Authorised
HKD2,000,000
Paid up capital
HKD2,000,000

it gk ]
Place of

operation

ik
HK

HK

&k
HK

HK

FIEH

Principal activities

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

HE R

Investment holding
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - 5B4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 A vl W EEE ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REMbERE, ARG T A I CRITRAR
LK Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
UNTEA incorporation/ “F = Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
Wi A s (47)
Subsidiary (Continued)
Longfor Company Limited it 100% 100%  EERA it E/g el
HK 10,000 #7C HK Investment holding
BRI A
LT
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1
TERA AT i 100% 100%  sEMFEA Fik BE
Treasure State Limited HK 10,0008 HK Investment holding
BRI AR
LT
Registered
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1
e
Joint ventures
FRAREERT B AT IR A 7 I 78.5%#+ 59.2064+  akftEA HH VESiT
(AP RERT 1) (HEREd) PRC AR 629,993,500 PRC Properties development
Chengdu Huixin Real Estate B AR
Company Limited A 629,993,500 7
(“Chengdu Huixin") (note d) Registered
RMB629,993,500
Paid up capital
RMB629,993,500
Rz P AT TR ) R T1.3%# + 7% 4+ AL HH VIES
(The#bzr 1) (sEd) PRC AR 382,800,100 PRC Properties development
Chengdu Jia'nan Real Estate HRBA
Company Limited AR H382,890,100 7
(“Chengdu Jia'nan") (note d) Registered
RMB382,890,100
Paid up capital

RMB382,890,100
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45. EERBBEAG - FBREER
B8 2 7 I )

AAAH

Name of company

AREEAH)

Joint ventures (Continued)

R I B A R A )
(THCAREE]) (Fit3Ed)

Chengdu Jinghui Real Estate
Company Limited
(“Chengdu Jinghui”) (note d)

TR R B A IR A
(Tt ) (Wi d)

Chengdu Tuocheng Real Estate
Company Limited

(“Chengdu Tuocheng”) (note d)

TR BEN B B A TR A
(WzEd)
Longhu Land Limited (note d)

Northpole Intermediary Limited
(“Northpole”)

o B U 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE

For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R MbERaE, ARG T A I

LK Equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group
incorporation/ “F = G S
establishment 2013 2012
G 70.3%4+ 46.29#+
PRC

B 70.3%#+ 46294+
PRC

il 49.6%4# 49.6%4%
PRC

LTS 61.5%# 44494
Cayman Islands

CRfTRAR
Tk /i A
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

A B A

AR 653,275,800 78
G

AR 653,275,800 78
Registered
RMB653,275,800
Paid up capital
RMB653,275,800

REMHEA

B 633,495,100 78
BRI

B 633,495,100 78
Registered
RMB633,495,100
Paid up capital
RMB633,495,100

FEf B A
27,000,000 %76
B AR
27,000,000 %76
Registered
USD27,000,000
Paid up capital
USD27,000,000

AL A
20078
BULA
20078
Registered
USD200

Paid up capital
USD200

it gk ]
Place of

operation

il
PRC

B
PRC

PRC

Ghsida)

Cayman Islands

FIEH

Principal activities

VES 3

Properties development

IES

Properties development

IESH

Properties development

HE R

Investment holding
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z-=F+A=Z+—HLEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. TEBA - SB4LER 45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

BB A Wi o) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REMbERE, ARG BREAY o CRfTRAR
B Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A&
YNGR incorporation/ —F—= Z%—Z4  share capital/ Place of TEEH
Name of company establishment 2013 2012 registered capital operation Principal activities
RERHE )

Joint ventures (Continued)

FRBBR A RA T ik 50%# S0%#  aEftEA i SR
Top Grand International Enterprise ~ HK 10,000 #7C HK Investment holding
Limited RUEBA
10,000 #7¢
Registered
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD10,000
T A
Associate
2 2 AR (4850 il 20% 20%  EfEA R A 2R
AIRAT (HEe) PRC 1,250,000 ¢ PRC Production of air
Ar Ke Er (note e) WA conditioners
100 TE
Registered
USD1,250,000
Paid up capital
USD100
BB (FR)HRAF SRR R 47.4% 474%  HERA il BEER
(i Easeridge BVI 50,000 % TG HK Investment holding
Investments Limited) B AR
Jiaxun Land (China) Company Limited 100 £ TG
(Formerly known as Authorised
Easeridge Investments Limited) USD50,000
Paid up capital
USD100
Bt &k Notes:
(a) 77 B A ) 5 i B R ST 22 R 1 4 (a) The subsidiary is a domestic wholly-owned enterprise established in the PRC.
3% -
(b) A2 A A R 2 R B O 2 B B (b) The subsidiary is an equity joint venture established in the PRC.
(c) % B 2 ) A S v B L 2 B AN AR o (c) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.
(d) FEEMERNPEBLZ FERE - (d)  The joint venture is an equity joint venture established in the PRC.
(e) 2B E AT IR B L 2 2N E R o (e) The associate is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45. FEWBAY - FBEER

B8 AWM

BEsE ()

® % I ) A AR ) 2 A A DI AR
ATV EHEEREA > T HAbFEE 2 R B A A
HEES e

# %S AT A5 A AR R A A T 4 4k
TR ARSI B A B %%
OS] F T A BOR A A R S —
HAE -

A I A (A 4 [ R O A W) ) 4 B L
HRERFE R BRI R R R AR
[ %7 32.84% > 29.74% > 29.50% & 57.05%
FOMERS o 10 Northpole (75 8 [ & 5 A 2 )
oy BB B S A R AR 5 B BURR AR R > B
5 E K R ED ME B 67.16% > 70.26%
70.41% K 42.95% KIME S - RIBHIBE A&
ek W%%E N R T S R A BUR
2R AEBE—RAE - AEMEBIHE
AARGECERGZERTAEE
71.96% H)3 A o

HHRR > ERIIREEREAL
SR R 2 A S I A A
BELERBELAT - EHZHM
A ALK A 7 R R
SRR E S RIBRRIR -

BB AR - F—Z4F 1+
H=Z1—B#iT R EHES5
R HE 1 4 2E 90 JE B AT IR AR A T
WS A R £ 2 AR SRR N R
1,400,000,000 TG fEFR BRI ©

(i) EHERRAEENERE  AFERR
Ui 2 JEPE AR A R T I
WARER > WOl TR A~ BE
KB G & 2 WH R o 4R
NREEARE R S R I SYNN
#72,344,000 0 (= F — 4 A
R %50,379,00078) ©

& o

L\\

RE-F=F+A=+—HLFE
For the year ended December 31, 2013

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(65) The subsidiary is a wholly owned subsidiary and directly held by the Company. All

other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

# These companies are accounted for as joint ventures as at respective period end
date as in accordance with the memorandum and articles of the companies, major
financial and operating policies of these companies require the unanimous consent

of all directors.

+ The interests in Chengdu Jia'nan, Chengdu Tuocheng, Chengdu Jinghui and
Chengdu Huixin directly held by Chengdu Jiaxun (a subsidiary of the Group) and
Northpole (a joint venture of the Group) are 32.84%), 29.74%, 29.50% and 57.05%
and 67.16%, 70.26%, 70.41% and 42.95% respectively. Pursuant to the relevant
joint venture agreements, major financial and operating policies of these companies
require the unanimous consent of all joint venture partners. The Group is effectively
entitled to 71.96% of profit of these joint ventures through its subsidiary and joint

venture.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at December
31, 2013, except for Chongging Longhu Development which has
issued bonds with principal amount of RMB1,400 million, in

which the Group has no interest.

(if)  The directors consider that the non-controlling interest in the
assets, liabilities and cash flows of the Group are not material
to the Group and so no summarised financial information on
the assets, liabilities and cash flows are disclosed. Dividend of
RMB72,344,000 (2012: RMB50,379,000) was paid to non-

controlling interests during the year.
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Five Years Financial Summary

BETZH=Z1—HILEE

Year ended December 31,
—FER R -TF ZFR -4 ZE-RE ZZRNE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ANRETFIE ARETT ARETT ARETFLT AR¥TIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
L 2 Revenue 41,510,167 27,892,830 24,092,893 15,093,122 11,373,962
o B ¥ ] Profit before taxation 13,218,654 11,301,542 11,444,230 7,068,474 4,061,040
Jr 1588 BH 5 Income tax expense (4,582,788)  (4,436,068)  (4,523,942)  (2,051,101)  (1,568,581)
4 B ¥ ) Profit for the year 8,635,866 6,865,474 6,920,288 5,017,373 2,492,459
DAR EAY Attributable to:
E/ANCIESZ DN Owners of the Company 8,037,222 6,301,060 6,327,560 4,130,155 2,209,207
D BB R A Minority interests 598,644 564,414 592,728 887,218 283,252
A s A Profit for the year 8,635,866 6,865,474 6,920,288 5,017,373 2,492,459
BET-HA=+—HI4EE
Year ended December 31,
B2 CE T ZE 4 ZEF-FFE ZEFNF
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ANREFLE ARETE ARETLTZ AREFL ARETL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B Rk AR ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
i A Total assets 144,171,967 125,426,497 97,260,041 71,713,564 42,445,102
A ERE Total liabilities (104,396,548)  (92,849,085) (73,165,371) (54,347,744) (29,206,540)
39,775,419 32,577,412 24,094,670 17,365,820 13,238,562
E/NCIE DN Equity attributable to
R A 1 2 owners of the Company 36,983,645 29,909,248 21,940,541 15,980,256 12,138,678
D BB £ Minority interests 2,791,774 2,668,164 2,154,129 1,385,564 1,099,884
39,775,419 32,577,412 24,094,670 17,365,820 13,238,562
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